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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Capital
Land Ltd. (“BCL” or “the Company”; together with its subsidiaries,
“the Group”), | am pleased to present the Group’s interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2011.

In view of the complicated and fast changing domestic and
international economic environment in the first half of 2011, the
economic growth of China slowed down moderately as a result of
the implementation of a series of progressive fiscal policies and
tightening monetary policies. The Chinese economy continued
heading towards the agreed direction of economic structure
adjustment and the overall economic development was in good
shape. At the beginning of 2011, the General Office of the State
Council promulgated the “Notice of the State Council on Resolutely
Curbing the Soaring of Housing Prices in Some Cities” (also known
as the “The State Council’s No. 8 National Notice”) to further intensify
and extend the impact of property austerity measures as well as to
suppress overheated demand for commodity housing. The new
policies expanded the city coverage for home buying restriction and
requested the cities which involved setting its own property price
targets to curb the overheated market. As of now, close to 40 cities
have launched the home buying restriction and over 600 cities
announced their targets for property price control. These indicated
the central government’s tightening policy has moved to a higher
level and aim to control property price by administrative measures.
Amidst progressive austerity measures and tightening monetary
policies, the phenomenon of rapid increase in property price became
under control.

In the first half of 2011, purchasing demand was significantly
suppressed due to the restrictions on home buying and tightening
of mortgage approval. As supply continued to climb, more sales
promotion activities were seen, market competition intensified with
greater pressure in price adjustment. During the period under review,
the growth rates of property price in many cities had been recording
month-on-month decrease. This indicated the effective control over
investment and speculative demand. Although transaction volume
had reasonably resumed in May and June, it remained at a historical
low level in some major cities. In addition, the central and local
government showed their utmost determination to implement policies
to regulate commodity housing and government subsidized housing,
in particular of accelerating the construction of government
subsidized housing. It will make an important contribution not only
to increase market supply effectively in the future, but also stabilize
property prices.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

During the period, the Group actively adjusted its sales strategy,
optimized its product structure, and increased the sales proportion
of small-to-medium unit size to meet the mainstream market
demands. For the six months ended 30 June 2011, the Group’s
contracted sales area amounted to approximately 500,000 sq. m
and contracted sales totaled RMB5.1 billion, up 31.8% and 15.6%
year-on-year respectively. With more new projects to be launched in
the second half of 2011, it is expected that sales performance of the
Group will further pick up.

The Group’s turnover and profit attributable to equity holders for
the period under review reached to RMB1,657,787,000 and
RMB307,513,000, representing an decrease of 39% and 4% as
compared to that of the corresponding period in the previous year.
The Board resolved not to declare any interim dividend in respect of
the six months ended 30 June 2011.

In the first half of 2011, the Group persisted in its strategies of
developing residential property for mid- to- high-end market and
dedicated in enhancing product quality and customer satisfaction.
The Group strengthened its effort in sales and promotion with its
good reputation and broad customer base. In light of the change in
regional market structure and customer demand after the
promulgation of home buying restriction, the Group also adjusted
its product strategies and structures by increasing the proportion of
small-to-medium unit size and low-to-medium priced products to
attract mainstream customers. During the period, the Group
successfully catered to solid demand by launching a number of
projects, such as Beijing Ballet Town, Tianjin First City, Chengdu
Citta Villa, Chongging Hong’en International Living District, and Xi’an
First City. The sales performance of these projects were satisfactory
as they captured the excessive property demands in cities where
the property restriction was imposed.

In the first half of 2011, land market was in stable situation and land
prices became more rational. Number of land acquisitions and
transactions increased significantly. The Group believed that industry
adjustment brought forth both challenge and opportunity. The Group
avoided to compete for land when the market was in its peak and
seized expansion opportunity during market consolidation.
Leveraging on its competitive edges in integrated operation and
diversified business structure and product mix, the Group increased
its land bank by a total of 910,000 sg.m. in Miyun in Beijing, Wuging
in Tianjin, Qingdao in Shandong, and Wanning in Hainan at relatively
lower costs through various channels, such as open auction, merger
and acquisition, and primary and secondary land development. This
would further strengthen its strategic market presence in Bohai Rim
and Hainan region and also set a solid foundation for the sustainable
development of the Group.
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During the period, under the on-going tightening monetary policies,
it was difficult for property sector to raise fund and the cost of
financing had escalated significantly. Having sufficient capital has
become crucial for the property developers in the competitive
industry. Seizing the window for fund raising resulted from policy
change, the Group reached out to overseas financing platform by
issuing a three-year Renmenbi guaranteed bond totaling RMB1.15
billion with a coupon rate of 4.75% in Hong Kong. To ensure sufficient
capital for the rapid development, the Group dedicated to broaden
its fund raising channels, spearhead some innovative financing
means, continuously collaborate with strategic partners such as the
Government of Singapore Investment Corporation and China
Development Bank, and develop financing channels which are
compatible to the Group’s different business models.

From an overall perspective, China’s economic growth momentum
remains strong. The focus of economic growth is shifting steadily
from over-reliance of investment and export to a balance
development of domestic consumption, investment and export.
China is still accelerating its development of industrialization and
urbanization. The current structural adjustment, change in
development model, and rapid industrial upgrade fuel the Chinese
economy with new energy and source of upward movement.
Escalating inflation level in China provided a strong support to asset
values under the rapid growing trend of macroeconomy. Despite the
rigorous austerity measures, the total contracted sales areas
maintained a steady growth in the first half of the year. This indicated
that the property market remained active with strong demand. Market
focus is gradually shifting from first-tier and second-tier cities to third-
tier and fourth-tier cities. Amidst the on-going implementation of
austerity measures, China’s property market still has considerable
room to grow.

Based on the principle of “accelerate asset turnover, proactively take
initiatives, and explore innovative development”, the Group will adhere
to its five-year strategic plan to speed up project development,
enhance asset turnover rate, and maintain organic growth. It will
also seek to broaden financing channels, explore innovative business
model, and seize industry resources by carrying out differentiation
competition strategies. Based on the brand philosophy of “Total
value, Total life”, the Group will dedicate to satisfy the diverse needs
from customers, as well as create values to customers, shareholders,
assets enhancement, and city development by developing high
quality real estates.

Liu Xiaoguang
Chairman

Beijing, China, 19 August 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

I ER B

Results and Dividend

During the period under review, the Group recorded turnover of
approximately RMB1,657,787,000 (2010: RMB2,724,235,000). Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company was RMB307,513,000
(2010: RMB321,188,000) Earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company (basic and diluted) were RMB15 cents (2010:
RMB16 cents). The Board resolved not to declare any interim dividend
in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2011.

Property Sales Performance

In the first half of 2011, a basket of measures were introduced by
the central and local government including accelerating the
construction of government subsidized housing, restricting home
purchase, intensifying austerity policy has resulted in further
tightening monetary market. The increase in reserve requirement ratio
six times in a row, increase in interest rate twice, along with the
reversal of property supply and demand situation and the rise of
financing cost, resulted in the adjustment of the property market.
Market focus has shifted from first-tier cities to other cities. In the
first half of the year, the skyrocketing housing prices were significantly
curbed and the growth rates of property price in many cities had
been recording month-on-month decrease. Increment in average
selling price for first-tier cities such as Shanghai, Shenzhen, and
Beijing recorded the fastest decline. The transaction volume of flat
to down in first-tier cities was seen, in second-tier and third-tier cities
where the Group has established presence, such as Tianjin,
Chengdu, Wuxi, Shenyang, and Xi’an, transaction volume increased
in varying extent over the corresponding period last year.

The austerity measures on the property sector achieved significant
results in a short period of time. In the long run, however, the policies
fundamentally aim to balance the structure of the demand and supply
of residential housing and ensure healthy growth of the market.
Property developers with ample resources and products which meet
market demands will ride along the opportunity of market
consolidation and continue to increase their sales performance and
market shares. Against the backdrop of market adjustment, BCL
continued to strive for achieving its development target, accelerated
its development pace and endeavored to sustain a continued growth
in sales performance through enhancement in development scale
and product quality. In the first half of 2011, total contracted sales
area of the Group and its joint controlled entities and associates
amounted to approximately 500,000 sg.m, representing a year-on-
year growth of 31.8%, of which approximately 456,000 sg.m was
residential properties. Total contracted sales revenue reached about
RMB5.1 billion, posting an increase of 15.6% as compared to that
of the corresponding period in the previous year, of which sales of
residential properties accounted for about RMB4.66 billion.
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® Management Discussion and Analysis
CEERETE

Approximate Contracted Approximately
Contracted Average contracted
Sales Area Selling Price Sales Revenue
Project BHEER HEEHE HEYE HEHAKWA
(sg. m) (RMB per sq. m) (RMB'000)
(FFK)  (AREFEHXK) (AR®F )
Residential (Beijing and Tianjin) & %2 (R Ei#E) 169,941 15,622 2,654,850
The Reflections, Beijing I REREE 10,273 40,584 416,920
Xanadu, Beijing LR iE R 1,930 59,736 115,290
Urban Town, Beijing ERMERE 8,261 37,877 312,900
Beijing Ballet Town IEREER o 1A 37,765 16,439 620,814
Tianjin First City K2 E BB 42,867 9,590 411,076
Tianjin Noble City RIFRAR 21,360 11,130 237,730
Tianjin Fortune City RiERARIL 25,657 12,525 321,366
Tianjin Landing House RIEBRWNE 21,828 10,022 218,754
Residential FEETS
(Outside Beijing and Tianjin) (TR LS &) 286,446 7,000 2,005,076
Chengdu A-Z TOWN A #BA-Z TOWN 567 9,607 5,447
Chengdu First City PR D & Bl BRI 20,152 7,473 150,604
Citta Villa Chengdu FREPR AT 63,153 5,551 350,541
Wuxi Gentle House EHEREN 12,627 8,165 103,101
Wuxi Joyous House ESE AU 17,580 8,869 155,911
Shenyang First City &% B BB B 33,701 6,709 226,110
Qipan Hills First Villa, Shenyang  SEGEA& L1597 9,444 12,870 121,540
Xi'an First City 7a%e & Bl B B 62,154 6,692 415,912
Chongging Hong’en
International Living District BERBEFIAEE 67,068 7,096 475,910
Commercial/Office B¥/BFEIES 15,001 24,113 361,717
Beijing Forest Convention Centre 1t EFRM & 5% /0 10,714 28,001 300,000
Xi'an First City 7a%e & Bl B B 3,978 14,535 57,820
Wuxi Gentle House EmHEAEN 309 12,612 3,897
Car park space B 28,382 2,761 78,370
The Reflections, Beijing I REREE 292 8,219 2,400
Urban Town, Beijing ERMERE 470 3,660 1,720
Beijing A-Z TOWN 1t ZRA-Z TOWN 7,097 3,245 23,031
Chengdu A-Z TOWN A #BA-Z TOWN 440 2,755 1,212
Chengdu First City B D & Al BRI 17,642 2,078 36,664
Wuxi Gentle House EmHEAIEN 402 2,445 983
Shenyang First City &% E BB B 2,039 6,062 12,360
TOTAL &5t 499,770 5,100,013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Number of projects on sale was 19 in the first half of 2011 (first half
of 2010: 15), of which projects in Beijing and Tianjin accounted for
10, contributing to 59% of total contracted sales. Although Beijing
and Tianjin remained as the Group’s major markets for contracted
sales in the first half of 2011, their importance had declined as
compared to the 71% of the corresponding period in 2010. With
more projects available for launch and the kick-off of national planning
of The Outlets integrated project (Beijing Ballet Town, the first Outlets
integrated project was well received with contracted sales reached
over RMBB600 million in the first half of 2011), the Group expects the
proportion of contracted sales from regions outside Beijing and Tianjin
will continue to rise.

Beijing it=
I Tianjin K
[ Chengdu px#p
Wuxi g
Shenyang %P5
[ xian Fiikzs
[ chongging =

1H of 2011
20114 ¥4

Property Development

During the period under review, the Group and its joint ventures and
associates have completed parts of development of the following
projects, Chengdu First City, Wuxi Joyous House and Xi’an First City,
with an approximately gross floor area (“GFA”) of 305,800 sg.m.
According to the construction schedule, more GFA are expected to
be completed in the second half of 2011. It is expected that the
total planned GFA to be completed will reach 1,400,645 sg.m. by
the end of 2011, posting an increase of 97.8% as compared to 2010.
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Projects completed in the first half of 2011 Ro-F——FERIEBZHOEREEER

i
FY2011
Full Year
1H 2011 Forecast
= —B-——F
Project EHHAB i -3 EFEAE
(sq.m) (sq.m)
(7 3K) (75 K)
Xanadu, Beijing b miE IR & - 55,018
Beijing Ballet Town IEREER o A - 181,360
Beijing Caotang Project IEREEIRE — 28,535
Tianjin First City REE AR - 133,776
Tianjin Noble City RIFEAR - 24,447
Tianjin Fortune City KRB — 120,863
Chengdu First City BB & Al B BRI 178,051 191,343
Wuxi Gentle House EHEAIEN - 99,926
Wuxi Joyous House EH BRI 14,427 76,865
Xi’an First City Ptk =R=11EA 8" 113,322 273,252
Foshan Outlets Project L B3 ET IR B - 103,087
Huzhou Outlets Project N B HEHTIE B - 112,173
TOTAL &t 305,800 1,400,645

Hotel Operations

During the period under review, Holiday Inn Central Plaza kept
improving service quality, exploring customer sources and
maintaining stable operation and management. As at 30 June 2011,
revenue of Holiday Inn Central Plaza amounted to approximately
RMB46,680,000, in line with that of corresponding period in the
previous year. The average occupancy rate was approximately 68%,
an increase of five percentage points. As the proportion of revenue
derived from hotel operations continue to decrease, the Group is
considering to abandon the business of single hotel development
and operation, and gradually explore new integrated operation model
that comprises residential, commercial, hotel and other businesses.

Land Bank

As at 30 June 2011, aggregate GFA of the Group’s land bank was
9.03 million sg. m., and total saleable GFA amounted to 7.94 million
sg. m. (among which attributable GFA was 4.99 million sg. m.). The
salable GFA increased by 6.6% as compared to end of 2010
(corresponding attributable GFA increased by 13.2%). The
geographical distribution was as follow, 35.4% in Bohai Rim, 29.5%
in Mid-southwest region, 11.7% in Yangtze River Delta Region, and
23.4% in Pearl River Delta Region and Hainan area. In terms of land
use, approximately 81% is for residential projects, 17% for
commercial projects and 2% for hotels. The existing land bank is of
reasonable scale and is sufficient for the Group’s development in
the coming three to four years.
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Total
Attributable Total GFA  Saleable GFA
Interest of Land Bank  of Land Bank
Project Project Name Type it T i
HE BB EEER MERR E#H MEEE R RERR
(sq.m) (sq.m)
(F73K) (F75K)
Beijing Yuyuantan Project The Reflections Residential/Commercial 55% 5,577 4,063
EREMEER BRE FE/HE
Beijing Shilibao Project A-Z Town Residential/Commercial 100% 10,854 1,966
ItR+REEA FE/HE
Beijing North Ring World Centre Project ~ North Ring Centre Commercial 100% 10,220 8,420
FEREBEHRLIER ERP L &
Beijing Heping Lane Project Urban Town Residential/Commercial/Office 50% 29,441 22,147
ItRMFERR MYERE FE/HE/BTE
Beijing Huijialou Project Xanadu Residential/Commercial 100% 133,291 114,645
IR RERR Bk FE/HE
Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Project Ealing Residential/Commercial 95% 293,027 271,177
IEREFHEAR FHEP FE/HE
Beijing Changyang Town Project Ballet Town Residential/Commercial 99% 256,283 241,858
ItREGERR EE RN FE/HE
Beijing Miyun Project Lanyinshan Residential 100% 258,717 253,017
EtREEER BB L F=
Tianjin Banshan Project First City Residential/Commercial 55% 146,681 124,047
REMFILIER RN FE/HE
Tianjin Huaming Project Noble City Residential/Commercial 40% 191,635 191,635
REFEHRAR BB FE/HE
Tianjin Shuangang 121 Project Fortune City Residential/Commercial 55% 168,509 168,509
KEEE12178 8 BRI FE/TE
Tianjin Shuangang 122 Project A-Z Town Residential 55% 259,168 238,568
REEH1221HE F=
Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House Residential/Commercial 40% 124,336 124,336
REFEEER BERE FE/HE
Tianjin Wuqing Village Project Residential/Commercial 100% 194,625 187,171
REREBNEA FE/HE
Shenyang Shenying Road Project First City Residential/Commercial 30% 343,823 340,186
SIS HKIER B3 FE/HE
Shenyang Yinhe Wan Project Qipan Hills First Villa Residential/Commercial 50% 336,034 336,034
B HOTEE R A IL15R FE/HE
Qingdao Chengyang Project Commercial/Office 100% 229,997 184,910
EEHGEE mE/BTE
Chengdu Jianshe Road Project Chengdu A-Z Town Residential 55% 7,396 1,698
PkED R AR E IR Bk #A-Z Town F=x
Chengdu Shengli Village Road Project First City Residential/Commercial 100% 124,336 108,391
PR ED B M A I B B3 FE/HE
Chengdu Beiquan Road Project Citta Villa Residential/Commercial 55% 269,456 182,782
PKEDIE R BRI R RRT FE/HE
Chengdu SCE Project Wanjuanshan Residential/Commercial 55% 551,556 435,185
BRI RIE R Al FE/HE
Xi"an Fengcheng Road Project First City Residential/Commercial/Office/ Hotel 40% 1,221,942 980,538
FERZEWEERR Ry T/ WL/ BTE/EE
Chongging Hongensi Project Hong’en International  Residential/Commercial 50% 760,687 634,197
BEBRTHEE Living District e/ TE
BREREEE
Wuxi Dongting Project Wuxi Gentle House Residential/Commercial 100% 32,850 27,702
EHRZEER HEIBR EE/HE
Wauxi Jichang Project Wuxi Joyous House Residential/Commercial 100% 162,096 141,887
EHHISRIER HEINA EE/HE
Zhejiang Huzhou Taihu Project Residential/Commercial/ 68% 626,667 564,667
HLAM A HEE Hotel/Serviced Apartment
FE/BE/BERSE
Zhenjiang National University Residential 100% 219,363 195,838
Science Park Project £
HEIRRASRRERA
Foshan Sanshui Project Residential/Commercial 55%-68% 1,775,410 1,670,000
Bl =7KEH FE/HE
Hainan Wanning Project Residential/Commercial 55% 287,100 287,100
BRESERA FE/HE
TOTAL &t 9,031,077 7,942,574
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In the first half of 2011, the Group further developed its edges in
primary land development and successfully acquired the Wuging
Village Project Phase | in Tianjin with GFA of 190,000 sq. m. The
Group also obtained the Miyun project in Beijing through acquisition,
which the planned GFA amounted to 250,000 sqg. m. In addition,
the Group captured the opportunities of commercial property
development after the promulgation of home buying restriction and
further developed its edges in integrated operation and international
partners co-operation, it secured the new integrated projects in
Chengyang, Qingdao and Wanning, Hainan. The planned GFA of
the projects are 180,000 sg. m. and 290,000 sq. m. respectively. In
which, the Wanning project in Hainan is one of integrated projects
under Outlets product line. Currently, this product line is expanding
its national presence. Beijing, Ballet Town also under Outlets product
line, was successfully launched. The other integrated projects in
Foshan and Huzhou have also commenced construction and
expected to be launched later this year. Benefited from the Group’s
low land cost strategy, the cost of land bank has been declining. As
at 30 June 2011, the average land cost per GFA to be sold is
approximately RMB1,635 per sg. m, 6.1% lower than the RMB1,741
per sg.m as at 31 December 2010.

Human Resources

As at 30 June 2011, the Group had a professional team of 780 people
with an average age of 32.4. In terms of education level, about 13.3%
and 66.8% of the employees received master degree or above and
undergraduate respectively. Of the total number of staff, employees
at the middle level accounted for 27.6% and those at senior level
accounted for 4.4%.

In the first half of 2011, the Group continued a series of all round
professional training on property development, which was first
launched in 2010, for general manager and department heads in
first-tier cities and a total of 52 employees participated in the training.
In addition, the Group organized management from middle to senior
level to attend training on the management practice for leading
property enterprises to enhance their management skill, while offered
training to junior managers in strengthening their execution capability.
As at 30 June 2011, the Group provided management skill training
to middle and senior management and offered a series of professional
and technical training programmes with the total training hours
reaching 4,584 hours.

31 December 2010
201012 A31H
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Review and Prospects

Analysis on Business Environment

Overview of China’s Property Market

Despite a slowdown in economic growth and export growth along
with the rapid inflation in the first half of 2011, Chinese economy
remained strong and robust. The downward adjustment of certain
economic indicators was the result of the implementation of austerity
measures by the central government. However, the economy is
shifting from the haste government-stimulated growth to autonomous
and progressive changes.

China’s GDP in the first half of 2011 amounted to RMB20,445.9
billion, representing a year-on-year growth of 9.6% and a decrease
of 0.5 percentage points as compared to the corresponding period
in the previous year. Growth of fixed assets investment continued to
achieve a rapid growth. Aggregate amount of fixed assets investment
totaled to RMB12,456.7 billion, a year-on-year growth of 25.6%. In
the first half of 2011, per capita disposable income of urban and
rural residents amounted to RMB12,076; of which per capita
disposable income of urban residents reached to RMB11,041,
representing a year-on-year growth of 13.2% as compared to the
same period last year. The actual growth was 7.6% after taking into
account of pricing factor.

During the period, the investment of property development in China
amounted to RMB2,625 billion, up 32.9% year-on-year. Of which,
investment for residential projects amounted to RMB1,864.1 billion,
up 36.1% year-on-year. A total of 444.19 million sg.m of commodity
housing were sold in China, representing a year-on-year increase of
12.9%. Among which, total area sold for residential properties posted
an increase of 12.1%. The capital resources of property developers
totaled RMB4,099.1 billion this year, up 21.6% year-on-year. In June,
the Real Estate Climate Index was 101.75. The skyrocketing of
property prices from investment and speculative demand were under
control and increment in property prices in most cities kept slowing
down.

The central and local government promulgated double measures to
curb investment demands for commodity housing and strengthen
the supply of government subsidized housing in the first half of 2011.
Over 40 cities implemented home buying restriction and over 600
cities announced their property price targets. Shanghai and
Chongaing started trialing for property tax. Aligned with the tightening
monetary policy, the multiple raising of reserve requirement ratio and
interest rate continued to restrain capital liquidity. To ensure the
completion of 10 million units of government subsidized housing,
the central government implemented a series of measures covering
land, capital and system, to separate the land using for government
subsidized housing, to increase investment on construction as well
as to implement responsibility system and disclosure of construction
details to public. Optimize the open auction system to ensure the
land supply for government subsidized housing on one hand and
increase the land supply for commodity housing on the other.

In terms of nationwide view, property market remained active with
strong demands, though both figures for residential sales and newly
commenced construction units showed a slowdown signal, the
growth was still positive. In addition, the phenomenon of the surge
in property price became under control as a result of the
implementation of captioned measures. In June 2011, residential
property price for 70 medium to large cities grew by less than 0.5%
as compared to the figure in May, while 12 cities reported a month-
on-month decrease, 14 cities maintained at a similar level, and 53
cities had recorded a lower growth rate than January in this year.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011
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In terms of geographical presence, the market focus is gradually
shifting from first and second-tier cities to other cities. In the first
half of the year, the proportion of sales areas in first-tier cities of
China market continued to decline, accounting for 4.6%, representing
a decrease of 0.1 percentage points year-on-year. The proportion of
sales area in second-tier and third-tier cities accounted for 30.2%
and 65.2% respectively, representing a decrease of 0.26 percentage
points and an increase of 0.36 percentage points year-on-year. The
market concentration among property developers was significantly
enhanced during the period. Top 10 and top 20 property developers
in China contributed 13.5% and 18% of total sales in China, up 3.3
percentage points and 3.6 percentage points from that of 2010. As
the market concentration has gradually enhanced, property
developers should explore their own strengths and mitigate
operational risk by increasing sales scale with strong support from
their solid foundation.

In the first half of 2011, economic growth in cities where the Group
has established market presence was in good shape in general,
income of residents posted a significant growth. Both fixed assets
investment and investment in property sector grew rapidly. For those
first- tier cities which suffered larger impact on the implementation
of austerity measure, market demand dropped abruptly, while there
was a release of market demand in second-tier and third-tier cities
due to a relatively minor impact. In the meantime, having greater
market potential, better sales performance was achieved in western
region of China.

(Source: National Bureau of Statistic, National Reform and Development
Commission)
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Overview of Beijing Property Market

In the first half of 2011, the investment of property development in
Beijing amounted to RMB123.95 billion, representing a slightly
increase of 3.7% year-on-year. Sales area of commodity housing
reached 5.55 million sg.m, dropping 18.4% year-on-year. Of which,
sales area of commodity residential housing amounted to 3.892
million sg.m, representing a year-on-year decrease of 19.8%. In June,
the price index of newly built residential properties increased 2.2%
year-on-year, but kept stable to that of May. Second-hand residential
properties’ price index increased 1.4% year-on-year, but showed a
decrease of 0.1% as compared to that of May. As at 30 June, the
total inventory of residential property amounted to 108,760 units,
stood at a relatively high level in history, which created pressure on
property price in the second half year of 2011.

Beijng continues to attain the long-term goal of developing a “World
Class City”, and took this as an opportunity to speed up the
construction of an “International Business Center” and a “World-
class tourist city”. The new positioning and functions of the city will
bring opportunities to the development of integrated property projects
in long run particularly in business/commercial and tourist usages.
In terms of city structure, Beijing will continue to have the “urban
area- satellite city — town center — standard county” four-level urban
structure system with the “twin-axis — twin-belt — multi-centers”
urban structure. Beijing will focus on developing 11 new cities
including Fangshan, Miyun, Daxin and etc. These new cities serve
the functions of diversifying the highly dense population and job
functions in Beijing city center and integrating new industries,
gradually creating economies of scale and benefits of centralization.
Under the backdrop of aiming to become a “World Class City” in
long-term and focusing on developing “New Cities” in urban
development, the Group’s expansion to urban new districts including
Fangshan and Miyun, together with the new business model of
developing the Outlet Urban Complex will be very promising.

(Source: Beijing Statistics Bureau, Beijing Municipal Commission of
Development and Reform, www.bjfdc.gov.cn)

Overview of Tianjin Property Market

In the first half of 2011, under the restriction measures, Tianjin
property market showed a steadily downward trend. Sales volume
of commodity housing decreased 17.43%, compared with the figure
in the second half of 2010. Average selling price was at RMB9,898
per sg.m which was maintained at a similar level in the second half
of 2010, representing a half-on-half decrease of 0.85%. Compared
with the first half of 2010, sales volume was up 4.93% while average
selling price increased 5.11%. In which, the overall sales volume of

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011
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commodity housing decreased, representing a decrease of 18.2%
compared with the figure in the second half of 2010. Sales volume
in six urban districts dropped substantially, Binghai Binhai new zone
and suburban areas had relatively stronger defensive capabilities.
Located on the prime location of Beijing-Tianjin corridor and with
low entry barrier of RMBO0.4 million to reside in Tianjin, Wuging district
was well received by the market and achieved the highest sales
volume among the suburban areas in the first half of 2011.

Tianjin is the economic center of the Bohai Rim, the State Council
has approved the overall development plan of Tianjin city, clearly
positioning the city as an international harbor city, the economic
center of northern China and an eco-city. Along with the
comprehensive redevelopment of Haihe downtown and the national
strategy to further development of the Binhai new zone, Tianjin is
gradually becoming a dual-core city layout with the main center of
downtown and the sub-center of Binhai new zone. The strategy of
“Wuging new city — City Centre — Binhai New District” as the main
axis of urban development not only provides a room for long-term
urban development, but also important opportunities to the
development of Wuging new district and Binhai new zone. In terms
of regional economic cooperation, Tianjin will be developed along
with the Beijng-Tianjin-Tanggu Expressway, strengthening the
industrial division of labor and collaboration with the Eastern Beijing.
The urban expansion and further regional economic cooperation of
Tianjin will be the long-term support to the property projects in Tianjin
new districts.

(Sources: Tianjin Statistics Bureau and Soufang Index Research Institute)
Overview of Shenyang Property Market

In the first half of 2011, Shenyang property market showed a growth
and an overall balance in both supply and demand. Sales area of
commodity housing in Shenyang in the first half of 2011 amounted
to 7.995 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year increase of
56.98%. In which, sales of commodity housing achieved 6.5944
million sq.m, representing a year-on-year increase of 54.57%. In
June, average selling price of commodity residential housing was
RMB6,385 per sg.m, representing an increase of 1.71% as compared
to the figure in June.

Shenyang is one of China’s large cities and important industrial bases,
and an economic, cultural, financial and transportation center of the
Northeast China. The future development for Shenyang will make
full use of the national supportive policy on Shenyang national new
industrialization comprehensive ancillary reform pilot area, leveraging
on the city-town development, strengthening the support and driving
force of transportation and infrastructure corridor, guiding the evenly
distribution of industry and population, building a “multi-center and
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networked” new layout of urban development, forming a core
downtown and six urban development axes of Shenyang-Dalian,
Shenyang-Shandong, Shenyang-Benxi, Shenyang-Tieling,
Shenyang-Fushun and Shenyang-Fuxin. From the regional
cooperation perspective, the complementary development among
three northeastern provinces will benefit the development of inter-
city ecosystem construction. Shenyang as a key subsystem of the
ecosystem will enjoy a priority in development, further promoting
the development of the property market in Shenyang.

(Sources: Shenyang Statistics Bureau and China Index Research Institute)
Overview of Chengdu Property Market

Chengdu property market performed stable in the first half of 2011,
notwithstanding the impact from the austerity measures like home
buying restriction, price limitation and credit tightening. Property sales
and average selling price maintained a stable growing trend,
demonstrating the immense potential of Chengdu as the leader
among the second-tier cities in Western China. During January to
May 2011, the total transaction areas of commodity housing in
Chengdu urban area reached 4.853 milllon sg. m, up 16.74% year-
on-year. In June, the price of newly constructed commodity
residential housing was up 3.6% year-on-year, down 0.1% as
compared to the figure in May. Under the circumstances of high
property prices in first-tier cities, more outside residents will boost
the property demand in Chengdu, coupled with the significant
increase in the GFA transaction prices of residential usage land plots
in Chengdu urban area in 2010, the lowering in selling prices from
the supply side will unlikely to happen. It is expected that there will
be strong demand and supply as well as the stable growth in property
prices in the second half of 2011.

Chengdu is one of cities in Western China with potential huge
demand and has a radiating and significant impact to its surrounding
areas. Chengdu has proposed to build a “world class modern garden
city” as its strategic development target, including a world class
international city, a modern super city center in Western China and
an urban-rural integrated garden city. Based on this concept of urban
development, Chengdu will focus on integrating the first inner circle
of old city and the second inner circle of suburban districts, forming
a new major urban area of Chengdu. With the expansion of the new
core urban area, it will have a positive impact to the Chengdu property
market development and in particular in the suburban areas.

(Sources: Statistics Bureau of Chengdu, China Index Research Institution)
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Overview of Chongging Property Market

In early 2011, property tax was imposed to commodity residential
housing with total gross floor areas over 144 sg.m. in Chongging.
Affected by the policies like property tax and home buying restriction,
the transaction volume of commodity housing decreased significantly.
The transaction GFA in urban area reached 7.0187 million sg. m,
down 29% year-on-year. Average transaction price of commodity
housing reached RMB7,056 per sg. m, in the first half year of 2011,
up RMB1,748 per sg. m as compared with RMB5,308 per sg. m
last year. During January to May, the prices stood at a relatively high
level but the growth rate slowed down, demonstrating the impacts
from the austerity measures. In June, average transaction price of
commodity housing in urban area was RMB7,347 per sq. m, down
RMB211 per sg. m or 2.87% from May.

Chonggqing is one of China’s municipal cities, a state-level historical
and cultural city, an important industrial city in China and the largest
economic center of Southwest China and the upper stream of
Yangtze River Delta. According to the “National Urban Township
System Plans” by Department of Urban and Rural Construction,
Chongaing is the only city in the Midwest China chosen as one of
the top five central cities. “Liangjiang New Area”, being the only state-
level development district in inland region, has been formally written
into the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan”. The total covering area of the
western region reaches 680 million square kilometers, the expectation
of rapid industrial development and influx of working population in
future will drive the growing demand for property.

(Sources: Chongqing Statistics Bureau and China Index Research Institution)
Overview of Xi‘an Property Market

The average transaction price of Xi’an increased in the first half of
2011 except in June under a series of austerity measures, while the
transaction area continued to increase. Transaction area of the
commodity residential housing reached 4.9049 millon sg. m, up 14%
year-on-year. Average transaction price of commodity residential
housing reached RMB6,390 per sg.m., up 14% year-on-year. As a
large volume of transaction of economic housing and promotion
activities from property developers, there was a decline in the
transaction prices of residential properties but the transaction volume
remained in an upward trend.

Xi’an is the central city of the Western Development and the
“Guanzhong-Tianshui Economic Zone”, a famous ancient city. In
“Guanzhong-Tianshui Economic Zone Development Plan”, which was
approved by the State Council in 2009, it requests the development
of Xi'an into a world class metropolis. In 2011, the Xixian New District
covering Xi’an and Xianyang was formally upgraded to the fourth
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sub-provincial new district in China. According to the plan, the land
for construction usage of Xixian New District will reach 160 square
kilometers in 2015 and reach 272 square kilometers in 2020. Under
the backdrop of national strategy, the land issues used to limit Xi’an’s
development will be solved effectively. The city scale, urban
population, industrial structure, and infrastructure of Xi’an in the next
decade will be fully upgraded. The economic improvement and
development of new industries will drive the development of complex
property and residential property.

(Sources: Xi’an Statistics Bureau and China Index Research Institution)
Overview of Qingdao Property Market

Qingdao property market experienced a downturn in the beginning
of first half of 2011, followed by a gradual rebound in later stage. A
total of 4.72 million sg.m of commodity housing were sold in the first
half, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.2%. Selling price of
residential housing amounted to RMB7,062 per sq.m, posting a slight
increase as compared to corresponding period of the previous year.
However, due to the impact of the austerity measures and the
traditional low season, there was a substantial decline in both
transaction volume and selling price of commodity residential
housing. Along with the release from solid demand since February,
transaction volume had kept going up for consecutive five months.
The increase in housing supply and the opening of Jiaozhou Bay
Cross-Harbour Bridge also brought the positive effect to the
transaction volume growth.

Qingdao is the major coastal city of the eastern region, as well as
the international harbor city and the coastal resort city. With the State
Council approved the development plan of Shandong Peninsula
Economic Zone, Qingdao is heading towards its goal of being the
core area of the economic zone with international urban construction
and livable urban development. In June, following the completion
and opening of the Jiaozhou Bay Cross-Harbour Bridge, all major
cities in Shandong Peninsula fell into an economic circle within one-
hour drive way, further enhancing the position of Qingdao as a
regional centre. Qingdao will become the core area of Jiaozhou Bay
region, focusing on district development with a well-connected
network among all districts, a major city will be developed in the
form of “Ring bay, District Patten and Multi-level”.

(Sources: Statistics Bureau of Qingdao, China Index Research Institution)
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Overview of Wuxi Property Market

In the first half of 2011, under the implementation of new austerity
measures, demands for speculation and investment on residential
property in Wuxi have withdrew from the market since later February.
Transaction volume of property market remained at the low level
with an apparent decline as compared to the corresponding period
last year, while the pace of new commodity housing supply was still
rapid. Property price kept stable in general and the up-rising trend
was under control. Sales area of commodity housing during January
to June reached 2.19 million sg. m, posting a decrease of 25.91%
year-on-year. Of which, sales area of commodity housing in Jiangyin
amounted to 830,000 sqg. m, representing a drop of 4% year-on-
year, the district with the mildest decrease in transaction volume
among Wuxi region. In the first half of 2011, average selling price of
commodity housing in Wuxi was RMB8,643 per sq. m, up 2.67%
year-on-year. It is expected that the new commodity housing supply
will be slow down in the second half of 2011, coupled with the larger
decline in selling price, the transaction volume will keep at a relative
low level.

Wuxi is one of the core cities in Yangtze River Delta Region and an
important tourist city renowned of its national historical and cultural
element. During the period under review, Wuxi government proposed
a comprehensive concept of developing the “urban garden city”
through the combination of two single features into one integrated
city. In terms of city structure, Wuxi major urban area will be the
main center while Jiangyin and Yixi districts will be the sub-center.
With Yangtze River waterway, Yangjiang Highway, Huning line,
Xicheng Highway, Xicheng Canel as the major transportation routes,
top priority will be given to the development of the central district
among three-core areas of trading and business center in old urban
district, Taihu new town business center and Lihu resort center. In
terms of the urban city scale, the population in urban district should
be controlled under 2 million before 2020 and land for property
construction should be restricted within 190 sqg. km The development
model with comprehensive urbanization, urban town center
optimization and the urbanization of new emerging district will provide
strong support for Wuxi property development in future.

(Sources: Statistics Bureau of Wuxi)
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Overview of Zhenjiang Property Market

In the first half of 2011, under the impact of austerity measures,
selling price of commodity residential housing in Zhenjiang saw an
increase while sales volume is decline. Sales area of commodity
residential housing in Zhenjiang in the first half of 2011 reached
750,000 sg. m, down by 20.25% year-on-year. Average selling price
was RMB8,437 per sq. m, up 38.4% year-on-year.

Zhenjiang is an important harbor of Yangtze River Delta Region, as well
as the tourist and regional central city. Relying on its beautiful natural
landscape, Zhenjiang proposed the concept of “Landscape Garden
City” for its positioning. According to this development concept,
Zhenjiang will further optimize its city structure to appeal as a urban
shape with the features of “A city with two wings” and “Southern city
Northern water”. During the period, the completion of Beijing-Shanghai
high-speed railway has further strengthened the competitive edges of
Zhenijiang of being the central city of urban zone of Nanjing and Yangtze
River Delta Region, which become an important factor in drivingthe
growth of property development within the region.

Overview of Huzhou Property Market

Amidst minor impact of austerity measures, the property market of
Huzhou as well as the property selling price in the first half of 2011
remained stable, with a slowdown in growth rate. Sales area of
commodity residential housing in Huzhou for the first half of 2011
reached 1,020,000 sg. m, up 2.7% year-on-year, average selling
price was RMB6,101 per sg. m, up 7.6% year-on-year. Against the
backdrop of the implementation of austerity measures, the proportion
of solid demand from the home buyers will increase gradually. It is
expected that the low priced products will be the future development
trend of Huzhou property market.

Huzhou is located at the junction of Zhejiang, Jiangsu and Anhui
province, and adjacent to Shanghai. Being the central city of the south-
side of Taihu at the northern Zhejiang, Huzhou has its prominent
advantage. During the period, Zhejiang Urban and Rural System
Planning (2011-2020) was approved, Huzhou was positioned as the
international gateway to participate the international competition. In the
future, the high speed railway will build a new railway between Shanghai
and Huzhou. Huzhou will be situated within the “Half-hour Economic
Circle of Shanghai and Hangzhou”. Taihu National Tourism Vacation
Zone is the focus of the development of a “Modern Ecological Lakeside
City” in Huzhou. With further strengthening of a close relation with the
core cities in Yangtze River Delta Region and the development of Taihu
National Tourism Vacation Zone, it will create two major driving forces
for Huzhou property development.

(Sources: Statistics Bureau of Huzhou)
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Overview of Foshan Property Market

The property market of Foshan showed a sign of volume reduction
and stable price in the first half of 2011. Sales area of newly
completed commodity residential housing increased 56.4% year-
on-year in the first quarter of 2011, but it decreased by 25.3% year-
on-year to 951,700 sg.m in April and May after promulgating the
home buying restriction. Though sales volume recorded a drop, the
overall selling price was relatively stable. During January to May,
average selling price of newly completed residential housing was
RMB8,263 per sg. m, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.4%
from last year’s RMB7,765 per sq. m. Meanwhile, average selling
price was RMB8,322 per sq.m during April to May.

Foshan is an important part of Guangzhou-Foshan urban zone in Pearl
River Delta Region, which is also a gateway from the western coastal
of Guangdong Province towards Guangzhou. With the promulgation of
Guangzhou-Foshan Integrated Urban Development Planning <& 3 [7]
WAL E R R E]), an integrated urban development approach will then
be further implemented. Guangzhou and Foshan will develop and
complement each other with their competitive strengths. Investment
on the infrastructure among two cities will further be increased. In terms
of city structure, “2+5 districts” will be formed with the Central district
and Daliangronggui district as the core, promoting Shishan district, Xinan
district, Xijiang district, Dali district and Jiujianglongjiang district to
undergo comprehensive development. In view of long term
development, it is expected that there will be 13.50 million populations
in Foshan, the urbanization level will reach 85%-90%. The Guangzhou-
Foshan Integrated Urban Development has been implemented gradually,
resulting in the continued growth of the urbanization level. The business
strategy of combining development of urban core district and emerging
district, it will able to push up the long term demand of Foshan property
effectively and enhance its radiation effect to the surrounding areas.

(Sources: Foshan Municipal Construction Bureau)
Overview of Hainan Property Market

With the implementation of home buying restriction in Haikou and
Sanya commenced in February and March this year, sales volume
of property housing decreased abruptly. Sales area of commodity
housing amounted to 3.6307 million sg. m, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 17.4%. Average selling price was RMB9,998 per
sg. M, up 7.6% year-on-year. The proportion of demand from
investors for leisure or retirement is relatively high within Hainan
property market, restricting a larger number of home purchasing
demands from outside Hainan, which led to the substantial decline
in the sales volume. In terms of the region, home purchasing
restriction has brought new development opportunity for those
second and third tier cities such as Wenchang and other cities in
western region.
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Hainan is the largest special economic zone and the only tropical
island province in China. “Guideline of Hainan International Tourist
Island Development Plan” has been approved by the State Council
in 2010, which proposed to develop Hainan as the world-class tourist
and leisure destination with the focus on the development of tourism
and property industries. The development of tourism will not only
drive off the huge demand for off-island investment, but also increase
the spending power of local residents, so as to improve the sustained
needs.

(Sources: Statistics Bureau of Hainan)

Prospects

Looking ahead, the central government has given a strong signal to
the market that the property austerity measures will not be relaxed
in the second half of 2011. It will continue to exert efforts in controlling
target property price, intensifying the implementation of the austerity
measures to cities with a sharp increase in property price, and
accelerate the construction of government subsidized housing. For
the central government, the effect of property price control will be
the key assessment indicator of the local government’s performance.
In addition, supply and demand situation remains to be the
dominating factor in the market, it is highly possible that the potential
supply will increase further across the nation during the second half
of 2011 and the first half of 2012. The competition will become more
intensive and it is a golden opportunity for the property developers
with ample cash flow to capture the growth during the market
consolidation.

As such, the Group will continue to adopt the following strategies in
the second half of 2011:

o Aim to accelerate asset turnover and increase market share.
Adopt a customer-oriented approach and standardize
product operation. Fully step up the development of existing
projects and speed up the project launch. With the provision
of diversified product mix with competitive pricing, the Group
stays abreast with market demand and enlarges sales scale,
so as to further expand its operation scale;

o Adhere to integrated operations model, implement
differentiation competition strategy, upgrade innovative
business model and strengthen the financial stability. Riding
on the edges of three mature business lines, namely
traditional residential development, new integrated residential
projects and primary land development, so as to proactively
accumulate quality land bank resources;

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011

BERRBERANKESRME -—NATEIRSE
e —E-TF(EHERKESERERREM
2)BREKREME  REFEEBERAER R
BESKEERIRER O - ERBERNIEE B
WESEX - REXNER-—ITEASHHEIMNEE
EEMNEARFTR ST EBREALMERAEE
e REREUFRNSEREN -

(BRI - BEEREB)

RE

“E—FTHF FHERZEBRRTEME -+
RBUFEKETIHER T BAUNGES - THFHE
MENHBEMAFEZEFBER - MAHHBIFE
ERBRBEHORBERAZENE - ARMRE
BEER - LHEEEZHAR  BRATRER
T BUFROFIZS o pEoh - mEHRNERETEE
B SETHFERAF X F2ESENEEHRE
ERARRABERFMN - HFHEMHR - B2 TR
B 5 0 R R B AR SR AV AP B A o

Al EEEE T —E N ERERETATE
R BLRE -

© LREEE  RARERRE  LEFEX
RER - RAEEESRECES - 2T
REAEA AR BRAEREY B
ENZ T ESBERRAERFNNTH
B BRBRE - 2HEE - FERK
ARBERM

. BREGEEE  BERER(CHBRFRE - 8
MEBRRRN  BEMBRENSH B
REEHRE  TEEXSABRENLIINH
B FRANEBRES  BEHEEEL
HWEIR



® Management Discussion and Analysis
CEERETE

Promote innovate capital operation model, explore the multi-
level of domestic and foreign financing channels and consider
to set up property investment fund. By strengthening long-
term cooperation with strategic partners, optimizing the debt
structure and enriching capital source, the Group is capable
to achieve sufficient capital resources through developing
various financing channels which are compatible to its
different business model;

Enhance management reform and maximize the advantage
of centralized strategic decision-making, resources allocation
and configuration at headquarters level. Improve operation
value and the all-round management system, and strengthen
operation capability of city companies, so as to build a strong
team for regional expansion to achieve the synergies between
scale expansion and growth efficiency, bringing the long-term
values to the shareholders

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Changes in Accounting Standard

Pursuant to the “Consultation Conclusion on Acceptance of
Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland
Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in
Hong Kong” issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in December 2010, Mainland incorporated issuers
are allowed to prepare financial statements in accordance
with China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
(“CAS”).

The net assets as at 31 December 2010 of the Group
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) are RMB7,669,514,000 and the net
assets prepared in accordance with CAS are
RMB7,629,946,000 and the difference is RMB39,568,000.
The different measurement for investment properties held by
associates leads to the above GAAP difference. Under HKAS
and CAS, the Group adopted the fair value model and cost
model respectively. There is no difference in net profit for the
year ended 31 December 2010 which is prepared by both
standards.

The interim financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2011 and comparative figures have been prepared
accordance with CAS.

BT EREFEER - RRZERAIEAINE
BEE MRR{IEHINEES - hog s
BaEBHNRBEaE  BLaGEsE 2
BEEERR - B ETREBERAETER
BEEE REENRFERREHESR
=4

RABRBEEREE  BHEAEMEBRAREK
BRGEERLE T ENES - T T=EE
BEMDBIBEER - RIMTARNE
RS TEBRAMBEEREN - BHMR
BiER AR ESIE RN RIEHR - BRREIE
RAEER -

ERTERIRE

REBEEHAZIMBERRRN T —FF
TAMTENERERETELTHA
MRS A BSR A A e & 5T w2
VAR B PR R 3 & 5T B 38 755 T B 7 R 4B )
EFFEES R MR BT ARR
R R G R R HIM BREK -

MN-E-ZTE+-A=+—-BAREEREL
HRTFEERBARYT?,669,514,0007T *
RPESHTEAMRINBRTFEEAARE
7,629,946,0007T ' HHESBEAARKE
39,568,0007T ° Fill =R F ERMEIE
BAENREEREET B NERFIHR
EHER T HBNRBR AR BEAERAEN
ATEEERK BREEHALEE_T T
FEFHNHESE -

AEEBE—T——F A NA=1THILAEA
HIFEN R AV BER (BRLLFREERET)
RRPBE SRR -

—E—FRURE | HABERBARAT

21



[ Management Discussion and Analysis
CEERELE M

22

2.

Revenue and Operating Results

In the first half of 2011, the turnover of the Group was
approximately RMB1,657,787,000 (2010:
RMB2,724,235,000), representing a decrease of 39% from
the year 2010. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to
the decrease in projects completed in the first half of 2011.

In the first half of 2011, the Group achieved a gross margin
after business tax of approximately 53%, representing an
increase when comparing with 31% in the first half of last
year, which was mainly attributable from some higher gross
profit margin projects in Beijing region such as Xanadu and
the Reflections and revenue in Beijing region accounted for
90% of total revenue in the first half of 2011.

In the first half of 2011, operating profit of the Group was
approximately RMB504,647,000 (2010: RMB602,286,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 16% compared to
the first half of 2010.

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability
Position

During the period under review, the Group maintained a
healthy liquidity position and a reasonable appropriation of
financial resources. As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s total
assets were RMB35,461,572,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB30,513,787,000) and non-current assets were
RMB3,963,174,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB3,591,357,000); and the total liabilities were
RMB27,964,611,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB22,883,841,000) of which, current liabilities were
RMB19,031,785,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB15,270,411,000) and non-current liabilities were
RMB8,932,826,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB7,613,430,000), and the shareholders’ equity reached
RMB7,496,961,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB7,629,946,000).

The Group is of sound liquidity and solvency. Current ratio of
the Group as at 30 June 2011 was 1.66 (31 December 2010:
1.76).
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As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s cash and bank deposits
(including restricted bank deposits) amounted to
RMB9,463,016,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB8,460,068,000), which represented sufficient cash flow
for operations.

Bank borrowings and bond of the Group as at 30 June 2011
amounted to RMB12,264,335,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB9,548,391,000), of which the long-term borrowings and
bond amounted to RMB8,766,035,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB7,468,391,000), which were mainly used to meet the
capital requirements of the Group’s property development
projects.

As at 30 June 2011, most of the Group’s bank borrowings
came from banks in the PRC and repaid in RMB and bank
borrowings of USD46,600,000 (approximately
RMB302,270,000) came from overseas and repaid in USD.
Most of the Group’s long-term bank borrowings are granted
on a floating rate basis.

In February 2011, BECL Investment Holding Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) has issued a 3 year
corporate bond of RMB1,150,000,000 with coupon rate of
4.75% and the bond is guaranteed by the Group.

As at 30 June 2011, the Company’s net gearing ratio was
55% (31 December 2010: 21%). The gearing ratio of the
Company is calculated by the interest-bearing liabilities net
of net cash and bank balances and then divided by total
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company.

Changes in Major Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

During the period, the Group has acquired 100% equity
interest in Beijing Xinbocheng Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.

During the period, the Group has acquired 100% interest in
AG Wuxi Residential SRL, which in turn holds 40% interest
in Jiangsu Capital Real Estate Development Limited. After
the acquisition, the Group hold 100% equity interest in AG
Wuxi Residential SRL and Jiangsu Capital Real Estate
Development Limited.
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During the period, the Group has formed a joint venture BCL
Jiaming New Town Investment and Development Ltd. (& &l
= ST WUE IR A 3 B B TR A 7)) with Beijing Jiaming Real
Estate Development Ltd. Qt R = FE W EREFRE T A
A]) and each holds 50% equity interest.

During the period, Guangdong Shouxin Xinnong Investment
and Development Ltd. (ER EEHMEREEERER A A),
Beijing Century Yinghua Retail Management Ltd. (1t &ttt 42
HEEEEIE AR A F) and the Group has acquired 100%
equity interest in Beijing Outlet Innovation Retail Management
Ltd. JE R B AIFT R £ B IE AR 2 F)) and make a capital
contribution in accordance with its respective interest. After
that, the Group has 38% equity interest in Beijing Outlet
Innovation Retail Management Ltd. (1t R B 3K Al 3 ¥ & 12
BIRAR).

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time
Deposits

As at 30 June 2011, the Group did not have any deposits
under trusts in financial institutions in the PRC and Hong
Kong. All of the Group’s cash was held in commercial banks
in the PRC and Hong Kong in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. The Group has no bank deposits which
are not recoverable upon maturity.

Secured Borrowings

As at 30 June 2011, bank borrowings of RMB3,550,000,000
(31 December 2010: RMB3,550,000,000) were secured by
rights to yields on certain land use rights (gains on transfer
of the land use rights or other profit obtained from use of the
related land use rights).

As at 30 June 2011, bank borrowings of RMB2,932,680,000
(31 December 2010: RMB2,211,560,000) were secured by
certain properties under development.

As at 30 June 2011, bank borrowings of RMB798,757,000
(31 December 2010: RMB240,000,000) were secured by
hotel properties and the land use rights.
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As at 30 June 2011, trust loans of RMB700,000,000
(31 December 2010: RMB700,000,000) were secured by
receivables of the Company due from its subsidiaries and
guarantee by the Company; trust loans of RMB825,000,000
(31 December 2010: RMB825,000,000) were secured by
equity interest of a subsidiary owned by the Company; trust
loans of RMB750,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB750,000,000) were secured by certain properties for sale
owned by the Group and trust loans of RMB282,620,000
(81 December 2010: RMB282,620,000) were guaranteed by
a third party.

As at 30 June 2011, bank borrowing of RMB57,500,000
(31 December 2010: Nil) was secured by primary land
development rights and its corresponding equity and income
right interest.

Corporate Bonds

As at 30 June 2011, there were no early redemption of the
corporate bonds of RMB2,131,765,000 in value issued by
the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain purchasers
of its properties and provided guarantees to secure the
repayment obligations of such purchasers. The outstanding
balances of guarantees amounted to RMB3,427,108,000 as
at 30 June 2011 (31 December 2010: RMB2,973,167,000).

Such guarantees will terminate upon (i) the issuance of the
real estate ownership certificate which will generally be
available within six months to two years after the Group deliver
possession of the relevant property to its purchasers; (i) the
completion of the mortgage registration; and (jii) the issuance
of the real estate miscellaneous right certificate relating to
the relevant property.

As at 30 June 2011, other than guarantees provided for long
term bank borrowings of RMB906,013,000 (31 December
2010: RMB700,000,000) and guarantee provided for BECL
Investment Holding Limited for the issuance of corporate
bond of RMB1,150,000,000, the Group had no material
external guarantee.
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Share Capital ;.

As of 30 June 2011, there was a total issued share capital of AARR-_E——FXNAZTHHBEEITRAS
2,027,960,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which include: 2,027,960,0000%}% 15 + EHE1F

Approximate

percentages

Number of Shares of share capital

RBER BABAE G

Domestic Shares W& R 649,205,700 32.01%
Non-H Foreign Shares FEHARINE IR 357,998,300 17.65%
H Shares HA% 1,020,756,000 50.34%
2,027,960,000 100%

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in FERFFRIBR
Shares

So far as is known to any directors of the Company, as of 30 June AARR_ZE——FXA=1+H  REMNEEH
2011, the following parties (other than the directors or chief M RIALTWERRARZEFTHESREREAS)
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the RARERMN RBBEROD P HEEBEREESNEE
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be TEOIXVER 2 R3D MG AR AR ZERMIKE - K
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 EESRHEERENSEMNTREMER TEAER
of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in EAEMKERARIRRARE LIRR 2 A EBI A
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital ZTH{EI0%HIA L -

carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of

any other members of the Group:

Approximate percentages in Approximate percentages in
relevant class of shares (%) total issued share capital (%)
HERERIRG ZBHAD L (%) U3 REGE evd SERLAV)
Number of Shares
Name of directly and Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
shareholders indirectly held Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
BRREELR
REA® ZBBEA RHER ERER BRER BEEY ERRR BRER EREH
Capital Group 924,441,900 1 Non-fisted Shares 30.88 60.90 91.78 15,34 30.25 45,58
IREBEEERERLA FEMED  (ongpostion)  (long postion) (long position) ~ (long posttion)
(long posttion) (f8) (f8) (f8) (f8)
(#8)
32,436,000 1 H Shares - 322 322 - 1.60 1.60
Hik (long position) (long posttion)
(#8) (#8)
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Approximate percentages in Approximate percentages in
relevant class of shares (%) total issued share capital (%)
EEBERIRG 2B A (%) HEBEROREZBHEIL(%)
Number of Shares
Name of directly and Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
shareholders indirectly held Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
BRREERR
REA® ZRBEA R &5 BEERER BEER EEAY ERER BEER Bzl
Bejiing Sunshine Real Estate 322,664,800 @ Non-fisted Shares 47 21.83 32.04 2.34 13.57 15.91
Comprehensive FETRE  (ongposition)  (long position) (long posttion) ~ (long postion)
Development Company (t72) (f8) (f8) (f8)
IRBARREGARELA
32,436,000 @ H Shares - 322 322 - 1.60 1.60
Rk (long posttion) (long position)
(i#8) (i#8)
Beiing Capital Sunshine 275,236,200 © Non-listed Shares - 21.33 21.33 - 13.57 13.57
Real Estate Development FETRS (long position) (long position)
Co,, Lid. (#8) (#8)
IREEEERE
ERERAT 32,436,000 @ H Shares - 322 322 - 1.60 1.60
Hik (long posttion) (long posttion)
(#8) (#8)
Beijing Capital Technology 172,006,700 Non-fisted Shares 17.08 - 17.08 8.48 - 8.48
Investment Ltd. FETEBD  (ong postiion) (long posttion)
IREEREREERAA (#8) (#8
Beiing Shou Chuang Jian 118,747,600 Non-fisted Shares 11.79 - 1.79 5.86 - 5.86
She Co., Lid. EEMRE  (ong postion) (long position)
IREHRRERAR (2) (8
China Resource Products 275,236,200 Non-listed Shares 21.33 - 21.33 13.57 - 13.57
Limited EEWRE  (ong postion) (long posttion)
HENEERAR (#8) (8
32,436,000 H Shares 348 - 322 175 - 1.60
Hik (long posttion) (long position)
(#8) (i78)
Yieldwell International 82,762,100 Non-listed Shares 8.22 - 8.22 4.08 - 4.08
Enterprise Limited EEMRE  (ong postion) (long position)
EEERAZERAA (2) (8
Fexi Holdings Limited 82,762,100 Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4.08 4.08
ELmRR (long position) (long posttion)
(#8) (#8)
Chung Pok Ying 82,762,100 & Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 408 408
BB E ) (long position) (long posttion)
(i#8) (i#8)
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Approximate percentages in Approximate percentages in
relevant class of shares (%) total issued share capital (%)
EEBERIRG ZBHAD (%) H2HCRARAZBNEA (%)
Number of Shares
Name of directly and Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
shareholders indirectly held Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
BRREERR
kR2% ZRBEA RHER EERER BEER EEAY ERES BiEs Bzl
Reco Pearl Private Limited 165,070,000 H Shares 16.17 - 16.17 8.14 - 8.14
Hik (long position) (long posttion)
(i78) (i78)
Recosia China Pte Ltd. 165,070,000 @ H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Hik (long posttion) (long posttion)
(i78) (i78)
Recosia Pte Ltd. 165,070,000 @ H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Hik (long position) (long posttion)
(#8) (#8)
Government of Singapore 165,070,000 © H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Investment Corporation HiX (long posttion) (long posttion)
(Realty) Pte Ltd. (f2) (f8)
The Hamon Investment 110,754,000 © H Shares - 10.85 10.85 - 5.46 5.46
Group Pte Limited HiR (long position) (long position)
(i78) (Fg
Templeton Asset Management Ltd 92,176,000 H Shares 9.03 - 9.03 4.55 - 4.55
HE&  (long position) (long position)
(#8) (#8)
The Deryfus Corporation 72,814,000 H Shares 713 - 713 3.59 - 3.59
Hik (long posttion) (long posttion)
(i78) (78)
Notes: Bt
1. Of these 924,441,900 Shares, 311,032,800 Shares are directly held 1. 1£924,441,900% f& 7 &+ - 311,032,8008% I 17
by Capital Group, the remaining 613,409,100 Shares are deemed Rt REHAEEEERATERREE - £
corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held through Beijing 613,409, 100X A% 5 AR 15 & 5 M A S DI AR E A
Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive Development Company, Beijing FEER DEBERBAERMESERAER
Capital Technology Investment Ltd., Beijing Shou Chuang Jian She A EREHARRREERAR - ERERIER
Co., Ltd. and China Resource Products Limited. 32,436,000 H BERAREYBRYEER L AGMEREEAE -
Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held 32,436,000/% HAR f% 17 1R 15 & 75 & EA B & Bl AR
through China Resource Products Limited. ERZEERZ - B BRTPEMERRARMER
Ao
2. Of these 322,654,800 Shares, 47,418,600 Shares are directly held 2. #£322,654,800% i 15 E &+ 47,418,600 A% 7 F

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

by Beijing Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive Development
Company, the remaining 275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate
interests under the SFO indirectly held through China Resource
Products Limited. 32,436,000 H Shares are deemed corporate
interests under the SFO indirectly held through China Resource
Products Limited.
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3. 275,236,200 non-listed Shares and 32,436,000 H Shares are
deemed corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held through
China Resource Products Limited.

4, 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited.

5. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited and
Fexi Holdings Limited.

6. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

7. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited and Recosia China
Pte Ltd.

8. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO

indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited, Recosia China
Pte Ltd. and Recosia Pte Ltd.

9. 110,754,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Hamon Asset Management Limited, Hamon
U.S. Investment Advisors Limited and Hamon Investment
Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, as of
30 June 2011, none of the parties (other than the directors or chief
executives of the Company) had any interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or in any option in respect of
such capital.

Interests of Directors and Supervisors

As at 30 June 2011, none of the directors, supervisors and chief
executives of the Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company or the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company or their spouses or children
under 18 years of age had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights during
the period.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial report matters including the
review of the unaudited interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2011.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the six months ended 30 June 2011, the Company had not
redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the period.

Long Term Incentive Fund Scheme

On 27 September 2007, the Company had adopted the long term
incentive fund scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) which was
subsequently amended on 25th September 2009. The Scheme is
proposed to encourage the directors, supervisors, senior
management and core staff members of the Company for closer
ties of their personal interests with the interests of the Company and
of the shareholders, as well as for alignment of their personal goals
with the common goal of the Company.

As at 30 June 2011, the Company had through the trustee purchased
12,124,000 H shares, representing 1.19% of H shares and 0.6% of
the entire issued share capital of the Company. Up to the date of
this announcement, the purchased shares have been held in trust
by the trustee.

Compliance with the Code Provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the six months ended 30 June 2011, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the “Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and the company code throughout the period.
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m Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets
EHRATEERBR

As at 30 June 2011 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
—E——FXA=TH BRENZHN  eEEL/ARETT)

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
AEER BEG AREY BER
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-F e 3 —E—-F —T-%F
~A=+HR tZA=T—H AA=+A +ZA=1—8H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ASSETS BB (i3 ELs Gl | NG
Current assets REEE
Cashatbankandonhand E#%&4& 5(1) 9,463,016 8,460,068 1,415,183 2,795,108
Accounts receivable YR 3K 5(2)(a) 256,061 385,364 160 160
Advances to suppliers BRRE 5(3) 1,516,306 1,633,105 2,042 554
Dividends receivable JE U B 5(4) 265,834 283,606 207,202 207,202
Other receivables b iR 52)(b) * 11(1) 1,077,028 782,026 11,404,050 5,793,910
Inventories 7 5(5) 18,920,153 15,378,261 44,077 46,137
Total current assets MBEEARG 31,498,398 26,922,430 13,072,714 8,843,071
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale AHELEERHEE
financial assets 5(6) 107,080 140,615 107,075 140,610
Long-term receivables R BN 5(11) 422,453 395,453 175,914 148,914
Long-term equity REBRERE
investments 5(7)~ 11(2) 1,553,073 1,419,389 2,816,845 6,241,069
Investment properties BEERIME 5(8) 1,100,430 893,890 2,060 -
Fixed assets TEE 5(9) 513,126 529,355 72,881 74,080
Intangible assets B EAE 5(10) 43,221 43,743 - —
Long-term prepaid ROGEER
eXpenses 573 - - —
Deferred tax assets EEMEREE 5(22)(a) 223,218 168,912 1,247 12,757
Total non-current assets FHREEESH 3,963,174 3,591,357 3,176,022 6,617,430
TOTAL ASSETS EEMT 35,461,572 30,518,787 16,248,736 15,460,501
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m Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets
EHRATEERBR

As at 30 June 2011 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
“E——FXA=TH BRENZHN  eEEL/ARETT)

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
ARER BEY ABER KEZ
30 June 31 December 30June 31 December

2011 2010 2011 2010

—E-—-F —T-%F —E-—-F —T-TF
~A=+tB +=ZA=1+—H ~A=tHR +=ZA=f+-H

LIABILITIES AND Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
OWNERS’ EQUITY EERFIEERR BisE &bt A b A NG
Current liabilities REBEE
Short-term borrowings RHER 5(13) 1,150,000 750,000 750,000 750,000
Accounts payable e BR X 5(14) 1,897,215 2,014,310 10,783 10,783
Advances from customers ~ TEYFIE 5(15) 9,631,331 7,336,834 807 807
Employee benefits payable {8 T 7 B 5(16) 23,671 104,739 15,249 82,389
Taxes payable EXFHE 5(17) 1,451,962 1,406,485 37,305 12,643
Interest payable FERF 2 102,643 28,168 57,641 24,938
Dividends payable FER AR FI 5(18) 949,679 947,049 174,853 =
Other payables H i e 3R 5(19) 1,476,984 1,352,826 5,994,296 5,146,210
Current portion —EREHH
of non-current liabilities ERBAE 5(20) 2,348,300 1,330,000 1,702,000 1,200,000
Total current liabilites  FBEEA 19,031,785 15,270,411 8,742,934 7,227,770

Non-current liabilities ~ EREIEE

Long-term borrowings REBER 5(20) 6,634,270 6,479,180 2,578,000 3,050,000
Debentures payable [EfIEH 5(21) 2,131,765 989,211 990,536 989,211
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEHAR 5(22)(b) 166,791 145,039 - =
Total non-current liabilities % & & &4 8,932,826 7,613,430 3,568,536 4,039,211
Total liabilities &A% 27,964,611 22,883,841 12,311,470 11,266,981
Owners’ equity RRER
Paid-in capital B 5(23) 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960
Capital surplus BARDE 5(24) 1,159,967 1,233,985 1,328,221 1,358,372
Surplus reserve BHRRE 5(25) 146,034 146,034 146,034 146,034
Undistributed profits ROEFE 5(26) 1,761,527 1,819,047 435,051 666,154
Difference on translation ~ SNEFRITE =5
of foreign currency
financial statements (7,737) (661) - —
Total equity attributable GERNENBRREERA T
to equity holders
of the Company 5,087,751 5,226,365 3,937,266 4,193,520
Non-controlling interest DR EER 2,409,210 2,403,581 - -
Total owners’ equity RREZAS 7,496,961 7,629,946 3,937,266 4,193,520
TOTAL LIABILITIES EERRRERE T
AND OWNERS’ EQUITY 35,461,572 30,513,787 16,248,736 15,460,501

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial BHI BTSSR R M A IS MR AR -
statements.
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m Consolidated and Company Income Statements
EHRATFBER

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

HEZZ——FXA=THIEERSRE GRERNZHAN  EECSARETIT)
Unaudited Unaudited
AEER REEK
Six months ended ~ Six months ended  Six months ended  Six months ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010 30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BE-Z--F HEZZ-ZF BECE--F  HEIE-TF
~AZTH ~A=TH AAZTH ~AZtA
LAEAEE 1751 A tRERSE 17~ fE A A
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item A (i3 &t At | 2R
Revenue BEHA 5(27) 110) 1,657,787 2,724,235 123,457 86,262
Less: Cost of sales W EERA 57)~ 11(9) (670,749) (1,732,002) - 2,710
Taxes and surcharges EEHERHM 5(28) (352,373) (256,542) (17,124) (5,648)
Seling and distribution HEER
expenses (68,647) (57,774) - -
General and administrative ERER
eXpenses (113,856) (41,241) (68,540) (31,166)
Financial expenses — net YBER — 78 5(29) 28,554 (58,213) 56,352 (42,541)
Asset impairment losses AERERX 5(30) - (1,221) - =
Add: Investment income/(loss) 11 : RENE /(BB 5(31)~ 11(4) 23,931 25,044 67,346 (10,213)
Including: Share of profi Hh HaEhs
of associates and NEERER
joint ventures BB/ (BB) 23,931 (28,159) 7,686 (17,208)
Operating profit/(loss) EXRE/ (BB 504,647 602,286 161,491 (6,016)
Add: Non-operating income e EEHEA 10,572 6,052 10,000 =
Less: Non-operating expenses il : BE4h (1,201) (3,165) (200) (1,045)
Including: Losses on B ERBEAE
disposal of BEEX
non-current assets @ (991) - -
Total profit/(loss) AR/ (R &% 513,928 605,173 171,201 (7,061)
Less: Income tax expenses W ERER 5(33) (150,897) (184,517) (37,361) (2,640)
Net profit/(loss) FHE/ (BR) 363,031 420,656 133,930 (9,701)
Attributable to equity FENERRRE
holders of the Company nFHE/ (58 307,513 321,188 133,930 (9,701)
Non-controlling interest HERRER 55,518 99,468 - =
Earnings per share for profit ~ SRK%E EREE
attributable to the equity REARERR
holders of the Company RRAHF7E) 5(34)
—Basic eamings EXgRkE
per share 15 16 N/A T N/A 7@
—Diluted earnings mESRYE
per share 15 16 N/A 7R N/A i
Other comprehensive loss Rt KE 5(35) (32,227) (74,228) (25,151) (47,754)
Total comprehensive Geks/ (BB A 330,804 346,428 108,779 (57,455)
income/(loss)
Attributable to equity FEREAAREY
holders of the FalnEE
Company 275,286 260,197 N/A FER N/A T
Non-controlling interest SRR EREL
GalEaE 55,518 86,231 NAFER N/A T~

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

—T—GRURE | HABERHARAT

B BERRMERM B RROEKID -

33



m Consolidated Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity
EHRERZER

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
BHEZZ——FA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN - @BECAARE TT)

Unaudited
REER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FEASARRTER
Difference on
translation
of foreign
currency Total
financial Minority owners’
Paid-in Capital Surplus Undistributed ~ statements interest equity
Note capital surplus reserves profits HNERR DEBRR RREEE
Item EH Wiz TS BADR BRAR  ROEAE FHEER ER A3t
Balance at 1 January 2010 —E-ZE-P-AHUSE 2,027,960 1,287,782 105,978 1,164,024 = 2,061,433 6,637,177
Movement for the six months HE-E2-ZE5RA=1H
ended 30 June 2010 EABASEERSHE - (60,179) - 98,112 - 720,233 758,166
Net loss FEE = = = 321,188 = 99,468 420,656
Other comprehensive loss Esase 5(35) - (60,991) = - - (13,237) (74,228)
Capital contrioution and withdrawal ~ RERAFFOER » £ :
by owners
Capital contribution by owners REJZAER - - - - - 107,000 107,000
Others i 5(24) = 812 = = = 527,002 527,814
Profit distribution to equity owners ~ $lRREHE 5(26) - - - (223,076) - = (223,076)
Balance at 30 June 2010 E-ZERASTHERBE 2,027,960 1,227,603 105,978 1,262,136 - 2,771,666 7,395,343
Balance at 1 January 2011 —E--F-R-HEOHE 2,027,960 1,233,985 146,034 1,819,047 (661) 2,403,581 7,629,946
Movement for the six months BE-Z2--F/A=1H
ended 30 June 2011 LAEASEEREHE = (74,018) = (57,520) (7,076) 5,629 (132,985)
Net proft el - - - 307,513 = 55,518 363,031
Other comprehensive loss Lz aER 5(35) = (25,151) = = (7,076) = (32,227)
Capital contrioution and withdrawal ~ REZAFFOER » £ :
by owners
Capital contribution by owners BRBEAER - - - - - 2,000 2,000
Others Hitr 5(24) - (48,867) - - - (51,889) (100,756)
Profit distribution to equity owners ~ ¥RREIHE 5(26) - - - (365,033) - - (365,033)
Balance at 30 June 2011 “E-—ERAZTRERBE 2027960 1,159,967 146,034 1,761,527 (7,787) 2,409,210 7,496,961

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial BH BT SRR T A S MR AN E D ©
statements.
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m Company Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity
AT RRER B ENR

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
BHEZZ——FAA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN  @BECAARE TT)

Unaudited
REER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERARARRRES
Total owners’
Paid-in Capital Surplus Undistributed equity
Note capital surplus reserves profits RRER
ltem HE MizE R v BRAE  AIEAE &t
Balance at 1 January 2010 —Z-ZE-A-AHNHE 2,027,960 1,393,037 106,978 528,720 4,055,695
Movement for the six months #Z-E-ZEEXA=1R
ended 30 June 2010 tAEASEEREBE - (47,754) - (232,777) (280,531)
Net loss REa - - - (9,701) (9,701)
Other comprehensive loss A ER - (47,754) - - (47,754)
Profit distribution to equity
owners HRENHE 5(26) = = = (203,076)  (223,076)
Balance at 30 June 2010 ZE-BERASTRERHE 2,027,960 1,345,283 105,978 295943 3,775,164
Balance at 1 January 2011 ZE--F-A-AHIHE 2,027,960 1,353,372 146,034 666,154 4,193,520
Movement for the six months HZ-Z-—-£xA=1H
ended 30 June 2011 EABABEEHLBE = (25,151) = (231,09 (256,254
Net profit Exih - = = 133,930 133,930
Other comprehensive loss EhGRAER - (25,151) - - (25,151)
Profit distribution to equity
owners HRENAR 5(26) - - - (365,033) (365,033)
Balance at 30 June 2011 ZE--EXACHRYABE 2,027,960 1,328,221 146,034 435,051 3,937,266

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial BB B IR R T RS REROAEK IS o
statements.
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m Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements
BHRATIIRERER
For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
BHEZZ——FA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN - @BECAARE TT)

Unaudited Unaudited
AEER REEK
Six months ended ~ Six months ended  Six months ended  Six months ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010 30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BE-3--F  HE-R-TE  HECE--F HE-R-3E
~BZTH ~NAZTH ~AZTH ~AZTH
LAEREHE 17N A A EREASE LE7~ {8 A
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item A fits & Bl e NG|
Cash flows from operating ~ £EFHELNREHE
activities
Cash recelved from sales of HEEM  REABKINRS
goods or rendering of services 3,144,579 2,827,600 123,457 86,163
Cash received relating to other MBI EMELEEHABRNF 2
operating activities 119,253 154,698 1,470,832 1,870,282
Sub-total of cash inflows RETHRERANG 3,263,832 2,982,298 1,594,289 1,956,445
Cash paid for goods and senices  EEEH * BERABTHNBE (2,855,075) 2,392,326) (4,905) (4577)
Cash paid to and on behalf INARIARABRIIANRE
of employees 5(16) (207,007) (115,997) (130,614) (54,461)
Payments of taxes and surcharges % [fE) & B & (792,519) (712,366) (13,680) (6,470)
Cash paid relating to other THEMESEEHAANT S
operating activities (338,219) (1,275,451) (2,180,926) (1,394,731)
Sub-total of cash outflows RETHRERL (4,192,910) (4,496,140) (2,330,125) (1,460,239)
Net cash flows from operating ZEEFBELNREREFE
activities 5(36)(a) (929,078) (1,518,842 (735,836) 496,206
Cash flows from investing RETBELNEERE
activities
Cash received from disposal KERERENIHRE
of investments - 18,091 - 18,691
Cash received from retums on -~ BVEREMHFTNEIHE £
investments 19,732 34,092 1,960 34,092
Net cash received from disposal REETAE - EVEENLL
of fixed assets, intangible RNAENEMA TR
assets and other
long-term assets 231 197 - -
Net cash received from disposal  RE FAAMEINELFE
of subsidiaries - - - 43,125
Net cash received for purchase BV TR AIEMAE £ 38
of subsidiaries - 28,549 - -
Sub-total of cash inflows REZHRERA NG 19,963 76,429 1,960 90,308
Cash paid to acquire fixed BEETEE EVAENEM
assets, intangible assets RAEEZ ARFS
and other long-term assets (211,892) (3,358) (1,937) )
Cash paid to acquire investments R X fTH3R & (103,800) (19 - (16,000)
Net cash paid to acquire RETARNANEEFE
subsidiaries (77,214) - - -
Net cash paid from disposal RETRRARINRSTE
of subsidiaries - (19,781) - -
Cash paid relating to other TNEMEREED ARG
investing activities (127,500) (20,308) - -
Sub-total of cash outflows REEDRE RN (520,406) (43,461) (1,937) (16,003)
Net cash flows from investing REFHELHNELHERE
activities (500,443) 32,968 23 74,805

36 BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011



m Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements
BHRATIIRERER
For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)
BHEZZ——FAA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN  @BECAARE TT)

Unaudited Unaudited
AEER REEK
Six months ended ~ Six months ended  Six months ended  Six months ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010 30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BE-2--f HE %% BE-2--f HE-Z-Z£
~AZTH AA=TA AAZTR ~A=TH
ER{EAHE EAEASE tRERHE I~ fEA B
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item &R firat At aff AF A
Cash flows from financing ~ EEEHELNELFE
activities
Cash received from capital TR ERE FR 2
contributions 2,000 127,000 - -
Inclucing: Cash received from  E - FRAARKDHEREE
capital contributions by KinEe
minority shareholders
of subsidiaries 2,000 127,000 - -
Cash received from borrowings ~ BVEETREINE £ 1,817,270 1,619,504 30,000 =
Cash received from issuance
of debentures BOERNENE & 1,141,229 = - =
Sub-total of cash inflows EETHRSRANT 2,960,499 1,746,504 30,000 =
Cash repayments of borrowings ~ EEEEXTMEE (338,380) (848,816) - -
Cash payments for interest AEMREH - MER
expenses and distribution ST
of dividends and profits bk (665,133) (323,956) (306,055) (807,272)
Cash paid in equity purchasing EEFAT
from non-controling DY E
interest shareholder SqnLkKa (473,046) - (369,500) -
Sub-total of cash outflows EEEBREMM G (1,477,059) (1,172,772) (675,555) (307,272)
Net cash flows from financing ~ EEEHELHNELHEFE
activities 1,483,440 578,822 (645,555) (307,272)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSBHREHFE
changes on cash and cash
equivalents (3,578) 169 1,443 179
Net increase/(decrease) in cash B&F#M/ (HY) 38 5(36)(o) 50,341 (906,883) (1,379,925) 263,918
Add: Cash at beginning of year ~ J11 : B3I £ 5458 5(36)(o) 8,420,444 4,879,372 2,795,108 1,155,608
Cash at end of year HEREHE 5(36)(0) 8,479,785 3,972,489 1,415,183 1,419,526

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial EH B SRR M T A S R A AN E D ©
statements.
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m Notes to the Financial Statements

38

A1 75 8 R B 5E

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z——FNA=+THLNERHBE CRERIER

1.

General information

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (the “Company”) was established
by seven companies on 23 July 2002, namely Beijing Capital
Group Ltd. (“Capital Group”), Beijing Sunshine Real Estate
Comprehensive Development Company (“Sunshine
Comprehensive”), Beijing Capital Sunshine Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Capital Sunshine”), Beijing Capital
Technology Investment Co., Ltd. (“Capital Technology”),
Beijing Capital Hangyu Economic Development Co., Ltd.
(change to “Beijing Capital Development Co., Ltd.”
afterwards, “Capital Development”), China Resource
Products Limited (“China Resource”) and Yieldwell
International Enterprise Limited (“Yieldwell International”) (“the
promoters”).

The Company was registered on 5 December 2002 in Beijing
with total share capital of RMB1,100,000,000 at RMB1 per
share. The Company issued 513,300,000 shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“H-
shares”) in June 2003. And 51,330,000 shares were
transferred to public by some promoters from state-owned
shares and state-owned entities shares.

On 27 January 2005, the Company placing 112,926,000
H-shares (RMB1 per share), of which, 102,660,000 shares
were newly issued, and 10,266,000 shares were transferred
to public by some promoters from state-owned shares and
state-owned entities shares.

On 26 October 2006, the Company placing 343,200,000
H-shares (RMB1 per share), of which, 312,000,000 shares
were newly issued, and 31,200,000 shares were transferred
to public by some promoters from state-owned shares and
state-owned entities shares.

On 30 December 2008, Capital Sunshine, one of the
Company’s promoters, disposed 14.11% share of the
Company to Capital Group. After the transaction, Capital
Group directly holds 15.34% interests of the Company.

The parent company and the ultimate parent company of
the Company is Capital Group.

The company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the real estate development and investment, hotel
operation and property consulting services and investment
holding, in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011

EHREMASARETT)

AFEFFER

BRIBERMHBRAR A THEIARED R
—TE_FHA-T=HHIREHEES
BERAR CATHEIEAIKE]D « dLREX
BHEGREREAR UATHEGES])
AREEIBAEHEEREERR A THE
B t])  EREBEAIMEIRERRAR
A TR IERIRE]) - ERERIM TR
BRARAR (REARMLREEIZRARA
Al ATHEIEAER]) FEMEERA
BIUATREIFEYE] - BEBEREXEAR
R (ATHEMEEER]) tRAREREE
NUAT#RE LA BERT -

T —F+ - AAH AARNERTE
MK o RARREFEBRARE AR
1,100,000,0007T * BRAEIT - RZZTZF
=FRNA AAREEBERETRINET
FIHR% (BA T8 [HA% ] ) 513,300,0008% * [F
B BOBRBARREEFENERKREER
A% ABK51,330,0000% 575 W 854 E A HAR 1
ERAR - LHHREBEBERSFER
NG i)

“EERF—A=-+tH ARFEE
112,926,000/% (FRREE1T) HIHR - &
R ¥TI2E£77102,660,0000% ¢ [[E AR A
HAERARFBIFE M AR L ERRE K
Bl A5 AR%10,266,0000% °

—EERFTAZTANE  ARFEREE
343,200,0000% (FRREE17T) BIHAR «+ E
f o ¥TI23£77312,000,0000% ¢ [[E AR A
HAERARFBIFE M AR L ERRE K
B A A AR%31,200,0008% °

—EENFE+-A=Z1H  AARFEBLAZ
—HEHARG S ERENARAR14.11%H]
BiEERGEHASE  #%%  AASEE
BB AN E15.34% AR HE -

ARBNBRAMERIER AR S EEIS
T

ARBRFRAEICATERIAEKE]) 21
ERMERZERKE  BETREAREHE
REFEARBEE -



m Notes to the Financial Statements

A1 75 8 R B 5E

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

1. General information (continued)

These interim financial statements were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 19 August 2011.

The interim financial statements were unaudited.

2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates

(1). Basis of preparation

The interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2011 and comparative figures have
been prepared in accordance with the Basis Standard
and 38 specific standards of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006, and the
Application Guidance for Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises, Interpretations of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and other relevant
regulations issued thereafter (herein collectively
referred to as “the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises” or “CAS”). The interim financial
statements have also been stated and disclosed in
accordance with Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

(2). Statement of compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The interim financial statements of the Company for
the six months ended 30 June 2011 truly and
completely present the financial position as of 30 June
2011 and the operating results, cash flows and other
information for the six months then ended of the
Group and the Company in compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

(3). Accounting year

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends
on 31 December.

(4). Recording currency

The recording currency is Renminbi (RMB).
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m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5

40

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z——FNA=+TALNEAHBE CRERERIN

SHEMSARETT)

P . i - — = = Y R
2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEEBENEH & @
accounting estimates (continueq)
(5). Business combinations (5). LESH
(a) Business combinations involving enterprises () Al —#E# FaI i E & vf
under common control
The consideration paid and net assets EBH ARG FEE KRR
obtained by the absorbing party in a business BRFEEHZEREER
combination are measured at the carrying 2 AHIMENFEER
amount. The difference between the carrying HEEAZTHNEHAER
amount of the net assets obtained and the HEBENEZRE  FAEEAQ
carrying amount of the consideration paid for R ERNRE)  BARAREE
the combination is treated as an adjustment AHR(E) TR LHRE - %
to capital surplus (capital premium). If the Bl o
capital surplus (capital premium) is not
sufficient to absorb the difference, the
remaining balance is adjusted against retained
earnings.
Costs directly attributable to the combination RETEESHEENERE
are included in profit or loss in the period in HEERAREERAEH
which they are incurred. B o
(b) Business combinations involving enterprises (b) FERI—#EH T By 1D % A GF

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

not under common control

The cost of combination and identifiable net
assets obtained by the acquirer in a business
combination are measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. Where the cost of the
combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the difference is recognised as
goodwill; where the cost of combination is
lower than the acquirer’s interest in the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets,
the difference is recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.

Interim Report 2011
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m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:tBENEH G @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(5). Business combinations (Continued) (5). LESH B
(b) Business combinations involving enterprises (b) FER— 1 H T2 E v
not under common control (Continued) (&)
For a business combination achieved in BRZARSGDTEHNIE
stages on the separate financial statements, B—Z6 TREESM - EE
the initial cost shall be the summation of the AT BIwEAR - MEBEERZ
book value of the previously held interest ATFTRE 0B B 5 MR IR B
before the acquisition date and the additional RBRE EEEE S B itk
investment cost at the acquisition date. On BRAZH - tERBIEERT]
the consolidated financial statements, the IRIRERAN o E& HF IS
previously held interest is remeasured to fair =P HREERZAIRFE
value at the acquisition date and the a gain or KRS E D R ARRE - IRIRZ
loss is recognised in the income statement. BEEEEBNAAEBEE
When control is obtained, reserves held in TEFFE  PABEERE
equity that related to the previously held REEENZEREGT AL R
interest would be recycled through profit and B BEBZAEFAER
loss. The excess of the consideration e E T R AR AE Y Kk E At AR
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling Gl r - EEARREA E A
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition- HeWmEREERMBEE
date fair value of any previous equity in the I E W - B R ZAE
acquiree, over the fair value of the identifiable ENHEBEETRENALE
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. BEHEEEASNHENA R
BEZM  ERENFAA
AHRFEEREEANA
R EEMENZERE -
Costs directly attributable to the combination RETEESHEENEE
are included in profit or loss in the period in HEERAREERTAEH
which they are incurred. B e
(6). Preparation of consolidated financial (6). BEHMBERRES S E

statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control and are de-consolidated
from the date that such control ceases.

mEAHMBRERE  AHEER
BRARBRZHFRA -

EMETRANERZHZEZB
B AREFESEEAANS R
FIRERAERIESE AEFL
MARGEE -

—T—GRURE | HABERHARAT

41



m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

42

BE_Z——FNA=+TALNEAHBE CRERERIN

2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(6).

(7).

(8).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
where the accounting policies and the accounting
periods are inconsistent between the Company and
subsidiaries, the financial statements of subsidiaries
are adjusted in accordance with the accounting
policies and accounting period of the Company. For
subsidiaries acquired from a business combination
involving enterprises not under common control, the
individual financial statements of the subsidiaries are
adjusted based on the fair value of the identifiable
net assets at the acquisition date.

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and
unrealised profits are eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. The portion of a subsidiary’s
equity and the portion of a subsidiary’s net profits
and losses for the period not attributable to Company
are recognised as non-controlling interests and
presented separately in the consolidated financial
statements within equity and net profits respectively.

Cash

Cash comprise cash on hand and call deposits with
banks.

Foreign currency translation
(@ Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated

into RMB using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:tBENEH G @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(8). Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(8). EWINE (&)

(a) Foreign currency transactions (Continued) (a) INERZX 5 ()
At the balance sheet date, monetary items REEABERA @ INEEEK
denominated in foreign currencies are MIBERAEERERAD
translated into RMB using the spot exchange BHERITEAARK - &
rates on the balance sheet date. Exchange HEREREEANMLEHRNEE
differences arising from these translations are e AR INE E P fEREE
recognised in profit or loss for the current RIE XA E ML ERE R
period, except for those attributable to foreign FABEAR(L : EiEH Z5E
currency borrowings that have been taken out EETAEHEZR - LESE
specifically for the acquisition or construction ARG E R INE FEE B IR
of qualifying assets, which are capitalised as B REEBBERAKAR
part of the cost of those assets. Non- S E AW EERTHE o
monetary items denominated in foreign EXEHHIF N ERE
currencies that are measured at historical REMERTFEBIR
costs are translated at the balance sheet date
using the spot exchange rates at the date of
the transactions. The effect of exchange rate
changes on cash is presented separately in
the cash flow statement.

(b) Translation of foreign currency financial (b) SNERT SRR BT E
Statements
The asset and liability items in the balance BIMEEAEBBERTH
sheets for overseas operations are translated BEMAMFIER RAEE
at the spot exchange rates on the balance BEXRBHNNHERTHE

sheet date. Among the owners’ equity items,
the items other than “undistributed profits” are
translated at the spot exchange rates of the
transaction dates. The income and expense
items in the income statements of overseas
operations are translated at the spot exchange
rates of the transaction dates. The differences
arising from the above translation are
presented separately in the owners’ equity.
The cash flows of overseas operations are
translated at the spot exchange rates on the
dates of the cash flows. The effect of
exchange rate changes on cash is presented
separately in the cash flow statement.

P A & fE s B AR 0 EC R B
HEBHN HMBEBERAELE
R B HAE R E o HIME
EMANBERTHRARER
BER  RARZEAEBHE
HIEXRFE - ElrEES
RN RRITE R - ER
BEERPIAEBIEABTD
N BIMEEMIRERER
B RAREREXLEAN
EPHE T H - [EREEHY
REMPER HERLRE
RPEFIR -
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2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(9). Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets

(i

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following categories at initial
recognition: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss,
receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and held-to-maturity
investments. The classification of
financial assets depends on the
Group’s intention and ability to hold
the financial assets. The financial
assets of the Group are majorly
comprised of receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories at initial recognition.
Available-for-sale financial assets are
included in other current assets on the
balance sheet if management intends
to dispose of them within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at fair
value on the balance sheet when the
Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial
instrument, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets are included in their
initial recognition amounts.
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:tBENEH G @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(@ Financial assets (Continued)

(9). &MIA @

@ E=BEEHE)

(ii) Recognition and measurement (ii) mRMtE (B)
(Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets are AHHECREER

subsequently measured at fair value,
and they are measured at cost when
they do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

RAnBEETRE
FTE - BHEERMS
PREBEEEDA
BETHEASETEDN
EETARE R
AT E + EWFOR
RABRMEL - A
BERRCANETE e

Gain or loss arising from change in fair AHHESHEER
value of available-for-sale financial REEEFBEETA
assets is recognised directly in equity. FiEEED  FZe
When such financial assets are BB EAR IR

derecognised, the cumulative gain or REZTAERZHA
loss previously recognised directly into REEE R THEE

equity is recycled into profit or loss for
the current period.

AEHEE o

(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) EHEERE
The Group assesses the carrying AEBREEBER
amounts of financial assets other than BHE/MEENRA
those at fair value through profit or loss BEETRSE X
at each balance sheet date. If there is EREEBRRAXE
objective evidence that a financial TREEZELRE

asset is impaired, the Group shall
determine the amount of impairment
loss.

B FHREREERME -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(@ Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

When an impairment loss on a
financial asset carried at amortised
cost has occurred, the amount of loss
is measured at the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of its estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred). If
there is objective evidence that the
value of the financial asset recovered
and the recovery is related objectively
to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed and the amount of reversal
is recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of
an available-for-sale financial asset,
the cumulative loss arising from the
decline in fair value that had been
recognised directly in equity is
removed from equity and recognised
in impairment loss. For an investment
in an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale on which impairment
losses have been recognised, the
increase in its fair value in a
subsequent period is recognised in
equity directly.
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:tBENEH G @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(®)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and

(9). €T H®
(b) TEEE

TR B AR IR ERE D
RUARREEFEREEY

other financial liabilities. The Group’s financial AR HBESN SR A ERN

liabilities are majorly comprised of other HhemeE AEENS

financial liabilities, including payables, BEBEETZEAHEMERA

borrowings and debentures payable. & BEENKE  ERK
ERESSE -

Payables include accounts payables and other
payables which are initially recognised at fair
value and recorded at amortised cost using
effective interest rate in subsequent
measurement.

Borrowings and debentures payable are
initially recognised at fair value less trading
expenses and recorded at amortised cost
using effective interest rate in subsequent
measurement.

Other financial liabilities with repayment period
within 1 year (including 1 year) are stated as
current liabilities; other financial liabilities with
repayment period over 1 year but repayment
date within 1 year from balance sheet date
are stated as current portion of non-current
liabilities; others are stated as non-current
liabilities.

JEE\H%\IE@TEFEHEE%\

A RE ”“%fffﬁﬁ
WAt E - WIKA BT
KERBHRRAEITRER

=
&2 @

ERRENEFZEAAE
EMRXZERENSEE
THAETE - WERF EER A
KERBHRRAEITRBER

=
& @

Hih Rl B EHRAE—F LA
T(E—F)H - JNRRRE
B HRE—FNALER
EERBBRE—FAN(E—
F) FHE - FIRA—FAE
HmIEREAE  HRIIR
RIERBEE

When the present liabilities of financial liability EemARNREREEE
have been entirely or partially released, the S EB D ERBREF - RIETERZ
financial liability or released part of financial TRIBEREF D HROE
liability should be de-recognised, and the 7 o R IEFERER S MY BRE B
difference between carrying value and the BEHEINNEHEZRANE
price of the released part is recognised in profit B G AEHERS -

or loss.
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEEBENEH & @
accounting estimates (continueq)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) (9). &FTH @

48

(c) Fair value of financial instrument

If the market for a financial instrument is not
active, fair value should be determined using
valuation technique. Valuation techniques that
are well established in financial markets
include recent market transactions, reference
to a transaction that is substantially the same
and discounted cash flows and option pricing
models. An appropriate valuation technique
should make the most of observable market
data and minimize the input from sources
dependent of the entity.

(10). Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable and other
receivables. Accounts receivable arising from sale of
goods or rendering of services are initially recognised
at fair value of the contractual payments from the
buyers or service recipients.

Receivables that are individually significant are subject
to separate impairment assessment. If there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect the full amount under the original terms, a
provision for impairment of that receivable is
established at the difference between the carrying
amount of that receivable and the present value of its
estimated future cash flows.

Receivables that are not individually significant and
those receivables that have been individually
evaluated for impairment and have been found not
impaired are combined into certain groups based on
their credit risk characteristics. The impairment losses
are determined based on the historical loss
experience for the groups of receivables with the
similar credit risk characteristics and taking into
consideration of the current circumstances.
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:tBENEH G @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(11). Inventories (11). &&

(a) Classification (a) oM
Inventories include properties under GFERERENAE  HEE
development, properties held for sale, W ETEmmNEESER
merchandise and low-cost assumables, and £ - RN EE R B IR FE R
are presented at the lower of cost and net KR °
realisable value.

(b) Measurement of inventories (b) GFEREHER .

Inventories are initially recognised at the actual GFERBUSEIZRERKAA
costs. The costs of properties under AR o B ATIR B E MR T
development and properties held for sale BRI MR AN ~ FESERK
comprise land cost, construction cost, N BRMEOFE - EfbEH
borrowing costs, and other direct and indirect BENHEZERZEER  A%E
fees incurred during the development period. mh AR AN 4 8 B 9 B PR B AN
On completion, the properties are transferred H o REERSH L FE A
to completed properties held for sale at the EAREEHIINEENERE
actual costs. For land use rights that are BEERY) - FERAEY b R
developed for subsequent sales, the cost paid ATAFTEENEEEEYN
for land use rights are classified and accounted PR o

for as part of the costs of properties.

Public ancillary facilities comprise RERERMBIEIZBT A 7
government-approved public ancillary HFHEN A KRR EE B W0
projects, i.e. roads. The relevant costs are BRE - HZEER T
recognised under the properties under ARZERAE - A ZEY
development, and are recorded by each cost A AN T8 B ¥ 17 B8 4l i
items, the cost paid for land use rights are o ABALIMAMBEENS
classified and accounted for as part of 5uW) I N 909N = B
properties under development.

(c) Measurement of net realisable value and (© (7 &Y B 2 5 ) FE AR E 1K HR
provisions of inventories RI1FBEEEGR G )%
Provisions are determined at the excess GFERBEEFRRTFENAS
amount of the carrying value of the inventories RERERFENEE
over their net realisable value. Net realisable 2o B FELETEY
value is determined based on the estimated F o UFEERGHETEERE
selling price in the ordinary course of business, ERTIRHTBERENK
less the estimated costs to completion and AN~ HET RS E B R A R AE
estimated costs necessary to make the sale AR BERNSEET -
and related taxes.

(d) The Group adopts the perpetual inventory (@) REENFERFHIERA

system.

KERIFH o
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEEBENEH & @
accounting estimates (continueq)

(11). Inventories (Continued) (11). &8 ®)
(e) Low-cost consumables are expensed when (e) KESHEREERRER—
issued. IR R IZ E KA o
(12). Long-term equity investments (12). REARHERSE

Long-term equity investments comprise the
Company’s long-term equity investments in its
subsidiaries, the Group’s long-term equity
investments in its joint ventures and associates, as
well as the long-term equity investments where the
Group does not have control, joint control or
significant influence over the investees and which are
not quoted in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the Company
is able to exercise control; joint ventures are the
investees over which the Group is able to exercise joint
control together with other ventures; associates are the
investees that the Group has significant influence on
their financial and operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the
Company’s financial statements using the cost
method, and are adjusted for preparing the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. Investments in joint ventures and associates
are accounted for using the equity method. Other
long-term equity investments, where the Group does
not have control, joint control or significant influence
over the investee and which are not quoted in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, are accounted for using the cost method.

(a) Measurement of investment cost

Long-term equity investments accounted for
using the cost method are measured at the
initial investment costs. Under the equity
method of accounting, where the initial
investment cost exceeds the Group’s share
of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets at the time of acquisition, the
investment is initially measured at cost; where
the initial investment cost is less than the
Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, the difference is included in profit
or loss for the current period and the cost of
the long-term equity investment is adjusted
upwards accordingly.
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2. Significant accounting policiesand =. *E

accounting estimates (continueq)

(12). Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(®)

Subsequent measurement and recognition of
investment income and loss

Under the cost method of accounting,
investment income is recognised in profit or
loss for the cash dividends or profit distribution
declared by the investees.

Under the equity method of accounting, the
Group recognises the investment income
according to its share of net profit or loss of
the investee. The Group discontinues
recognising its share of net losses of an
investee after the carrying amount of the long-
term equity investment together with any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of
the investor’s net investment in the investee
are reduced to zero. However, if the Group
has obligations for additional losses and the
criteria with respect to recognition of

ErrBiRnEsHEEt @

(12). REIR#ERE @)

(b) KB B RIB e iR )%

RAKAEZE /R B E
BE  HREEMSEDIK
E’]ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂ‘ﬁrﬂﬂ R
BE Wt AN E B8 o

RAESEZENRARE
&é AEEREZHXE
DENTIRE BN FER
MERMER S MR ERS - i
REREEMBENTE
18 ARHIRERE S IRE
BEAREGEE CHEKRY
BB B FHRENRE
HRLETRR - BAEE
BAAEREIMERERFAN
BRAFHEEAMMRTENTE
ﬁ%ﬁﬁwﬁﬁm A iE e

provisions under the accounting standards on RREBRWIERET AR
contingencies are satisfied, the Group ZE - WA BNRIFER
continues recognising the investment losses LA 9IRS B 2 ) L Ath 2 B -

and the provisions. For changes in owners’
equity of the investee other than those arising
from its net profit or loss, the Group records
its proportionate share directly into capital
surplus, provided that the Group’s proportion
of shareholding in the investee remains
unchanged. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the Group’s share
of the profit distribution or cash dividends
declared by an investee. The unrealised profits
or losses arising from the intra-group
transactions amongst the Group and its
investees are eliminated in proportion to the
Group’s equity interest in the investees, and
then based which the investment gain or
losses are recognised. The loss on the intra-
group transaction amongst the Group and its
investees, of which the nature is asset
impairment, is recognised in full, and the
related unrealised loss is not eliminated.
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2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(12).

(13).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(c) Definitions of control, joint control and
significant influence

Control is the power to govern the investees’
financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control over an economic activity,
and exists only when the strategic financial
and operating decisions relating to the activity
require the unanimous consent of all the
parties sharing control.

Significant influence is the power to participate
the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

(d) Impairment of long-term equity investment

If the recoverable amount of a subsidiary, an
associate or a joint venture is less than the
carrying value, the carrying value shall be
reduced to its recoverable amount (note
2(19)).

Jointly controlled operations

Jointly controlled operations are operations with a
contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and
other parties undertake an economic activity without
the establishment of a corporation, partnership nor
any other kinds of separate financial or legal structure.
These operations are subject to joint control and none
of the participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity. In respect of its interest in jointly
controlled operations, the Group recognises in the
financial statements: (a) assets and liabilities that the
Group controls and incurs. (b) the expenses that the
Group incurs and its share of the income that it earns
from the sale of goods or services by the operations.

Interim Report 2011
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:TBENEH & @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(14). Investment properties (14). HREHEME

Investment properties, including land use rights that
have already been leased out, buildings that are held
for the purpose of lease and buildings that is being
constructed or developed for future use for leasing,
are measured initially at cost. Subsequent
expenditures incurred in relation to an investment
property is included in the cost of the investment
property when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group and its cost
can be reliably measured; otherwise, the expenditures
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent
measurement of the investment properties. Buildings
and land use rights are depreciated or amortised to
their estimated net residual values over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful lives, the estimated
net residual values expressed as a percentage of cost
and the annual depreciation (amortisation) rates of
the investment properties are as follows:

REMEFEHESRE HEN T HE
FEMNA LR B A REYIAR
FaERESMBBETHRARH
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FHTE (B RIRMT

Annual
depreciation

Estimated Estimated (amortisation)

useful lives residual value rate

S Ei A&t FHE

ERESD BREX (BheH) =

Buildings B EREEY 10-40 years4F 0% to £210% 2.3% to £10.0%
Land use rights + 3 R 40 years4 — 2.5%

When an investment property is transferred to an
owner-occupied property, it is reclassified as fixed
asset or intangible asset at the date of the transfer.
When an owner-occupied property is transferred for
earning rentals or for capital appreciation, the fixed
asset or intangible asset is reclassified as investment
property at its carrying amount at the date of the
transfer.

The estimated useful life, net residual value of the
investment property and the depreciation
(amortisation) method applied are reviewed and
adjusted as appropriate at each year-end.
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2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(14).

(15).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised on disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. The net amount of
proceeds from sale, transfer, retirement or damage
of an investment property after its carrying amount
and related taxes and expenses is recognised in profit
or loss for the current period.

If the recoverable amount of investment property is
less than its carrying value, the carrying value should
be reduced to the recoverable amount (note 2(19)).

Fixed assets
(@) Recognition and initial measurement

Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery
and equipment, motor vehicles, and office
equipment.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is
probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the related
cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets
purchased or constructed by the Group are
initially measured at cost at the time of
acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed
asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset
when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the related cost can be reliably measured. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is de-
recognised. All the other subsequent
expenditures are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Interim Report 2011
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:TBENEH & @

accounting estimates (continueq)
(15). Fixed assets (Continued) (15). BIEEE (&)

BIEEERTTE T E

(b) Depreciation methods of fixed assets (b)

Fixed assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of the
assets to their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives. For the fixed
assets that have been provided for impairment
loss, the related depreciation charge is
prospectively determined based upon the
adjusted carrying amounts over their
remaining useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, the estimated
residual values expressed as a percentage of

BEEEFERAFRFY
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cost and the annual depreciation rates are as N
follows:

Estimated Estimated Annual
useful lives residual value depreciation
st st rate
ERE® REEX FHEE
Buildings BB REEY 10-40 years4F 0% to £210% 2.3% to £10.0%
Motor vehicles BT A 5 years® 0% to £10% 18.0% to £20.0%
Office equipment WARE 3-10 years4F 0% to £210% 9.0% to £33.3%

(c)

(@)

The estimated useful life, the estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the
depreciation method applied to the asset are
reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate at least
at each year end.

When recoverable amount of fixed asset is
lower than its carrying value, the carrying value
should be written down to the recoverable
amount (note 2(19)).

Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is de-recognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The amount
of proceeds from disposal on sale, transfer,
retirement or damage of a fixed asset net of
its carrying amount and related taxes and
expenses is recognised in profit or loss for
the current period.
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:tBENEH G @
accounting estimates (continueq)

(16). Borrowing costs (16). ERER

56

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition and construction of investment
properties or real estate projects that need a
substantially long period of time for its intended use
commence to be capitalised and recorded as part of
the cost of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred, and the
activities relating to the acquisition and construction
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use have commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when the asset under acquisition or
construction becomes ready for its intended use, the
borrowing costs incurred thereafter are recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition or construction of the asset is
interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts for
more than 3 months, until the acquisition or
construction is resumed.

For borrowings that specified for acquisition and
construction of investment properties and real estate
projects and qualified for capitalisation, the
capitalisation amount is measured as current actual
interests of the specified borrowings net of interest
revenue earned from unused borrowings deposited
at bank or investment income earned from temporary
investment activities with unused borrowings.

For general borrowings that occupied by the
acquisition and for construction of investment
properties and real estate projects qualified
accumulated, the capitalization amount should be the
weighted average exceeds of accumulated capital
expenditures for capitalization over the amount of
specialized borrowings multiplied by the weighted
average effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate is the rate used to discount the future cash flows
of the borrowings to the initial measurement of the
borrowings.
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2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(17).

(18).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use rights and are
measured at cost. The cost of land use rights obtained
for construction of real estate projects, are recognised
in inventory development costs.

(@) Land use rights

Land use rights are amortised on straight-line
basis. If the purchase costs of land use rights
and the buildings located thereon cannot be
reliably allocated between the land use rights
and the buildings, all of the purchase costs
are recognised as fixed assets.

(b) Periodical review of useful life and amortisation
method

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life,
review and adjustment on its useful life and
amortisation method are performed at each
year end.

(c) Impairment of intangible assets

When the recoverable amount of an intangible
asset is less than its carrying value, the
carrying value should be written down to the
recoverable amount (note 2(19)).

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include expenditures
that have been made but should be recognised as
expenses over more than one year in the current and
subsequent periods. Long-term prepaid expenses are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the expected
beneficial period and are presented at actual
expenditure net of accumulated amortisation.
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2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(19).

(20).

(21).

Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite useful life,
investment properties measured using the cost model
and long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are tested for impairment if
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired
at the balance sheet date. If the result of the
impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount
of the asset is less than its carrying amount, a
provision for impairment and an impairment loss are
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. Provision for asset impairment is determined
and recognised on the individual asset basis. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group
of assets to which the asset belongs is determined.
A group of assets is the smallest group of assets that
is able to generate independent cash inflows.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognised,
it will not be reversed for the value recovered in the
subsequent periods.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include wages or salaries,
bonuses, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
social security contributions, housing funds, labour
union funds, employee education funds and other
expenditures incurred in exchange for service
rendered by employees.

Employee benefits are recognised as salaries and
wages payable in the accounting period in which an
employee has rendered service, as costs of assets
or expenses to whichever the employee service is
attributable.

Distribution of dividends
The amount of dividends proposed to distribute is

recognised as a liability in the current period in which
it is approved by general meeting of shareholders.
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2. Significant accounting policies and =.

accounting estimates (continueq)

(22). Revenue recognition

The amount of revenue is determined in accordance
with the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of rebates, discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group,
the related revenue can be reliably measured, and
the specific revenue recognition criteria have been
met for each type of the Group’s activities as
described below:

(@) Sale of goods
Revenue of sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when all the following conditions

have been satisfied:

° properties are completed and
accepted after check;

° a legally binding sales contract has
been signed in proper manner and
form;

° all the significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the properties held for sale
have been transferred to the buyer;

° The Company does not retain either
continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with
ownership or effective control over the
sold properties and meet the other
criteria required when recognising
revenue mentioned above.

(b) Rendering of services

The Group provides service to external
parties. The related revenue is recognised
using the percentage of completion method,
with the stage of completion being determined
based on proportion of costs incurred to date
to the estimated total costs.
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:tBENEH G @
accounting estimates (continueq)

(22). Revenue recognition (Continued) (22). W ATERR (&)

60

(c) Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Income from an operating lease is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

(23). Government grants

Government grants are monetary or non-monetary
assets obtained from the government with no
consideration, including tax returns and financial
subsidies.

Grants from the government are recognised as
revenue where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Monetary assets of the
government grants are measured as the amount
received or receivable. Non-monetary assets of the
government grants are measured as fair value or
notional value if the fair value cannot be obtained
reliably.

Government grants related to assets are recognised
as deferred revenue and will be amortised on a
straight-line basis in current profit or loss over the
useful life of the related assets. Government grants
recognised at notional value are directly recognised
in profit or loss for the current period.

Government grants related to income which are used
to compensate expenses or losses in subsequent
periods, are recognised as deferred revenue and
realized in profit or loss for the period such expenses
or losses occurred; the ones which are to compensate
expenses or losses occurred in previous periods are
directly recognised in profit or loss for the current
period.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011

(23).

) EREEERLAE

A B AR IR E b 75 {8 A A
SEHERESHNRMRE - 5RA
BEFRFMRETHHETE

KRERBWARBEAREE
HEHARER

LA 466 Bl

BT B A A SR B BUT | EEUS
MT%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ#f%HEF'@
ERERE  MBERSE

TR #68 B 2 7S 52 (81 BE 59 2 EL AT B
B R (F I B BE S MR BB - T A BB
R BRI REREEEN &
R B REH SRR E - BUTH
PRFEBUEEN  RBAAE
BEFfE: 2ABETEAERE
B ERERSETE -

HEEMRBNRAME - BR/E
EWE’EEH%EFQQ?W
T DR - FEAERER - BEA
%ﬁa#EMﬁﬁﬁ% BHEFA
B HIEE o

B REBB B THE) - AREE
LAf& BAfRI 9 AE A B RSB K Y - T
REBREWZ  WERREBEER
BEAME - StABHIE S - ARFE
EEANBERERNERN i
STAEHIER -



m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:TBENEH & @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(24). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (24). BEFEHREEFIEEFRS

liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
calculated and recognised based on the differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts (temporary differences).
Deferred tax asset is recognised for the deductible
losses that can be carried forward to subsequent
years for deduction of the taxable profit in accordance
with the tax laws. No deferred tax asset or deferred
tax liability is recognised for the temporary differences
resulting from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities due to a transaction other than a business
combination, which affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). At the balance
sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences, deductible losses
and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference, and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. When it is probable that the temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates will be reversed in the
foreseeable future and that the taxable profit will be
available in the future against which the temporary
differences can be utilised, the corresponding
deferred tax assets are recognised.

Bff

BIEFMSHEENELCHFRAR
REEENMBEMNHERERR
HEENER(TRUEZR) A ER
R o HIMZIRBE E BEFIN AR
F RN TP 1S R A A IR HI &S
B EREENELEREREE -
HRBEAFESHANEETIEERE
M AT SR (AR HEER) /3D
XAMHNRSGTELNEELAR
MRERTKNEREER - T
T SR FE RO ST P 1S T B EE AR AT
FEHAR REEREXRA @ &
S HEENRELTHRSRARS
RBRBEHNMZEENFEZAE
HRAERRRTE -

EXEFT 1S 1 B EE A HE AR DA AR AJ BE BX
SRAXEANANENEREER - 7
$5 30 785 18 0 75 SRR B FE AR A P 1S
BRR -

HETRA] BELXRAEDLE
BREMBNEAREREEZR - #
RELMEHAE  BRIFEAEERE
S % S 1 = R E O M R B
ZERHMEEREARERNRRRA
ETgED - HETAR - BED
ERAECERREMRBOAENE
FUEZR ERERUEEZREATRE
SEARRIR AT g8 @ B R SRAR A gE
ESARENTENEREZED
FEM B P15 RRET - FERRIR T FT1S Bt
BE -

T —FhERE | HABERBERAT

61



m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FARA=ZTRHIEANER B GRERIZHEN  @BEMAARE TT)

—. EEEFTBRNEs & @

62

2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(24).

(25).

(26).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when:

° the deferred taxes are related to the same tax
payer within the Group and the same taxation
authority; and,

° that tax payer has a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities.

Leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset. An operating lease is a lease other than a
finance lease.

The Group does not have finance leases. Lease
payments under an operating lease are recognised
in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Maintenance and quality guarantee
funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property buyers
according to related regulations on behalf of housing
administration bureau, by certain percentage of selling
price of property, the fund will be remitted to housing
administration bureau upon registration of property
ownership.

Quality guarantee fund is reserved by certain
percentage of the project payment and payment will
be repaid to constructor when the properties are
completed, in condition that examined by government
authorities with no quality issue, and after the agreed
warranty period.

Interim Report 2011
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:TBENEH & @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(27). Discontinued operation (27). RIEEE
Discontinued operation is a component of the Group RIS RERREEXWES AR
that either has been disposed of or is classified as BRER « REE LRSI 1% H
held for sale, and can be distinguished from other REREHAEAEBEANERRDHHE
components within the Group in business operation KERS °
and in preparation of financial statements.

(28). Segment information (28). HEBIER
The Group identifies operating segments based on AEBLANPHEBERE  BTBE
the internal organisation, management requirements K NEHRE G E KB REELE
and internal reporting system, and the reportable DE - AEE D BREREE RS
segments is determined based on the operating DEILHEE D IBIEL °
segments.
An operating segment is a component of the Group KD BREANERARE®HE T
that satisfies all of the following conditions: (1) the HIRHEE RS D + (—) ~ AKX
component is able to earn revenues and incur HoeMEBBREBREERA
expenses from its operation activities; (2) whose BEEBR (D)  AEEEEERE
operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s 59 7E B FT (B 5% 48 Bk 3P o B A & K
management to make decisions about resources to R-UWAEREREER « FHEX
be allocated to the segment and to assess its ¥#E: (2) AEHEBHEGZAE
performance, and (3) for which the information on BB D B IS AR - A& R R FNIR
financial position, operating results and cash flows is ERNEZAHEETES c BRMAE
available to the Group. If two or more operating K EZ ML E D EE B MURNKER
segments have similar economic characteristics and B WERE —EEEH - BlE 6t
satisfy certain conditions, they are aggregated into B ALK EDED o
one single operating segment.

(29). Transactions with non-controlling (29). BRERHEFATVHRER
interests =

The transaction with non-controlling interest to
partially or wholly acquire interests in a subsidiary after
obtaining the control rights over the subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are measured
consistently following their value at the acquisition or
merger date in the consolidated financial statements.
The difference between additions in long-term
investment due to the interest purchase and additions
of shared net assets of the subsidiary calculated by
the additional share proportion, should be recorded
in capital surplus (share premium). In case share
premium is not sufficient to offset the difference,
retained earnings should be adjusted.

ERBHTARMNENER B
TRBNDBEREERE DB R
BEEMEZ T AR ZAHE D DHK
PR EAMHMBRERT - T
ARMEE AEUEER LA H
ARBFETENSERR - A
B BRSO R B AR
BRERZBHIBFRL AT EEE
BEFRRBBERKAGAMGE
BItEMFEENHE BNERE
HEAHUHERRTNEARTE (K
R fE)  RAGED TR - 58

BRS -
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2. Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (continueq)

(29).

(30).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Transactions with non-controlling
interests (Continued)

The transaction with non-controlling interest to
dispose interests in a subsidiary without losing control
rights over the subsidiary, the difference between the
proceeds from disposal of interests and the decrease
of the shared net assets of the subsidiary is adjusted
to capital surplus (share premium). In case share
premium is not sufficient to offset the difference,
retained earnings will be adjusted.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical
accounting estimates and key judgments applied
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable.

(@ Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are as following:

(i) Property development cost

Critical estimates and judgments on
budget cost and development
progress are required in determining
property development cost. The
budget cost and development
progress of the project is reviewed by
the Group on a regular basis and
adjusted as appropriate. Should the
actual cost differs from the budget
cost, such difference will impact the
accuracy of cost of properties held for
sale.

Interim Report 2011
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2. Significant accounting policies and =. FEE:TBENEH & @

accounting estimates (continueq)

(30). Critical accounting estimates and (30). EEFHETIHE (&)

judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key () EEZ o RAFRER
assumptions (Continued) (&)
(ii) Taxes (ii) T8
The Group is subject to various taxes REEFEREE
in the PRC. There are many BEEEMZERN

(i)

(iv)

transactions and events for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain

B EERMKER
B REXZNE

during the ordinary course of TE ) fx A8 50 75 B BE AR
business. Significant judgement is GFEDREEM o £5T
required in determining the provision RIHBEHRET S

for land appreciation tax (“LAT”) and
other taxes. Where the final tax

o AEETEED
ERhF - REL

outcome of these matters is different MIEEIBH R RE
from the amounts that were initially HERESIARNE®

recorded, such differences will impact
the tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually whether
assets have suffered any impairment
in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(19), and makes
any adjustment to provisions for
impairment accordingly.

Provisions for bad debts of receivables
The Group tests annually whether trade

and other receivables have suffered any
impairment in accordance with the

(i)

(iv)

BEEEZR =R
5 A 4R AR
EHEF RAREE
MELTE o

BERME

RABB EE = (19) B it
HEETBUR - ANEE
BFAREERSR
(ERIZ Y KR
BEBFEITIEET ©

JE MR IR AR
IR BB EE = (10) P st

BRI - AR
SEMABERER

accounting policy stated in note 2(10) & IR E I IR I
and makes any adjustment to provisions (AR AR B 1T
for bad debts of receivables accordingly. 185 °
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accounting estimates (continueq)

(30). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(30). EEEHE&ETFHE (@)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key () BEEF A RAFR RS
assumptions (Continued) (&)

(v) Deferred tax assets (v) BIEFRG R EE
Deferred tax assets are only NE B R RE S48
recognised for deductible losses to the VAR F [ ey a1 /&5
extent that it is probable that taxable B URATEEEEH
profit will be available in the future HARFN AT R A B 1R Y
against which the deductible losses RRENTFTSRER
can be utilised. MR - FERAEFE AR IE

FIBTEE °
(b)  Key Judgment on application of accounting (b) FRA & aT IR B B £ T —

policy — revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy stated in
note 2(22), the assessment of when an entity
has transferred the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to buyers requires the
examination of the circumstances of the
transaction. In most cases, the transfer point
of risks and rewards of ownership coincides
with the date when the equitable interest in
the property vests with the buyer upon release
of the respective property to the buyer.

As disclosed in note 9, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. These
guarantees will be expired when relevant
property ownership certificates are lodged
with the various banks by the purchasers. The
Group believe that significant risks and
rewards associated to the ownership of the
properties have been transferred to the
purchasers when the equitable interest in the
property vests with the buyer upon release of
the respective property to the buyer.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011
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3. Taxation =. HIE

The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are set AREEARNEEE A R E ERE KA RS

out below: (N
Type Tax rate Taxable base
#HE BE HE
Enterprise income tax 25% Taxable income
1 EFTEH FE ML PS8R
Business tax 5% Taxable turnover amount
N JE 4T & 2R
LAT 30%-60% Taxable value added amount
4 i 3B (E (Tax payable is calculated

using the value appreciation amount realised
through sales multiplied by the effective tax rate
of current period)

BEEEMDSHEMRIEERE

Urban maintenance and construction tax 5%-7% Business tax payable
Yok R A JE i & R RR
Education Surcharge 3% Business tax payable
B & JE i & E R RR
Property Taxes 1.2% Taxable residual value of properties
BED = E e TR E
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4. Business Combination and . tEESHREHHBEE
consolidated financial statement

(1). Significant subsidiaries (=). BEEFATER
1, Subsidiaries incorporated by promoters at 1. AR A BEHE AR RS AR A
establishment of the Company, AT AT :
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EMER EATRARELA ANFRRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-TFT-A=+-B =B--FAA=tR —F-FF+-A=1-A
Name registration EBMER issued —B--% ZT-TF  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
FARER it HEEE CRORE AASTE  t-ASt-R L4 53 E# itk j-t:3 53 E# itk
% % % % % % % %
(i) Central Plaza Beijng, Property - USDER USD£T 75 % 75 % 7 2% 7 2%
Real Estate thePRC  Development 11,258,000 11,258,000
Development ERM and
Co,, Ltd. Investment
(Central FHERE -
Company’) RYEEES
SRARERER
ARAEGATH
[HIRAH])
(2)  Befing Rongjin Bejjng, Property - USD&R: USD £7t 10 495 10 495 10 495 10 495
Real Estate the PRC Development 6,360,000 6,360,000
Development JERT and
Co., Ltd. Investment
(‘Rongjin BHERZ
Company’) (| kmgERE
IRHEREHE
FEARAH
(AT
[genal)
(8)  Beling Sunshing Bejing, Property - RMB AR RVB AR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Jindu Properties thePRC  Development 370,000,000 370,000,007t
Co.Ltd. ERT BHERE
(+Jindu Company) RifE
RG2S
EXERAT
(A8
[Bxe#)
(4 Central Plaza BVI Investment - USDER1 USDETT 1 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Co., Ltd. RBEAR Holding
(Central BS REEE
Plaza’)
RES
BARAF
(AT
[Central
Plazal)
(6)  International BVI Investment - USDEm1 USD Tt 1 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Finance EBEAR Holding
Center B5 REER
Property
Co., Ltd.
(1FC)
il 4 L
NEARLA
(ATREIIFCI)
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4. Business Combination and N, tEESHEREHMBER
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continueq) (=). EEFATEAR &)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business 2. FAIER —EH TORES
combinations involving enterprises not under HEISHFAE]
common control:

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
HERER RRARERELH RRRRRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-TET-A=t-H =B--FAA=tH —F-TE+-A=t-H
Name registration EBMER issued —F--F ZT-%F  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct ~ In-dlrect
FRAER s GggE CREF AA=tA tA=T-AH 4 Gt L i -t Gt B# iz
% % % % % % % %
(1) S.C.Real Estate Beiing, Property - RMBAR® RMB AR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development thePRC  Development 640,000,000 640,000,007
Co, Lid. R BHERE
(8C.) R#E
L
BHELR
BARAA
(AT
EEER)
() Bejjng HYHL Beijing, Property - USDER USD %7 - 100 85 15 = 100 8 15
Real Estate the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
Development ERE Eﬂﬂéﬁﬁ%
Co, Ltd. R#E
(HUHL) i)
tRERE
BiE
ARAA
(AT
[E5
FI2]) i)
(3 BsjingAnhua Bejing, Property - USDER USD#7T 55 = 55 = 55 = % =
Shiji Real the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Estate ERH ERERE
Development RiE
Co., Ltd.
(*Anfua Shi)
R%E
tEENE
FRARAH
(AT
[REtR])
{4 Tianjn Banshan Tianjn, Property - USDER USD#7T = 55 55 = = 55 % =
Renjia Real the PRC Development 60,000,000 60,000,000
Estate R ERERE
Co, Lid. R#&
(‘Tianjin
Banshan’) ii)
KR
ARE#
ARAA
(AT
[REH) (i)
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4. Business Combination and N, tESHREHMBER»
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (=). EEFATRER #@)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business 2. ARG THRES
combinations involving enterprises not under FEBHTAR : (&)
common control, (Continued)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
HERER RRARERELH RARRRELA
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-TET-A=t-H =B--FAA=tH —F-TE+-A=t-H
Name registration EBMER issued ZF--F ZZ-ZF  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-dlrect
FRAER s GEgE CRTEF RA=tA  t-A=T-R8 4 Gk L i -t Gt L G5
% % % % % % % %
(5 Bejing Sunshine Beijing, Property - USDER USD£T 50 = 50 = 60 - 60 =
City Real Estate the PRC Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
Development ERH ERERE
Co, Ltd. R#&
(“Sunshine
City') )
SERE A
FBiE
ARAA
(ATH
[B51)0)
(6)  Chongging Chongging, Property - USD&R USD#7 - 50 50 - - 66.7 66.7 -
Xinshi Real the PRC Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Estate BEm FRERY
Development RigE
CO0.,d.
(‘Chongaing
Yinshi) ()i
EFEsl
HRE%
BRAA
(ATH
[EF
#1) )
(7)  Outlets Property Foshan, Property - USD&R USD £ - 55 - 55 - 55 - 55
Investment the PRC Development 40,000,000 40,000,000
Guang Dong il FHERS
Ltd. (“Outlets RifE
Guangdong’)
RRREER
ERERAR
(AT
[RRER])
(8) Beling Bejjng, Property - RMBAR® N/A - 100 - - - 100 - -
Xinbocheng thePRC  Development 89,000,0007% il
Real Estate R FRERE
Development RifE
Co,, Ltd.
(Xinbocheng’) i)
LA
FHERE
BARAF
(AT
[ ()

70 BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011



m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5
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4. Business Combination and N, tEESHEREHMBER
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (=). EEFATRER @)
3. Subsidiaries obtained from investment and 3. i B M E 5 SRS B
other procedures F A
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
iEfit EATRARELA ANARRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-FFT-A=+-B =B--FAA=tR —F-FF+-A=1-A
Name registration EBRER issued —B--f ZT-%F  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
FARER it fEHE C2RAEF KAZTR ToA=T-H L4 653 E# itk J-t:3 53 B# 4
% % % % % % % %
(1) Bejing Capita Beijing, Property —  RMB ARY RMB AR 100 = 100 = 100 - 100 =
Xinzi the PRC Development 496,590,000 496,590,0007T
Real Estate ERH ERERE
Ltd. R#&
(‘Befing Xinz?)
StREE
WEER
BARAF
(AT
[tR% &)
(2)  Beiing Shangboya Beiing, Investment - RMBAR® RMB AR B 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Investment the PRC Holding 30,000,0007 30,000,00070
Consultant SR REER
Co,, Ltd.
(Shangboya’)
SEREER
RERA
ARAF
(AT
[HfER)
(3)  Beiing Shangbodi Beiing, Investment - RMBAR% RMB AR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Investment the PRC holding 30,000,0007C 30,000,007
Consultant JERT REER
Co., Ltd.
(“Shangbod’)
SRS
REEA
ARAA
(AT
[ifEs))
(4 Tianjin Xinchuang Tianjin, Property - USsD&xm USD %7t - 55 - 55 - 55 - 55
Land Ltd. the PRC Development 25,000,000 25,000,000
(Tianjin REm  EHERZ
Xinchuang’) REE
REmel
B%
BARAF
(AT
[R#H8)
(5)  Chengdu Chengdu, Property - USDER USD£7 - 55 55 - - 55 55 -
Capital Xinzi the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Real Estate T FRERY
Development kg
Ltd. (‘Chengdu
inz?) (i)
REEE
MEER
BRAF
(AT
[ AL (i)
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BE—ZT——FRXA=+HILERHE GRERZEBN  SREMRARET T

4. Business Combination and . tESHREHUBEERET @
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (=). EEFATRER #@)
3. Subsidiaries obtained from investment and 3. A EME M X ES A
other procedures (Continued) E/NCING -
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
BalE EATRARELSH RNFRRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-TFT-A=+-B =B--FAA=tRE —F-FF+-A=1-A
Name registration EBMER issued —B--f ZT-TF  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-direct
FARER it fEHE CRAEF  KAZTR ToAST-R L4 63 E# itk J-t:3 53 E# itk
% % % % % % % %
(6)  Jiangsu Capital Wi, Property - USsDER USD %7t 60 40 60 - 60 40 60 -
Real Estate the PRC Development 12,500,000 12,500,000
Development &5 ERERE
Ltd. (“Jiangsu RifE
Captal’) (i)
THERIER
ARAF
(A8
[iI&
B8l
(7)  Beijing Caotang Beijing, Property - RMB AR® RVMB AR - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC Development 10,000,0007% 10,000,0007%
Development SR FRERY
Ltd. R#E
IRERES
BRAA
(ATH
[EEEX)
®  Bejing Capital Chengdu, Property - RMBAE®  RMBAEM 100 = 100 = 100 = 100 -
Land Chengdu the PRC Development 150,000,000 150,000,0007C
Co., Ltd. 750 ERERE
(Capital RHE
Chengdu’)
BEERNS
ARAF
(A8
[E8IR#)
(9)  Chengdu Chengdu, Property - USDER USD 7t - 55 55 - - 55 55 -
Capital Yidu the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,000
Real Estate %0l FRERE
Development RiE
Co,, Ltd.
(‘Chengdu
Vi) i)
A EIEE
EXERAT
(A8
[RAEB)) (i)
(10) Tianjin Capital Tianjin, Property - USD&: USD 7t - 55 55 - - 55 55 -
Xinyuan the PRC Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Real Estate K& FRERE
Development RiE
Co,, Ltd.
(‘Tianjin
Xinyuan’) i
REEEHE
EXERAT
(A8
[R2HE) (i)
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4. Business Combination and . tESHREHUBEERET @
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (=). EEFATRER @)
3. Subsidiaries obtained from investment and 3. i B M E 5 SRS B
other procedures (Continued) FRAR) (&
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
BalE EATRARELA ANARRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-FFT-A=+-B =B--FAA=tR —F-FF+-A=1-A
Name registration EBRER issued —B--f ZT-%F  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
FARER it fEHE C2RAEF KAZTR ToA=T-H L4 653 E# itk J-t:3 53 B# 4
% % % % % % % %
(1) Tienjin Capital Tianji, Property - USDER USD£T = 5 5 = = 5% 55 -
Xingang thePRC  Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Real Estate R ERERE
Development RE
Co., Ltd.
(‘Tianjin
Xingang’) (i)
KEEsl
MBEE
ARAA
(AT
[REHE]) (i)
(12)  Wuxi Xindong W, Property - RMB AR RMB AR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,0007C
Development &HT RHERS
0o, Ltd. REE
("Wuxi Xindong”)
E- L]
HRES
ARAA
(AT
[&HHR])
(13)  Central Plaza British Hotel = USD £7 USD £ 75 25 75 25 75 25 75 25
Xinrong Hotel Virgin Operation 6,062,000 6,062,000
Management Islands and
Co., Ltd. KEEAR  Management
(Central Plaza BS BEEE
Xinrong’) HEE
FRERER
BEER
BRAA
(AT
[RRER])
(14) Beling Chuangxin Beijing, Investment - RMBAE®  RMBAEM 100 = 100 = 100 = 100 -
Jianye the PRC Holding 50,000,000 50,000,007
Real Estate ERH REER
Investment Ltd.
(‘Chuangxin
Jlanye”)
SEREEE
BERE
ARAA
(AT
[E#E%)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE—ZT——FRXA=+HILERHE GRERZEBN  SREMRARET T

4. Business Combination and . tESHREHUBEERET @
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (=). EEFATRER #@)
3. Subsidiaries obtained from investment and 3. A EME M X ES A
other procedures (Continued) E/NCING -
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
BalE EATRARELSH RNFRRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-TFT-A=+-B =B--FAA=tRE —F-FF+-A=1-A
Name registration EBMER issued —B--f ZT-TF  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-direct
FARER it fEHE CRAEF  KAZTR ToAST-R L4 63 E# itk J-t:3 53 E# itk
% % % % % % % %
(1) Jingiin Tongcheng Tienjin, Property - RMBAE®  RMBAEM = 50 = 50 = 51 - 51
(Tianjin) thePRC  Development 50,000,000 50,000,007
Investment R ERERE
Co, Ltd. R#&
(lingjn
Tongcheng’) ()
REAER (K2)
REBRAA
(AT
[RER%HD 0
(16)  Outlets Property Befing, Property - USDER USD#7 - 9 - 9 - 9 - 9
Investment the PRC Development 127,000,000 127,000,000
Fang Shan SR and
Ltd. Investment
StRES FHERS
RERE R#E
FLEX
ARAF
(17) Beiing Capttl Beijng, Property - RMBAE®  RMBAEM = 100 = 100 = 100 - 100
Zhongbei the PRC Development 100,000,000 100,000,0007C
Real Estate ERH ERERE
Development RifE
Co., Ltd.
JEREE
A ER
ARAA
(18) Guangdong Foshan, Property - USD&R: USD 7t - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Guansheng the PRC Development 40,000,000 40,000,000
Real Estate il FRERY
Development RiE
Co,, Ltd.
(Guangdong
Guansheng')
ERTAER
ARAF
(A8
[EREZ))
(19)  Guangdong Foshan, Property - USD&R: USD 7t - 68 - 68 - 68 = 68
Rongxin the PRC Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
Real Estate il FRERE
Development RiHE
Co,, Ltd
(Guangdong
Rongxin”)
ERERER
ARAF
(A8
[ER%(R)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

4. Business Combination and . tESHREHUBEERET @
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continueq) (=). EEFATEAR &)
3. Subsidiaries obtained from investment and 3. i B M E 5 SRS B
other procedures (Continued) FRAR) (&
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
i EATRARELA ANARRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-FFT-A=+-B =B--FAA=tR —F-FF+-A=1-A
Name registration EBRER issued —B--f ZT-%F  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
FARER it fEHE C2RAEF KAZTR ToA=T-H L4 653 E# itk J-t:3 53 B# 4
% % % % % % % %
(20) Guangdong Foshan, Property - USsDER USD %7t - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Jingsheng thePRC  Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
Real Estate Bl ERERE
Development RiE
Co., Ltd.
(Guangdong
Jingsheng’)
ERRBEX
ARAA
(T8
[ERZH])
(21)  BECL Investment Hong Investment RMB AK% USD £7 USD £ 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 -
Holding Ltd. Kong Holding 1,150000000 9,900,000 9,900,000
(‘BECL’) Bl REEE
BERERR
ARAA
(AT
[HERE])
(22) Beling Shangyi Beijing, Property - RMBAE®  RMBAEM = 69 = 69 = 69 - 69
Real Estate the PRC Development 10,310,0007% 10,310,000
Development ERH EHERE
Co, Ltd. R#&
(‘Beiing
Shangyi’)
FRBEEER
ARAF
(AT
[tREE])
(23 Beling Beijing, Property - RMBAE®  RMBAEM = % = % = % - %
Anshunyuan the PRC Development 50,000,0007% 50,000,0007%
Real Estate R FRERY
Development RiE
Co., Ltd.
(*Anshunyuan’)
FRZIEE
FHERE
BARAF
(AT
[ZIRE])
(24)  Zhengjiang Xianji Zhenjiang, Property - USD&ER N/A - 100 = = - 100 = =
Real Estate thePRC  Development 30,000,000 T#ER
Development I BHERE
Co,, Ltd. RiEE
BIRE%X
ARAA
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE—ZT——FRXA=+HILERHE GRERZEBN  SREMRARET T

4. Business Combination and M. tX48#HRSHUBERE»
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (=). EEFATRER #@)
3. Subsidiaries obtained from investment and 3. A EME M X ES A
other procedures (Continued) E/NCING -
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
iEfit EATRARELSH RNFRRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-TFT-A=+-B =B--FAA=tRE —F-FF+-A=1-A
Name registration EBMER issued —B--f ZT-TF  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct  In-direct
FARER it fEHE CRAEF  KAZTR ToAST-R L4 63 E# itk J-t:3 53 E# itk
% % % % % % % %
(25)  Zhejiang Shouxin Huzhou, Property - USsDER USD %7t - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Real Estate the PRC Development 24,500,000 24,500,000
Development B ERERE
Co, Ltd. R#&
(‘Zhejiang
Shouxin’)
MIEEER
ARAF
(AT
MTERED
(26)  Zhejiang Hualong Huzhou, Property - USDER USD#7 - 68 - 68 - 68 - 68
Real Estate the PRC Development 67,000,000 67,000,000
Development HMm FHERE
Co,, Ltd. RigE
(‘Zhejiang
Hualong’)
FIZEER
ARAF
(A8
[TE])
(27)  Capital (Tianjin) Tianjin, Business - RMBAR% RMB AR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate the PRC Management 5,000,0007 5,000,00070
Management KEm PEEE
Co., Ltd.
(‘Tianjin
Real Estate’)
BE(X3)
EXER
ARAF
(A8
[R2EX])
(28)  Capital (Chengaly) Chengdu, Investment - RMBAR% RMB AR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Investment the PRC Holding 5,000,0007 5,000,007
0o, Ltd. 280l RAEE
(Chengdu
Investment’)
- [02%:)
REEE
ARAA
(AT
[R#RE])
(29) Beiing Bejjng, Property - RMB AR RVB AR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Ruiyuanfengji the PRC Development 10,000,000 10,000,00070
Real Estate ERW RHERS
Development
Co., Ltd.
(‘Ruiyuanfengji’)
IRETYEES
ARAA
(ATHE
bz 1))
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

4. Business Combination and M. t%48#HRASHHABERE»
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (=). EEFATRER @)
3. Subsidiaries obtained from investment and 3. i B M E 5 SRS B
other procedures (Continued) FRAR) (&
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
BalE EATRARELA ANARRELH
Principal 30 June 31 December 30 June 2011 31 December 2010 30 June 2011 31 December 2010
Place of activities Bonds 2011 2010 =%--%AA=tR ZT-FFT-A=+-B =B--FAA=tR —F-FF+-A=1-A
Name registration EBRER issued —B--f ZT-%F  Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct Direct In-direct Direct  In-direct
FARER it fEHE C2RAEF KAZTR ToA=T-H L4 653 E# itk J-t:3 53 B# 4
% % % % % % % %
(30) Beiing Beijng, Property - RMBAE®  RMBAEM 100 = 100 = 100 = 100 -
Ruiyuanfengxiang thePRC  Development 10,000,0007 10,000,000
Real Estate ERH ERERE
Development RE
Co., Ltd.
(‘Ruiyuanfengxiang’)
FRRTERER
BARAF
(AT
[RTE#)
(31) Beiing Beiing, Investment - RMBAR® RMB AR B 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Yinyuanchengye the PRC Holding 1,000000% 1,000,007
Consultant SR REER
Co,, Ltd.
(Xinyuanchengye’)
FRBRBFED
ARAA
(AT
[&E3%))
(32)  Beijing Xinyelida Beiing, Municipal - RMB AR RMB AR 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Municipal the PRC Engineering 20,000,0007C 20,000,007
Engineering bl THEL -
Co., Ltd.
(*Xinyelida’)
tRE%TE
mHIR
ARAA
(AT
[B%7E)
(33) Capital Nanjing Nenjing, Property - RMBAE®  RMBAEM 100 = 100 = 100 = 100 -
Investment thePRC  Development 5,000,000 5,000,0007
Co., Ltd. AR ERERE -
(‘Nanjing RE
Investment’)
HEIER
REER
BARAF
(AT
[ARRE])
(34)  Haikou Capital Haikou, Property - RMBAR¥ RMB AR 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 -
Xinye the PRC Development 10,000,0007 10,000,0007
Investment Bom FRERY
Co,, Ltd. RiEE
(‘Haikou Xinye")
BOEEl
HERA
ARAF
(AT
[EOHE)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z——FNA=TAHLXNEAAMSE GREIERIN  SRELSARETT)

4. Business Combination and M. SESHRESHMBERR @

consolidated financial statement
(Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

3 Subsidiaries obtained from investment and
other procedures (Continued)

(i) According to the Articles of
Association of Sunshine City,
Chongqging Xinshi and Jingjin
Tongcheng, the Group holds 50%
equity interests and has control over
all three companies.

(if) Relevant information about the
subsidiaries obtained from business
combinations involving enterprises not
under common control by the Group
in the reporting period is stated in note
4(2).

(iif) In June 2011, the Company
transferred all equity interests of the
above subsidiaries held to other
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. The Company recognized
the difference between consideration
of the transaction and the cost of long-
term equity investment as the
investment income. (note 11(4))

(iv) In April 2011, the Group acquired 40%
equity interests of Capital Jiangsu,
which became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company after the
transaction. (note 5 (24)(a))
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AR FCERBA A A
R AEEFEE=
R A A150%H) i &R
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NG B R BN
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(=) o
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AR IPAREE RS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_ZT——FRNA=TAHLXNEAAMSE GREFIZERI)  SHEELSARETT)

4. Business Combination and M. ES#HRESHMBERER®

consolidated financial statement
(Continued)

(2). Business combination involving entities (=).
not under common control

In January 2011, two subsidiaries of the Company,
Shangboya and Beijing Ruiyuan Fengji acquired 92%
and 8% equity interests of Xinbocheng respectively.
The principal activity of Xinbocheng is property
development. The Group treats this purchasing of
subsidiary as business combination.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill
recognized are as follows:

ER—EHTHRESH

R-ZF——F—H  ARAEANTA
B S HE K iR T 8 H 2 RIEUS TR
T 92% K 8% M X - #iEm =
NEFHEFRERST - AREAR U
WETFRRNRZHER/XBEHE
# o

WS FEERMENERE
WANTR ¢

RMB’000
ARETT
Cost of combination — A PER A —
Cash Paid KRS 89,000
Less: Fair value of the identifiable B BUS AT SRR
net assets acquired FEEARER 89,000
Goodwill S -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FARA=ZTRHIEANER B GRERIZHEN  @BEMAARE TT)

4. Business Combination and M. tX48#HRSHUBERE»
consolidated financial statement

(Continued)
(2). Business combination involving entities (Z). kEA—EHTHRESH @)
not under common control (Continued)
Assets, liabilities and related cash flow of Xinbocheng FERRBEAMNEE - AERE
at acquisition date are as follows: WEBEBEHERE S TEB R
T~
Fair value Book value
AREE R EE
31 December
At acquisition At acquisition 2010
date date —E-=fF
BER BER +=-HA=t+—H
Cash EES 684 684 684
Receivables JE Y TR I8 7,490 7,490 7,490
Inventories FE 1,110,374 1,074,241 1,074,241
Less: accounts payables W T RRER 622,921 622,921 622,921
Other payables H e 3R 302,579 302,579 302,579
Employee benefit payable JrE {1 B8 T 357 M 1 15 15
Short-term borrowings REHER 95,000 95,000 95,000
Deferred tax liabilities REFSHAE 9,033 — —
Net assets A E 89,000 61,900 61,900
Less: non-controlling W DB R
interests =
Net assets acquired BISHFEE 89,000
Consideration paid in cash AT & TS K EE 89,000
Less: cash obtained from B BUS B s
subsidiary acquired FREIRIER S (684)
Net cash paid in acquisition ~ EUf5 T2 7] 3 (&)
& FE 88,316
The revenues, net loss and cash flows of Xinbocheng FEMEEERE T ——F <A
for the period from the acquisition date to 30 June =+ HIEHBEHKRA - FEEMR
2011 are as follows: SREHRWT
RMB’000
AREFT
Revenues EEWA —
Net loss F 1R 3,090
Net cash in-flows of operational activities #&%& /& E)IE & /Fm A 27,774
Net cash in-flows BEFRA 27,787
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BHEZZ——FAA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN  @BECAARETT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IFERKRIEBKM:E

Financial Statements

(1). cash (1). &%&E2
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—ZE——F T —EF
NA=tHR +=-—A=+—8H
Cash on hand EFRE 1,452 1,517
Bank Deposits RITER 9,461,564 8,458,551
Total A&t 9,463,016 8,460,068

As at 30 June 2011, restrict bank deposits includes
supervised advance from customers and security
deposits for certain mortgage loans to customers,
amounted to RMB983,231,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB30,624,000). The Group has reclassified the
above amount to restricted bank deposits. According
to the requirements of some local authorities (such
as Beijing, Tianjin etc.), real estate developers need
to open supervised bank accounts for depositing the
advances received from property customers, when
they apply for advance sale permits. Such accounts
are supervised by the monitory institute and the cash
expenditure should coincide with the construction
process in order to ensure the cash being used for
property construction on a priority basis. As at
30 June 2011, the cash deposited in above-
mentioned accounts amounted to RMB951,352,000
(81 December 2010: nil).

RZE——FA=+H " R17F
AP AR A R#983,231,0007T (=
T—TE+-_FA=+—H: ARK
30,624,0007T) WTBEEE & & M
FEBEFRES  ASEHES
HEZRES - BRERESDHHBE
(fdb s~ KRS ) HEEEHE
BHENBEEESEEIENHTE -
AR REREEET A ERE
FAUBEESEERS  AmERE
BRI FEARNREEEESE
EEAKRF AERAREIRE
EHBFEAXEEES  HEAS
BEEARIBESR RZT——
FRNA=1TE  AEEEREEXEA
R #951,352,00070 (ZE—FF
ZA=+—8: 8 NRITEXRFE
FARRE
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEERSRE GRERNZHAN  HEECSARETIT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continueq)

(2). Accounts receivable and other (2). FEM AR AR B L fth FE I 3R
receivables
(@) Accounts receivable (a) JEUL AR 5
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
~BE=1+H +=-—A=+—H
Accounts receivables JiE U BR X 259,905 389,208
Less: provision for bad debts B AR (3,844) (3,844)
Receivables — net R 256,061 385,364

82

Most sales of the Group is in form of cash
and advanced payment, other sales are
collected subject to the agreed terms on sales
contract.

At 30 June 2011, accounts receivables
include property sale receivable due from
Chengdu Zirui Xinli Co, Ltd., (“Zirui Xinli”) and
Bejing Ruijing Yangguang Properties Co,Ltd.
(“Ruijing Yangguang”) amounted to
RMB135,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB135,000,000), both are subsidiaries of
related party Yangguang Co, Ltd (“Yangguang
Xinye”)). (Note 7(4)(a).
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE—Z——FRXA=+HILNERHE GREIZEBN  SRECRARET T

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @

Financial Statements (continveq)

(2). Accounts receivable and other (2). FEUWERSE R H {thrEW R (&)
receivables (Continued)

FEW AR ()

(@ Accounts receivable (Continued) (@)

The ageing analysis of the accounts JE W BR SRR B BR B ER R AR

receivables are as follows: BROMTAAT ¢
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF

AA=+B +-A=+—H

Within 1 year —FLARN 17,039 381,535
1 to 2 years —H=%F 235,193 =
Over 3 years =FAE 7,673 7,673
Total BET 259,905 389,208

Accounts receivables outstanding for over one year
are mainly related to sales of properties held for sale.
As at 30 June 2011, accounts receivables of
RMB160,000 (31 December 2010: RMB160,000)
were past due but not impaired with the ageing of
over 3 years. An amount of RMB7,513,000 (31
December 2010: RMB7,513,000) is considered as

HRO BRI K — F 0 YR
R ETRRHRERNEGRD
ERNRFHIRNE T TYE
HER - HEZZT——FRX
H=+H  @BHERELR
BEEXNEZER/RARE

160,0007C (ZE—ZF + =
A=Z+—H : AR
160,0007T) * BREC BB =
F o A B B ARER K
H fE B A R 7,513,000
T(CE—ZEF+-_A=1+—
H: AR#7,513,0007T)
IRIREBA=F - YWERERE
k&5 AEARES,844,0007T
—EZTF+ZA=1+—
H : AK#¥3,844,0007T) °

past due and impaired with the ageing of over 3
years, with impairment of RMB3,844,000
(31 December 2010: RMBS,844,000).
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEERSRE GRERNZHAN  HEECSARETIT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continueq)

(2). Accounts receivable and other (2). FEWRMREELMBEWKRRR &)
receivables (Continued)
(b) Other receivables (b) H ) fE M
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
=—E——-F —ET-TF
ANAB=+H +=-A=f+—H
Amounts due from joint ventures  FEUZ A& & A & 3K 5k 104,885 =
Amounts due from associates J7E Ui Bet 5 1\ ) 1 R R 99,548 107,054
Guarantee deposits REL 504,158 19,700
Property agency fees and other ~ RinHEERRRE
receivables due from Zirui Xinli FHEEERR 19,873 18,892
Investment paid for RBET DN RGHA
Reco Ziyang Pte Ltd. HEERRAA
(“Reco Ziyang”) (LA 78 [ hn 3
K5 ]1) Bt 2 R 10,240 10,240
Amounts due from %55 ot 37 25 13 2R
Yangguang Xinye 100,000 —
Development cooperation FEIHEB & ERR
advances 34,800 494,820
Others H Al 233,846 161,642
Total At 1,107,350 812,348
Less: provisions for bad debts B EBEREE (30,322) (30,322
Receivables — net FEE 1,077,028 782,026
The analysis of other receivables and related H 8 WK 2 4B FE Y 5B AR 2E
provisions for bad debts are as follows: HEOFER
As at 30 June 2011 As at 31 December 2010
—2--5XA=1A —F-T5t-A=+-H
% of total % of the % of total % of the
Amount balance Provision provision Amount balance  Provision  provision
S HHBLA FEEE  HELA S8 HeBh  RHREE  HRLA
% % % %
Within 1 year —&MA 950,353 86 - - 663,245 82 — —
1to2years —E =% 23,845 2 - - 107,738 13 - -
2t03years —H=F 101,574 9 - - 1,109 - - -
Over3years =% 31,578 3 (30,322 96 40,256 5 (30,322 75
Total At 1,107,350 100  (30,322) 3 812,348 100 (30,322 4
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE—Z——FRXA=+HILNERHE GREIZEBN  SRECRARET T

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(3). Advances to suppliers (3). FAFRIA
The advances to suppliers are analysis as follows as RZE——FA=1AH BEIK
at 30 June 2011: B\AWNAT :
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
NA=+tHB +=A=+—8H
Prepaid taxes TEAF S 906,120 643,281
Prepaid sales commissions FEHE RS 87,425 63,418
Prepayment for acquisition of TERERE R
subsidiaries 15,000 169,680
Prepaid land costs, construction  JEft L5 « T2
costs and project costs MIEH R 507,761 756,726
Total BT 1,516,306 1,633,105
The ageing analysis of the advances to suppliers is TER IR FIRBRER DT AT
as follows:
As at 30 June 2011 As at 31 December 2010
—E2——-FXA=tH —E-ZF+ZRA=1+—H
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
€8 (hEEns S8 (BB
% %
Within 1 year —E LA 1,259,709 83 1,633,105 100
Over 1 year —&Ep 256,597 17 — —
Total A&t 1,516,306 100 1,633,105 100
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continueq)

(4). Dividends Receivable (4). FEWREH
31 December 30 June
2010 Currentyear Current year 2011

—E-Ef additions  reductions —E-——-F
+=A=+-AH AL KER D ~A=tH

Beijing Xingtai Real Estate TREREMERE
Development Co, Ltd. BRAR
(“Xingtai Company”) (ATHEIEZAR]) 162,565 — - 162,565

Beijing Capital Fengdu Real TREEIRERE
Estate Development Co., Ltd.  FIZABREEARF

(“Fengdu Company”) A TRIRERR]) 32,237 = = 32,237
Xi'an Capital Xinkal Real Estate P B A5 E %
Development Co., Ltd. BRAR
(“Xi"anXinkai”) (AT B[ 3n]) 12,400 - - 12,400
Beijing Donghai Investment TREEHEREER
Development Co., Ltd. BRAR 76,404 — (17,772 58,632
Total G 283,606 - (17,772) 265,834
(5). Inventories (5). #E
Inventories are classified as follows: FESEWAT
As at 30 June 2011 As at 31 December 2010
—E--FXB=1H “E-ZF+-f=1-H
Book  Provisions Book Book Provisions Carrying
balance of inventory value balance  of inventory value

REGE FEREER RAEE RARE FEREER RHEE

Development cost RERA 16,958,284 - 16958284 12,818,683 — 12,818,683
Inventories and properties  Fi%Em

held for sale 1,755,565 - 1,755,565 2,284,708 — 2,284,708
Land under developing RER L 198,344 - 198,344 266,956 - 266,956
Merchandise B Em 4,172 - 4,172 4,172 = 4,172
Low value consumables ~ EEZ#Em 3,788 - 3,788 3,742 - 3,742
Total &t 18,920,153 - 18,920,153 15,378,261 - 15,378,261
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A. SHMHBHERREBME @

5.

Notes to the Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements (continveq)

(5).

Inventories (Continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, the
properties held for sale with the carrying amount of
RMB622,269,000 (for the six months ended 30 June
2010: RMB1,684,350,000) has been recognised as
cost of sales. (note 5(27)(a))

As at 30 June 2011, the financed costs capitalised in
the development cost amounted to
RMB1,085,153,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB644,789,000). For six months ended 30 June
2011, the capitalization rate is 6.4% (For six months
ended 30 June 2010: 5.5%).

As at 30 June 2011, certain properties held for sale
with a carrying amount of RMB1,010,835,000 (31
December 2010: RMB1,010,835,000) were pledged
as security for short-term borrowings of
RMB750,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB750,000,000) (note 5(13)).

As at 30 June 2011, certain land use rights under
development with a carrying amount of
RMB477,539,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB212,823,000) have been pledged as security for
long-term borrowings of RMB730,000,000 (31
December 2010: RMB20,000,000) (note 5(20)(c)).

As at 30 June 2011, right to yields on certain land
use rights and real estate development projects under
development (gains from the sale of land use rights
or other profit obtained from the relevant land use
rights and projects) with a carrying amount of
RMB5,478,712,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB3,919,492,000) have been pledged as security
for long-term borrowings of RMB2,202,680,000 (31
December 2010: RMB2,191,560,000) (note 5(20)(c)).

(5).

& @)

HE-Z——&XA=t+HIHE
BHE  ANEERRBAZEEMRH
ERAMNTERAABARE
622,269,000 (B ZE=F —ZF /<
A=+HIEERAMBME: AR
1,684,350,0007T) (MizEF(27)(@) °

R=ZF——F A NA=THNRAEK
A BEERERERN NS
AR #1,085,153,000L (ZFE—=F
F+=—_A=+—"H:  AR¥
644,789,0007T) - BE_F——4F
ANA=TRHIEAGEABEERNEE
56.4% EHE—E—FFA=1H
7~{E A HARE : 5.5%) °

RZZE—FARNA=Z+H  X&EHE
AEEMRTPERAEEAARYE
1,010,835,0007c (ZE—TF+ =
A=+—8 : AK#1,010,835,000
70) K E B R R RITEGRE
HAfE Z A R #750,000,0007T (=&
—ZTF+-A=+—H: AR¥
750,000,0007) (MFEF(13) °

R=ZZT—FRNA=Z+H  X&EH
AEKATPEERAEEAARYE
477,539,000 (ZE—ZFF+= A
=+—H: AR¥212,823,0007T)
# - Hh {5 PR A R 4R 45 SR 1T ERAS R HA
&3 AR ¥730,000,0007T (=& —
TFE+_A=Z1+—H: ARK
20,000,0007%) (M &EF(20)(c)) °

RZZTE—FRNA=Z+H  X&EH
AEXKATPERAEEAARYE
5,478,712,000C (ZE—ZEF + =
A=+—8 : AR¥3,919,492,000
JT) B (5 AR A R AR B E R B
18 B S R AR RTINS R EA (G
FAR#2 202,680,0007T (— & —
TFE+_A=Z1+—H: ARK
2,191,560,0007T) (Ffi&EF(20)(c)) °
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Notes to the Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements (continueq)

(5).

(6).

EHREMASARETT)

f. SHHBERREBME @

Inventories (Continued) (5). HE#®)
As at 30 June 2011, bank borrowings of R=-F——FNA=1TH £&E
RMB3,550,000,000 (31 December 2010: RITERE AR ES,550,000,000
RMB3,550,000,000) were pledged by the right to T(ZZE—ZFF+ZA=+—H: A
yields on certain land use rights pursuant to the R #3,550,000,0007T) A A& B R
agreement of line of credit loan signed in year 2003 TR EERREERERT
(note 5(20)(d)). B B i FE F B T B A 4 b U e A
1ERE R (KA (20)(d)) °
Bank borrowings of RMB57,500,000 (31 December RITE B KA R®57,500,0007T
2010: nil) were secured by primary land development (ZZ2E—ZEF+=ZA=+—80: &)
rights and its corresponding equity and income AASEN T —HHAZHESS
interest. (note 5(20)(f)). BaflMlasELER(ah
(20)(f) °
No provision for impairment of inventory has been AEBRRIFENAZRFELHD
recognised since the net realisable value of inventory ERERAEEE QAT RTFEK
is higher than its carrying amount. BAEE -
Available-for-sale Financial Assets (6). TTHHESREE
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F ZT—TF
XA=+HB +=ZA=+—H
Available-for-sale equity instrument A S T A 107,080 140,615
Less: Provision of available-for-sale 3 : Al HE L R EE
Financial assets NERIERE - =
Net R EE 107,080 140,615
In which, market value of He - EEERSHME
listed stocks
— Mainland China — B A 107,075 140,610

As at 30 June 2011, the carrying amount of the
investment in the listed company Yangguang Xinye
is RMB107,075,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB140,610,000). Yangguang Xinye was registered
in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China and its
principle activities are real estate development, leasing
and advisory services. The ordinary shares of
Yangguang Xinye held by the Group amounted to
19,610,913 shares, which accounts for 2.6% of the
total ordinary shares.

Interim Report 2011

R-ZZE——F X A=+AH  KEH
BANY M ARG LT ERER
BRmEEE AR 107,075,0007T (=
E-TE+_HA=+—H: ARK
140,610,0007T) * B5 X ¥ MR
REARLMBEILRT @ FBES
REHWERE  BERmEMNHEE
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEERBRE GRERNZHAN  EEMCSARETT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(7). Long-term Equity Investments (7). REAR#ERS
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—g——f —EF-EF
~B=1+H +=ZA=+—H
Joint ventures aEhE
— non-listed companies (a) — JEEM AT () 285,066 125,897
Associates Hib e 12
— non-listed companies (b) — JE LM A AE](D) 1,268,007 1,293,492
Subtotal e 1,553,073 1,419,389
Less: Provision for impairment o RERERE
of long-term equity VERIER
investments - —
Net ikl 1,553,073 1,419,389
The Group has no significant limitation on realization AEEPNFERBREREZR R
of long-term investment or collection of investment &y AEEE NI
income.
(a) Joint ventures (a) BEPE
six month period ended
30 June 2011
30 June 2011 BE E--%
“E--£xA=1A ABETRLEABAEE
% of Equity Net
Place of Principal Registered ~interest % of Voting Total Total Net Total profit/(loss)
registration activities capital held  rights held assets  liabilities assets  revenue  FAE/
At $RHE HMERX  BRUA RRERH  EEEE  BRAE FEE  ERWA (F#8)
% %
Shenyang Jitian Reat Estate Shenyang, Property USDETL 50 5 1275563 1,000848 265,705 341,084 13913
Development Co., Ltd. The PRC  Development 40,000,000
(‘Shenyang Jtian') BEm RHERE
BEEREXARAT ke
(ATRIEREX])
Capital Jiaming New Town Befing, Property RMBARH 50 5 199970 - 199970 - (30)
Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC  Development 200,000,000
(‘Captal Jiaming’) IRT BHERE
HEESMIARELR R#E
BRAT
(ATRIE2EH#])
Hainan Dalecheng Real Estate Haikou, Property RMBARE 5 5 204636 105497 99,139 - (851)
Development Holding Ltd. The PRC  Development 100,000,000
(‘Dalecheng’) () B0 RHERR
BEARH AL ARERAR kg
(ATRIBEALE)0)
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim H#.

Financial Statements (continueq)

SHEMSARETT)

SHMBHRFREBMEE @

(7). Long-term Equity Investments (Continued) (7). REIR#ERSE @
(a) Joint ventures (Continued) (a) AELEHE)
Investment in joint ventures are as follows: HELREREITHET :
Net profit
adjusted
Initial 31 December according to  Transferred
investment 2010  Additional the equity from 30 June
costs —E—BF investment method  associates 2011
M TR costs ~REZEH By -3--%
REMA ET=F rEHE  BHFER BeEns  A~A=1H
Shenyang itian BB EX 156,180 125,897 - 4,657 - 130,554
Capital Jiaming ~ HEIREH% 100,000 - 100,000 (15) = 99,985
Dalecheng () BEALH() 30,000 - 24,998 (468) 29,997 54,527
Total Bt 286,180 125,897 124,998 4174 29,997 285,066
0) In January 2011, the Group purchased i) —E——F—H K
25% equity interests of Dalecheng. SEEBEISEREA

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

After the transaction, 55% of
Dalecheng’s interests were held by the
Group. But according to the Articles
of Association of Dalecheng, the
Group and other shareholders jointly
control Dalecheng, therefore it has
been recognised as a joint venture.

Interim Report 2011
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(7). Long-term Equity Investments (Continued) (7). REIR#RSE @
(b)  Associates (b) HE b
6 month period ended
30 June 2011
30 June 2011 gE-g--f
“E--FRAZTR  AASTRLAEAHE
% of Equity Net
Place of Principal Registered ~interest % of Voting Total Total Net Total profit/(loss)
registration activities capital held rights held assets  liabilities assets  revenue  FAIE/
At EHHE ZMER  GRUH RARRH @ EBEEE EEEAR 0 REE XMW (BB
% %
Beijing GoldenNet Property Beijing,  Property Sales RMBARE 14 14 58174 3481 54,698 150 15,554
Investment Consultant The PRC Agency 5,000,000
Co. Ltd. (‘GoldenNet’) ) IRT MEHERE
IREBEEXRAER
ERATATREISHER]))
Bejing SCJF Real Estate Agency  Beijing,  Property Sales RMBAR & 9.2 49.22 8,214 718 1,082 2,142 47
Co., Ltd. (*SCJF") The PRC Agency 18,000,00
‘?‘ééﬂh%%iﬁé@i IR DEHERE
ERARUATRIZE5E])
Befing Yang Guang Yuan Real Befing, Property RMBAR% 3 3 4429% 336,024 106,972 24,530 2,587
Estate Development Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC  Development 72,190,000
("Yang Guang Yuan') Ixm  EHERE
IRG R EREERAR R#E
(ATRIBRED
Shenyang Capital Xinzi Real Shenyang, Property USDET 30 30 1,538908 907,638 631,270 665,106  (14,558)
Estate Development Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC  Development 92,500,000
(‘Shenyang Xinz/) EET EHERE
BREETEEZARAT R#E
(AFRIERE])
Tianjin Capital Xinging Real Estate ~ Tianjn, Property USDET 40 40 1452579 809,160 643,419 - (2,326)
Development Co., Ltd. The PRC  Development 95,000,000
(‘Tianjin Xinging’) RET  EHERE
REEEHFEZARAT RiE
(ATFRIXZHE])
Tianjin Capital Xinming Real Estate ~ Tianjin, Property USDET 40 40 1503889 846399 657,490 - (1,621)
Development Co., Ltd. The PRC  Development 95,000,000
(‘Tianjin Xinming) RET  EHERE
REEEFAEZARAT R#E
(A FRIK=HE])
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continueq)

(7). Long-term Equity Investments (Continued) (7). REIR#ERSE @
(b)  Associates (Continued) (b) B2 ()
6 month period ended
30 June 2011
30 June 2011 BECR--F
ZE--EXASTR AASTREABAHE
% of Equity Net
Place of Principal Registered ~interest % of Voting Total Total Net Total (loss)/profit
registration  activities capital held rightsheld  assets liabilities  assets  revenue (&%) /
iy EKHE SMER  GRUA RAENH GEME  BRHE 0 FEE RN FHE
% %
Bejing Financial Street Bejing, Hotel Operation USDET 59.5 38 925726 1,014,586 (88,860) 81,831 (22,584)
International Hotel Co., Ltd. The PRC and 5,640,000
(‘Financial Street’) () JZT  Management
IRERERREEARAT EEEERER
(ATRISBERED )
Xi'an Xinkai Xi'an, Property USDET 40 40 2746869 1442818 1,304,051 296,389 51,115
B ThePRC  Development 165,000,000
EZT  EHERD
Rig
Nice Grace Group Ltd. BVl Investment USDET 20 2 29 13 16 - (1)
(‘Nice Grace’) A8 Holding 10,000
EREEAREAAT ERES REER
(ATEIfEREE)
Outlets (Ching) Ltd. HongKong ~ Investment USDETT 20 0 249059 287,328 1,731 - -
(‘Outlets China) ) Holding 2,000,000
BRI (RE) BRA7 REER
CASER G
Bejing Outlets Chuangxin Bejing,  Business and RMBAR & 38 38 9,103 80 9,023 - (935)
Business Management Co., Ltd.  The PRC Property 1,000,000
(‘Outlets Chuangxin’) JZT Management
IRERINARERERAR REEER
(TR [ 258l VE
0) The Group has significant impact on 0) AARHESERE
the board of the directors, which is AEEBN - MESE
responsible for determining the BEREZARRS
financial policies in the ordinary course EBBEF T BUR
of business, therefore this company is b R § ) /NCIE -
classified as an associate. RSB o
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEEBRRIEHM:E o

Financial Statements (continveq)

(7). Long-term Equity Investments (Continued) (7). REIR#RSE @
(b)  Associates (Continued) (b) BEPEE)

(ii) According to the Articles of (ii) RIEER - ARFE
Association, the Group holds 59.5% EXEERESRE
equity interests of Financial Street both B JE59.5% K AE#E
directly and in-directly and enjoys 34% ZH34%H) U 1E -
profit of Financial Street. The Group EESERHIHE
has no control over the board of i MEFFARR
directors and such board is FE% AR B EEKR
responsible for determine the financial BHReMBORE - W
policies in the ordinary course of [IA/NCIE SRl i

business, therefore this company is B2 o

classified as an associate.

Investments in associates are as S P ERES R

follows: W

Net profit

adjusted

Initial 31 December according to
investment 2010  Additional the equity Cash Transferred 30 June
costs =E-ZE investment method  dividends joint 2011
il +ZA cost REREH B  ventwres —E--%
RERA =t-A REFE  BNFER ReRR  RERNE  ABZTA
GoldenNet it S 865 7,440 - 2,177 (1,960) = 7,657
SCJF SUHE 8,860 301 - 233 - - 534
Yang Guang Yuan  F3%58 33,930 36,535 - 905 - - 37,440
Shenyang Xinzi BRIE 201,273 193,749 - (5,735) - - 188,014
Tianjin Xinging REHNE 260,189 268,295 - (3,340) - - 254,955
Tianjin Xinming REHNH 262,942 263,643 - (5,917) - - 257,726
Financial Street (ii) % BY47E & ii) 68,558 = = = = = =
Xi'an Xinkai il 500,406 501,175 - 14,706 - - 515,881
Nice Grace EHEE 14 10 - 2) - - 8
Qutlets China BRbE 2,734 2,347 - - - - 2,347
Qutlets Chuangxin ~ BARET - - 3,800 (355) - - 3,445

Dalecheng BEALH

(note 5 (7)(a)) (HER(M@E) 30,000 29997 - - = (29,997) =
Total fit 1,369,771 1,293,492 3,800 2,672 (1,960) (29,997) 1,268,007
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEBRRIEEHM:E »

Financial Statements (continueq)

(7). Long-term Equity Investments (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

(iif) The net assets of Financial Street are
negative due to continuous losses in
the past years. As the Group does not
have the obligation to bear the
additional losses beyond the share
that the Group should have assumed,
the Group recognise the carrying value
of the long-term equity investment as
zero other than negative. For the 6
months ended at 30 June 2011, the
un-recognized investment loss
amounted to RMB6,052,000 (For the
six month period ended 30 June 2010,
nil). As at 30 June 2011, the
accumulated investment losses that
are not recognised amounted to
RMB10,372,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB4,320,000).
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(8). Investment Properties (8). REBEMEME
Buildings Land use
EER Rights Total
EEY tiERRE &%
Cost RE
31 December 2010 —T—TF+_A=+—H 286,474 615,025 901,499
Additions N BRI AN 214,228 - 214,228
Disposals 7N HR R — — —
30 June 2011 —E——FXA=T+H 500,702 615,025 1,115,727
Accumulated Depreciation SEITE - #H
and Amortisation
31 December 2010 —F-ZFF+-_A=+—H — (7,609) (7,609)
Depreciation NERET IR — (7,688) (7,688)
Disposals A HR R — — —
30 June 2011 —E=——FXA=+H — (15,297) (15,297)
Provision for Impairment Loss i {8 %
31 December 2010 —E-TFF+_A=+—H — - —
Charges ZN ER 3 0 — — —
Other reductions N HR R — — —
30 June 2011 —E——FXA=+H — — —
Net Book Value FE
30 June 2011 —E——FXA=1H 500,702 599,728 1,100,430
31 December 2010 —ET-ETF+_F=+—H 286,474 607,416 893,890

—T—GRURE | HABERHARAT 95



m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FARA=ZTRHIEANER B GRERIZHEN  @BEMAARE TT)
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Notes to the Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements (continueq)

(8).

Investment Properties (Continued)

As at 30 June 2011, the investment properties are
still under construction. The Group had capitalised
the amortisation of the land use rights amounted to
RMB15,297,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB7,609,000).

As at 30 June 2011, certain land use rights under
investment properties with carrying amount of
RMB481,965,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB478,990,000) and net book value of
RMB476,015,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB476,015,000) have been pledged as security for
amount of RMB1,200,000,000 bank facilities
(31 December 2010: RMB600,000,000). As at 30
June 2011, the Group has obtained borrowings of
RMB730,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB200,000,000) (note 5(20)(c)).

As at 30 June 2011, certain land use rights and
buildings under investment properties with carrying
amount of RMB430,309,000 (31 December 2010: nil)
and net book value of RMB428,571,000
(31 December 2010: nil) have been pledged as
security for trust loans of RMB400,000,000 (31
December 2010: nil) (note 5(13)).
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEEBRRIEHM:E o

Financial Statements (continveq)

(9). Fixed Assets (9). BE&E
Motor Office
Buildings Vehicles  Equipment Total
EEREEN EHIE BARE &5t
Cost R{E
31 December 2010 “E-ZF+-fA=+-H 674,266 43,828 34,257 752,351
Additions ARERSE N 91 2,857 2,404 5,352
Disposals KER D - (359) (163) (522)
30 June 2011 —Z——%#xA=+H 674,357 46,326 36,498 757,181
Accumulated Depreciation 25ME
31 December 2010 “E-ZF+ZA=+—H (179,183) (19,606) (24,207) (222,996)
Depreciation KEER (14,577) (4,542) (2,365) (21,484)
Disposal KER D - 108 317 425
30 June 2011 ZE——55R=1H (193,760) (24,040) (26,255) (244,055)
Provision for impairment loss RBEER
31 December 2010 “Z-TF+-f=1—H = = = =
Charges ZRERSE N - - - -
30 June 2011 “E——%5~A=1AH = = = =
Net Book Value FE
31 December 2010 ZT——5/R=TH 480,597 22,286 10,243 513,126
30 June 2011 “Z-TE+-fA=+—H 495,083 24,222 10,050 529,355

As at 30 June 2011, certain buildings and projects
with net book value of RMB417,303,000 (original
value of RMB601,431,000) (31 December 2010: net
book value of RMB430,919,000 (original value of
RMB601,431,000)) have been pledged as security for
long-term borrowings of RMB398,757,000 (31
December 2010: RMB240,000,000) (note 5(20)(c)).

For six months ended 30 June 2011, depreciation
expense charged in “cost of sales” amounted to
RMB13,707,000 and in “administrative expenses”
amounted to RMB7,777,000 (For six months ended
30 June 2010: RMB12,118,000 and RMB4,617,000).

R=ZT——FA=+H  FED
B AR #417,308,0007T (BEBA
R #601,431,0007T) HEE R EE
W —E—ZEF+_A=+—8 : F
B4 A5 A R% 430,919,000t (R{E
A ANR#601,431,0007) ) tEAAR
#308,757,000 Tt REER (==
—ZEFE+_A=+—H: ARK
240,000,0007T) (FI&EF(20)(c)) H3E
Y o

HE—_Z——FA=1+HL~EA
HREFTAEER AR ERBANTE
& AR5 Rl A A RE13,707,00070F1A
R¥&7,777,0000T BE=ZZT—ZFF X
A=+HIEAEAEHHE: AR
12,118,000 F1 A R # 4,617,000
JT) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEBRRIEEHM:E »

Financial Statements (continueq)

(10). Intangible Assets (10). BREEE
31 December 30 June
Original 2010 Transfer 2011 Accumulative
cost  ZE-%F  Amortisation ot  ZB--F  amortisation

Fre® t-A=t-H KA

AHEY  ARSTR EHEHEE

Land use rights THERE 52,283 43,743 (522)

- 4321 (0,062

For the six months ended 30 June 2011, the
amortisation of intangible assets amounted to
RMB522,000 (For the six months ended 30 June
2010: RMB522,000); in which, amount of
RMB522,000 (For the six months ended 30 June
2010: RMB522,000) has been recognised in profit
and loss for the current period.

As at 30 June 2011, land use rights with net book
value of RMB43,221,000 (original cost
RMB52,283,000) (31 December 2010: net book value
RMB43,743,000 (original cost RMB52,283,000)) have
been pledged as security for the long-term borrowings
(note 5(20)(c)) of RMB398,757,000 (31 December
2010: RMB240,000,000).

HE-_T——FXXA=1THILANE
RAEfE  EFEEMNEHESEAA
R#522,0007 (HEZZT—TF
BA=+HB/EA MM/ : AR
522,0007T) - HAEtAE s mH
L5 A ARES22 000 (BE-Z
—ZFA=Z+THSNEARE: A
R #522,0007T) °

R-_TE——F X A=+H " FEA
AR#43,221,0007C (REAARE
52,283,0007T) My L fE R #E (=T
—ZTF+-A=+—H: FEABA
R#¥43,743,0007 (REAARE
52,283,0007m)) fEB AR
398,757,000t RHER (=2 —F
F+=—_A=+—"H: AR
240,000,0007T) (MI5EF(20)(c) HI
Y o

(11). Long-term receivables (11). REAREUR
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E-—fF — T T4
NAZ=+H +=—RA=+—~H
Receivables from associates JE Ui Bt 5 N B 1 SRR 422,453 395,453

The receivables due from Financial Street (an
associate of the Group) is estimated to be collected
within 2 years. The Group discounted such
receivables with the 3-year bank borrowing’s interest
rate. For the six months ended 30 June 2011, the
addition of receivable amounted to RMB27,000,000
(note 7(3)(b)).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BHEZZ——FAA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN  @BECAARETT)

Notes to the Consolidated Interim #&. &#IBRRIEBK:E &

5.

Financial Statements (continveq)

(12). Provisions for impairment of assets (12). BEREEHE
Reductions
31 December KEED 30 June
2010 Through Through 2011
—E-Zf§ Additions reversal  realizaton Z—E-——F
+=A=t-H KEE M Ep ¥ K~A=tH
Provisions of bad debts ~ EREfRE
Including: A
account receivables R R 3,844 = = = 3,844
other receivables LG e 30,322 = = = 30,322
Total At 34,166 - - - 34,166
(13). Short-term borrowings (13). SEHAMERR
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
Currency —E——F —E-EF
i ANAB=+H +=-A=+—H
Trust loans fEFEfE R RMB AR 1,150,000 750,000

As at 30 June 2011, short-term borrowings of
RMB750,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB750,000,000) are secured by certain properties
held for sale (note 5(5)).

As at 30 June, short-term borrowings of
RMB400,000,000 (31 December 2010: nil) are
secured by land use rights and buildings under
investment properties (note 5(8)).

For six months ended 30 June 2011, the weighted
average interest rate of short-term loan is 6.8%. (for
six months ended 30 June 2010: 5.3 %).

R=ZZB——FA=1+H8  SHE
KA R#750,000,0007 (—FE—=
F+_A=Z1+—"H: AR®
750,000,0007T) R A S E AR E
@B EEREYIEREREA (
SEAB) o

R—_E——F X A=1H " ESHE
KA R #400,000,0007 (—FE—=
F+—A=+—H8: &) ZRHAEEH
DAY & 1 55 b BE AR BY (5 R A
R E REEYIEREREA
SEA@B) o

HE-_T——FA=1HIL~E
A BB - R ERE SRR In#E 3T 7|
KE6.8% HE_T—TFNA=T
B 1E/<{E A HEIRE - 5.8%) °

—T—GRURE | HABERHARAT

99



m Notes to the Financial Statements

100

A1 75 8 R B 5E

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim =&

SREMSARETIT)

Financial Statements (continueq)

(14). Accounts payable

The aging analysis of accounts payable is as follows:

(14). FEFTERER

SHMBHRREBMEE @

FEAT BRIZ E AR B B BR R 0 AT

mT
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
g% —T-TF
AA=+AH +=—A=+—H
Within 1 year —F AR 1,854,804 1,999,457
Over 1 year —F U 42,411 14,853
Total = 1,897,215 2,014,310
(15). Advances from customers (15). TAYRRIE

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
g% —T-TF
AA=+AH +=—A=+—H

Advances from sales of T B AR
properties under development 9,619,052 7,323,768
Hotel deposits HIEHS 12,279 13,066
Total = 9,631,331 7,336,834

Advances from customers are amounts received from
customers for properties sold, but the risks and
rewards of the properties have not been transferred

to the customers.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEERBRE GRERNZHAN  EEMCSARETT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(16). Employee benefits payable (16). FE {8k T %57 A

31 December Current Current 30 June
2010 period period 2011
—E-EF additions  reductions Z=—Z——f
+=B=1+-H KEEM AEEY  ANA=TH

Wages and salaries, bonuses, 1% %e 28
allowances and subsidies GikE 49,033 99,588 (143,144) 5,477
Staff welfare BIRHNE 302 661 (532) 431
Social security contributions teRkE 7,135 12,533 (11,534) 8,134
Including: Medical insurance 2 BERRE 271 3,857 (3,546) 582
Basic pensions EABEZRR 336 7,653 (7,002) 987
Annuity FoHB 6,510 9 (17) 6,502
Unemployment insurance RERRE 11 445 (420) 36
Work injury insurance TERRE 7 239 219 27
Maternity insurance EERBE - 330 (330) =
Housing funds FERES - 4,285 (4,250) 35

Labour union funds and TeLENET
employee education funds HELE 3,446 1,674 (322) 4798
Director’s emoluments EE5e 44,823 7,288 (47,315) 4,796
Total B3t 104,739 126,029 (207,097) 23,671
(17). Taxes payable (17). BB E

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F ZT—TF

AA=+B +-A=+—H

Enterprise income tax payable FERR > EFTISHR 302,562 336,701
Land appreciation tax payable R 13 B (E T 1,003,120 850,428
Business tax payable = 135,735 200,582
Others Hip 10,545 18,774
Total Aa&F 1,451,962 1,406,485
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continueq)

(18). Dividends payables (18). FEfTRZFI
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
NAZ=+H +=—RAR=+—~H
Reco Ziyang b e 249,934 422 157
Reco Camellia Pte Ltd. Reco Camellia Pte Ltd.

(“Reco Camellia”) (LA #8 [Reco Camellial) 294,042 294,042
Reco Hibiscus Pte Ltd. Reco Hibiscus Pte Ltd.

(“Reco Hibiscus”) (LA~ 78 [Reco Hibiscus]) 230,850 230,850
Yieldwell International BEE BT 13,408 -
Sunshine Comprehensive Rt o) 8,535 —
Capital Group EEE 55,986 —
China Resource MR E 44,588 =
Capital Technology B AR 30,961 —
Capital Development BHEAIER 21,375 —
Total Aa&F 949,679 947,049

(19). other payables (19). HibFERR

30 June 31 December

2011 2010

—E——-F —E-EF

NAZ=+H +=—RAR=+—~H

Payables to associates JE A< B 2 R B 1 R 500,000 170,582

Payables to joint ventures FEfT & &R AR K 99,000 =
Collection of deeds and R R e E S

maintenance funds on

behalf of government 62,963 75,658
Guarantee for tendering KIZRE S 71,644 46,409
Consideration payable FE AT D SRR SR AR

for obtaining equity RN

interest from non-controlling

interests shareholders - 369,500
Loans and interests due to FREDERRER

non-controlling interests K F B (a)

shareholders of subsidiaries (a) 362,818 355,839
Deposits from customers BE£ 41,862 112,243
Accounts payables for daily FE T B8 & &3 2R

operations 87,834 62,637
Borrowings from other entities B E M E S IFE R 99,206 =
Others Hfth 151,657 159,958
Total A 1,476,984 1,352,826
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BHEZZ——FAA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN  @BECAARETT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(19). Other payables (Continued) (19). HibFERR &)

(a) As at 30 June 2011, loans and related (a) R-_ZE—FA=+H8"
interests borrowed from non-controlling F R A D EARER 18 KA RKED
interest shareholders of subsidiaries are as 5B AN K2 57 Bl [R) 7 AR 2
follows: loan provided by Reco Ziyang to i5 J [% J¢ 3k [F1IReco Camellia
Chongdu Xinzi amounted to RMB56,714,000, B o Hrp - BERET & [mET
with interest rate of 5.31%; loans provided by MmEEGEEIREAE AR
Reco Ziyang to Tianjin Xinchuang amounted 56,714,000 * # =
to USD 12,375,000 and USD 17,300,000 5.831% i REMBIMELE
respectively, with interest rates of 6.336% and ;o RAeRFES R AHET
6.633%; loan provided by Reco Camellia to 12,375,000416.336% M % 7T
Sunshine City amounted to USD 3,000,000, 17,300,000816.633% : 5t
with interest rate of 6.336%. WiERAEMFELET

3,000,000#16.336% °©

(20). Long-term borrowings (20). REAMER
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
Currency —E——F —E-FF
wE XA=+HB +=Z—A=+—H
Credit loans(a) =AER@) RMB A R #& 30,000 —
Secured loans: FERER » B
— Guaranteed (b) — R&&(b) RMB A R ¥ 35,000 —
USD %7t 113,513 —
— Mortgaged (c) — (o) RMB A R# 3,142,680 2,451,560
USD %=7T 188,757 =
— Pledged (d) — B#(d) RMB A R ¥ 3,550,000 3,550,000
— Trust(e) — {55t(e) RMB AR 1,807,620 1,807,620
— Guaranteed, — RE -
hypothecated (f) B () RMB A R# 115,000 =
Subtotal NET 8,982,570 7,809,180
Less: long-term B —FAEHR
borrowings due REIERK -
within one year: Hr
Credit loans (a) = AER(a) (2,000) =
Secured loans: PERIER B e
— Guaranteed (b) — R#E (b) RMB A R#& - —
— Mortgaged (c) — (e RMB A R # (363,680) (130,000)
— Pledged (d) — B#(d) RMB A R # (1,000,000) (1,000,000)
— Trust(e) — {57EE) RMB A R ¥ (982,620) (200,000)
Subtotal INE (2,348,300) (1,330,000)
Net Long-term borrowings 5 %8 6,634,270 6,479,180
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Notes to the Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements (continueq)

(20). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

As at 30 June 2011, long-term borrowings include,

@

(®)

(c)

Credit loans

As at 30th June 2011, credit loan of
RMB30,000,000 (31 December 2010: nil)
obtained by the Group is payable every 3
months and the principal is payable by
installment before 2016. As principal of
RMB2,000,000 should be paid within one
year, such amount was classified as current
liability.

Guaranteed loans

As at 30 June 2011, borrowings of
RMB148,513,000 (31 December 2010: nil) are
guaranteed by the Group for subsidiaries.
Interests are payable every 3 months and the
principal is due for repayment by instalment
before February 2014.

Mortgaged loans

Bank borrowings of RMB730,000000 (31
December 2010: RMB20,000000) were
secured by land use rights under development
costs (note 5(5)) and investment properties
(note 5(8)). The interests are payable every 3
months and the principal is due for repayment
by instalment before December 2020.

Interim Report 2011

(20).

REIER (@)

n=

T——FXA=TA  KBHE

B

(@)

(b)

()

= A&

SR1T 5 A R #30,000,000
T(EE—ZTF+ZA=+—
B : &) ZEAEERENE
BEZ  FEg=EAXM
—R AGERZT—RF
R HAERE - Efh - ARK
2,000,000TCfER —FADE
B8 - MEMBHRE LR
B FREHNRAERK -

REMH

RZE——FA=+H "
®r BBE X AR K
148,513,0007T (ZZ —ZF
+=ZA=+—8 : &) ZAAL
RElBTARREERE
A MEF=ZMAXHN—
R ARGERZZT—NE=
RAIHHERE -

HAE

BT HE R AR B
730,000,0007C (= —F 4
+=—HA=+—H: AR¥
20,000,0007T) RARRAF]F
A A BN ) b
(iR ((5) RIEEHEEH
= R B - b {5 PR 1 7 3K 3
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SR AEER ==
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Notes to the Consolidated Interim #.

Financial Statements (continveq)

(20). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(c)

Mortgaged loans (Continued)

Bank borrowings of RMB2,202,680,000
(31 December 2010: RMB2,191,560,000) are
secured by land use rights and yields on
related real estate developing projects of the
subsidiaries of the Company (note 5(5)).
Interest is payable every 3 months. Principal
of RMB50,000,000 is due for repayment on
31 July 2011; RMB50,000,000 is due for
repayment on 31 December 2011;
RMB98,000,000 is due for repayment on
28 January 2012; RMB50,000,000 is due for
repayment on 31 January 2012;
RMB85,680,000 is due for repayment on
20 April 2012. Thus, such amounts are
classified current liabilities, and the remaining
principal is due for repayment by instalment
within the period between 2012 and 2015.

Bank borrowings of RMB398,757,000
(31 December 2010: RMB240,000,000) are
secured by the fixed assets with net book
value of RMB417,303,000 (original cost of
RMB601,431,000) (31 December 2010: net
book value of RMB430,919,000 (original cost
of RMB601,431,000) (note 5(9)) and land use
rights in intangible assets with net book value
of RMB43,221,000 (original cost of
RMB52,283,000) (31 December 2010: net
book value of RMB43,743,000 (original cost
of RMB52,283,000) of the Group (note 5(10)).
Interests are payable every 3 months. Of
which, RMB30,000,000 is due for repayment
on 28 January 2012. Thus, it is classified as
current liability, and the remaining principal is
due for repayment in ten years until 28 January
2018.

SHREMAARETT)

SHUBEBRIEEMEE @

(20). REAtER (@)
)  HFEHE)

IRITIER AR 2,202,680,0007T
(ZZE—ZTF+-A=1+—8: AR
#2 191,560,00070) R LAARRQ AT
UNGIE 90 % NG s R R N
MR ERZE B W E A EIE
(MEEREG) @ FEBEE=@EAXZNN—
X B AR#50,000,0007T A&
tEN_T——F+tA=+—HE
#  AR¥50,000,0007CA % FER
—ET——F+ZA=+—HEE:
AR#98,000,000c AL ER -F
——F—A=-F+N\BHEE ARE
50,000,000 A SR =T —=F
— A=+ —HEE  ARK
85,680,000 A SR T ——F
MAZ+HEE - E&EHH%%&%EL
FIRAB—FRE BN REARBRK -
BASER T —FE_FT— 55
FHHEE -

ERITIE A R #398,757,0007T (=
T—EF+_A=1+—H: AR¥E
240,000,0007T) RIAARE BFEL
A AR #417,303,0007T (REA A
R #601,431,00070) M= E M EE
W(ZZE—ZTFF+_A=+—8 : %
B AR #430,919,0007T (REAR
#601,431,0007T) ) (FizEF(9)) A K
THE A AR KA43,221,0007T (R1E A
AR ¥E52,283,0007T) H) 1 b {F F 4
ZE—ZTFE+=A=+—H : FE&
AR#43,743,0007T (REARK
52,283,0007T) ) (FisEF(10) {EHK
B AMEE=FEAZMN—K  &e
R N\E—A=+/\BH»
THEE - £+ AR¥30,000,000
TER-_ZE——&#—HF—+/\A#E
B REVBRR LI RAE—FNR
B ER REAME K -
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Notes to the Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements (continueq)

(20). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(@)

(e)

Pledged loans

As at 30 June 2011, bank borrowings of
RMBS3,550,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB3,550,000,000) were secured by rights
to yields on certain land use rights (gains on
the sales of land use rights or other profit
obtained from the related land use rights) (note
5(5)) pursuant to the agreement of line of credit
loan signed in 20083. The interests are payable
every 3 months and the principal is payable
by instalment before 2014. As principal of
RMB1,000,000,000 should be paid by
instalment within one year, which is classified
as current liability.

Trust loans

As at 30 June 2011 long-term borrowings of
RMB700,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB700,000,000) are secured by the
Company’s other receivables due from
subsidiaries. The Company provides
guarantee on the return of these receivables,
and such receivables due from subsidiaries
were offset in the consolidated financial
statement. Interest is payable every 3 months
at fixed rate of 10.5% per annum. The
principal is due for repayment by instalment
before March 2012. Therefore, it is classified
as current liability.

As at 30 June 2011, long-term borrowings of
RMB282,620,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB282,620,000) are guaranteed by a third
party. Interests are payable every 3 months.
The principal will be due for repayment in
June, 2012. Therefore, it is classified as
current liability.

Interim Report 2011
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(20). REAtER (&)

()

(e)

B S

BT R AR K
3,550,000,0007 (ZE—=
F+-_A=1+—H: AR¥
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEEBRRIEHM:E o

Financial Statements (continveq)

(20). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(e)

®

Trust loans

As at 30 June 2011, long-term borrowings of
RMB825,000,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB825,000,000) is secured by 95% share
equities of Outlets Guangdong held by the
Group. Interests are payable every 3 months.
The principal will be due for repayment in
August 2012.

Guaranteed and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2011, the guaranteed and
pledged loans of the Group amounted to
RMB115,000,000 (31 December 2010: nil).
Of which, RMB57,500,000 (31 December
2010: nil) was guaranteed by the Company
and the other RMB57,500,000 (31 December
2010: nil) was secured by the gains of land
development projects (note 5(5)). Interests are
payable every 3 months and the principal is
due for repayment by instalment before April
2017.

(21). Debentures payable

(20). REAER @)
(e) 15t E#

R-ZE——FxA=+H -
E B B R AR ¥
825,000,0007T 2 FA A 5= & LA
HE MR ERISWIIEE
REREANCE—ZF+=
A=Z+—H @ AR¥
825,000,0007T) * F|E&=
BAZN—K  AEER=
T——_F)\AEE-

() wRiE - EIFEA

R-ZE——FxA=+H -
AEBRE  ERERBA
R #115,000,0007T (=& —
TF+=—A=+—H '8\ -
He » AR¥57,500,0007C
(=2—BF+=A=+—
B : &) ZRARB A TAR
REEREBEA AR
57,500,0007t (ZE—ZF 1
—A=+—8: 8 ZhaLE
B DA i — AR A e 2 2D
R EAER (MR
6) > MEBEEF=@AXZH—
W RE RN T — LY
ARioHAEE -

(21). FEfHESH

31 December 30 June

2010 2011

—E-FF Additons  Reductions Z=Z——*%

+=-A=+—H N HR AN NEEAD  ASAZ=1H

Corporate Bonds NEIES 989,211 1,142,554 — 2,131,765
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEERSRE GRERNZHAN  HEECSARETIT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &A. &#UHBRRIEBK:E @
Financial Statements (continueq)

(21). Debentures payable (Continued) (21). FEfHESH &)

(a) According to the Document Number 764 (a) RZEZAFNA+H K
(2009) “Approval of corporate bond public DA EI R EEE S EER
issurance by Beijing Capital Land Limited” A [2009] 76455 (RN IZ A &
released by China Securities Regulatory BIEXRHOERAEARRE
Commission on 10 August 2009, the TRABMESMRE) - AR
Company was authorised to publicly issue ARALERARABEITEET
domestic corporate bonds of no more than iBim A R #1,800,000,0007T
RMB1,800,000,000. HIEAN A RIES o
The Company issued RMB1,000,000,000 RZEEZNFNALAZ+ I
corporate bond on September 24, 2009, the H:  ARR2RBITARK
proceeds net of issuance costs is 1,000,000,0007T A RIfES
RMB986,000,000. The bond carries a fixed MR AT ERRE
interest rate of 6.5%, which will be period AARBERKEERFEA
annually. The maturity period of the board is AR #986,000,0007T ° &
5 years, the principal and the interest of the FHARR B5F - B BERIEE
last period is repayable on the maturity date. B BEFHNER6.5% -

BEMNE—R - BH—RM
BB ARSI X & 1% — HAF

8o

Of the fund raised, RMB200,000,000 was KREEEEF AR
used to repay the bank loan due to China 200,000,0007T AR EZEBIRK
Development Bank. The remaining proceeds HERITER  FBpESH
are used for property development purposes. LT ARIREER ©
Capital Group provides unconditional and FHRAREFAEHESEBER
irrevocable joint liability guarantees for the HIFEBME & E 2B 180
bond over the period of issurance and 180 AR OB 2 BET R T
days after the maturity date. REBELR o

(b) On 14 February 2011, the Group’s wholly- (o) RZZE——F=A+MA -
owned subsidiary BECL issued corporate ARRMEETFTRAAIEER
bonds amounted to RMB1,150,000,000, and & 717 AR #1,150,000,000
the proceeds net of issuance costs were TTH A BIEZ o HIBRAE B &
RMB1,141,229,000. The bond carries a fixed HEITERR  AARER
annual interest rate of 4.75% with a maturity WREHEFBAEARK
period of 3 years, and the interest will be paid 1,141,229,0007T ° % /&% 5
every six months. The principle will be full RE=F HHAEMNFE
repayable on the maturity date. The bond was ERMKEBA75% @ T4
raised for the investment of overseas property FB—k - BIE— R MEEE
companies and for supplement of the liquidity ReW T HE—HFE -
of the Group. The Company provided RREEESEBHREN
guarantees for the repayment of both the B 5 HhEEIE B AR AE UL s B A
principles and interests. BER—MARLEES ° Lk

MEFHARRIREFAE
EENARERERREHRES
BEEREER -
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m Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BHEZZ——FAA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN  @BECAARETT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(22). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (22). BEFEHEENER
liabilities
(a) Deferred tax assets before offsetting (a) TRACHE H BB AL FT 15 F &
As at 30 June 2011 As at 31 December 2010
—B-—-fXA=+A —T-THELt-_A=1-H
Deductable Deductable
Deferred  temporary Deferred temporary

tax assets differences tax assets differences

BEFRSH TEADEE BETMEE JEATEE

Provision for asset ~ EEBE%EE
impairment 6,000 24,000 6,000 24,000
Accrued costs JEEIBN 136,518 546,072 131,966 527,864
Accumulated losses 25518 59,839 239,356 45,443 181,772
Others Hih 37,229 148,914 19,025 76,100
Total A&t 239,586 958,342 202,434 809,736
As at 30 June, 2011, the Group has not RZE——FA=+H "
recognised deferred tax assets of NEERGAENEBAR
RMB272,892,000 (31 December 2010: #272,892,0007T (ZZ—=
RMB198,901,000) in respect of deductible F+=ZA=1+—H: AR¥
losses amounting to RMB68,223,000 (31 198,901,0007T) T 52 48 B8 49
December 2010: RMB49,725,000), which will BEEMEHREEARK
be expired as follows: 68,223,0007T (ZZ—=F+

—A=+—H: AR®
49,725,0007T) ° L3t AT
BERZEHASMHIT

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—B-——% —T-%%

AA=+B +-A=+—H

Within 1 year —F AR 17,516 23,322
Between 1 to 2 years — B =%F 33,780 31,194
Between 2 to 3 years ZH=%F 47,936 8,445
Between 3 to 4 years =B|pn & 54,753 80,793
Over 4 years POFE A £ 118,907 55,147
Total = 272,892 198,901
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE—ZT——FRXA=+HILERHE GRERZEBN  SREMRARET T

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEBRRIEEHM:E »

Financial Statements (continueq)

(22). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (22). SBEFFEHEEFIERE &)

liabilities (Continued)

110

(b) Deferred tax liabilities before offsetting (b) TRACHE H B BT 1275 B (B
30 June 2011 31 December 2010
—E——-%XA=+H —Z-ZF+-R=1—H
Deferred Taxable Deferred Taxable
tax temporary tax temporary
liabilities  differences liabilities differences
EERES ERAKERE EBTAEH EAREEE
= 3 BfE ZR
Change in fair value ~ ATt HESREE
of available-for-sale DA BEEE)
financial assets 16,368 65,473 24,752 99,008
Changes in fair value 9 £ E3 &)
of properties under ~ FER—#2#I T
business combination 1> % & #f
achieved in stages 137,284 549,136 128,304 513,216
Capitalised interest EREF B 29,507 118,028 25,505 102,020
Total &t 183,159 732,637 178,561 714,244
() The net balances of deferred tax assets and () 3 18 59 AT BT 15 B & 2
liabilities after offsetting are as follows: FERERTS B (&) F #8511 40
T
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
~B=1+H +=—A=+—H
Deferred tax assets, net  REFTEFHEEFA 223,218 168,912
Deferred tax liabilities, net iEIEFTS Fi & &F 58 166,791 145,039
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m Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BHEZZ——FAA=ZTRHIESER B GRERIZHEN  @BECAARETT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEEBRRIEHM:E o

Financial Statements (continveq)

(23). Share Capital (23). =&
Number of Share
shares capital
B2 [
Registered, issued and fully paid: & 317 &8 & A
as at 30 June 2011 R=ZFE——FA=1+H 2,027,960 2,027,960
Registered, issued and fully paid: & 217 &8 & A
as at 31 December 2010 R=ZZE—ZF+-_A=+—H 2,027,960 2,027,960
(24). capital surplus (24). BFXAHE
31 December 30 June
2010 2011
—E2-2F Additions  Reductions Z=—Z——%
+=A=+-H ARERE M AHELY ASA=TH
Capital premium (a) B A5 B (a) 1,028,215 - (48,867) 979,348
Other capital surplus, HMBEARRE - £ : - -
Change in fair value of AHEESREE
available-for-sale DR EEED
financial assets 74,258 — (25,151) 49,107
Land Appreciation Tax BREAREGERE
compensated by promoter T ERE 35,974 - - 35,974
Fair value appreciation of NHBERNEE
previously held interest in SHRFEEBD
a business combination DAEBEEESS
achieved in stages 95,538 — = 95,538
Total At 1,233,985 - (74,018) 1,159,967
31 December 30 June
2009 2010
“EBhE Additions Reductions Z=—Z—FfF
+=A=+-H ARERE M AHELY  ASA=TH
Capital premium (b) A% 35 (B (o) 1,027,403 812 — 1,028,215
Other capital surplus HMBEARRE - £ - -
Change in fair value of AREESREE
available-for-sale DR EEE
financial assets 113,923 — (47,754) 66,169
Land Appreciation Tax B AEGERE
compensated by promoter T ERE 35,974 - - 35,974
Fair value appreciation of DHBERNEE
previously held interest in SHRFEEBD
a business combination DNABEEELS
achieved in stages 110,482 — (13,237) 97,245
Total Bt 1,287,782 812 (60,991) 1,227,603
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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BE_Z——FNA=+TALNEAHBE CRERERIN

5.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Notes to the Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements (continueq)

(24). Capital surplus (Continued)

(@)

In April 2011, the Group entered into a capital
transfer agreement with AG BCL, LLC to
purchased 100% equity interest of AG Wuxi
Residential SRL (“AG Wuxi") held by AG BCL,
LLC, at a total consideration of USD
16,000,000. After the transaction, the Group
acquired 40% equity interest of its subsidiary
Capital Jiangsu held by AG Wuxi. AG Wuxi
did not engage in any other business except
for 40% share holding of Capital Jiangsu. The
Group recognised a decrease in capital
surplus of RMB48,867,000 according to the
difference between the newly acquired long-
term equity investment and the entitled net
assets calculating continuously from the date
of acquisition. Capital Jiangsu is wholly owned
by the Group after the transaction.

In May 2010, the Group entered into a
contract to transfer 40% share of Jingjin
Tongcheng to China Development Finance
Limited Corporation at a total consideration
of RMB20,000,000. The group recognised an
increase in non-controlling interests of
RMB19,188,000 and an increase in equity
attributable to owners of the parent of
RMB812,000.

Interim Report 2011

EHREMASARETT)

f. SHHBERREBME @

(24). EX28W @)

(@)

RZZE——FWMA  AEH
HIAG BOL, LLCE E R s
ZEHE - BE TAG BCL,
LLCH EMAG Wuxi
Residential SRL (JA ~#8 [AG
Wuxi)) 100% KI & - 248K
BEMNHEAZETT
16,000,0007T * A5 [E 45 /&
18 T AG WuxifF A g Ax &=
BRI E A140%R 3%
B o AG Wuxih B TEr s
Bl40% N HESN + S 45 H i 3
%o ZBERZGHEENE
HARR A % B BRI PR R I 45 AR
LEl40%ET EEZR FA A
BA M BRABBETENF
BEMBAZENER A
TEHMBREFHNERR
B AR¥48,867,0007C ° 7%
R TEKIE  TEEAIKE
REEMEZEETAA -

R=-Z—ZFFHA  A5E
HERERERETARE
EREERHBTE  HETA
SEFE R RERB40%H
iRt - NABRENHERA
R #20,000,0007T © ZEE
e A B4 B 5 B R A2 Lt B
40%sT E & I ey D AR R AE
5 A R #19,188,0007T 2
WERE  BAETEHUBR
RPHMEARARABARKE
812,0007T °
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m Notes to the Financial Statements

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z——FNA=+TALNEAHBE CRERERIN

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements (continveq)

(25). Surplus reserve

SHREMAARETT)

A. SHMHBHERREBME @

(25). BERATE

31 December 30 June

2010 2011

“E-2F Additions  Reductions Z=Z——f

H+=H=1+—H REIRER AEEY S~A=1H

Statutory surplus reserve ETE B 146,034 - - 146,034
31 December 30 June

2009 2010

—EENE Additions  Reductions Z=—Z—FfF

+=A=+-H ARE R AHEY ANA=TH

Statutory surplus reserve AT B 105,978 - - 105,978

In accordance with the Company Law and the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company
should appropriate 10% of net profit for the year to
the statutory surplus reserve, and the Company can
cease appropriation when the statutory surplus
reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can
be used to make up for the loss or increase the paid
in capital after approval from the appropriate
authorities. No surplus reserve was appropriated for
the six months ended 30 June 2011 (For the six
months period ended 30 June 2010, nil).

The Company appropriates for the discretionary
surplus reserve after the shareholders’ meeting
approves the proposal from the Board of Directors.
The discretionary surplus reserve can be used to
make up for the loss or increase the paid in capital
after approval from the appropriate authorities. The
Company did not appropriate discretionary surplus
reserve for the six months ended 30 June 2011 (For
the six months period ended 30 June 2010, nil).

BE(PREARKEMBEREDE) « &
RABRREBEFEHNARZE - NAF
12 F EF FIE ) 10% R EUE E & #
NER  BEAERBHRAES RAE
ERARAREI50% A EFF - Al 1R
B AERBAB LR ERAA
RBHEE - SCEEMRAE - 8=
—Z——FA=+THIEAH
B - RRRRFHIRETERBRATE (B
ZE_T-ZTFRA=THIEREAR
HAR ¢ 4E) o

ARRMEREBBABEEHIREEER
Bt KBRRASHE - (F
BRB AR LU /ER T BRI
ARTFEEBRIEMEA 82—
E——FXA=T+THIEAEABR
> ARBARFHREBRHKLAES
(BEZZ-ZFRA=+THLLKE
FHAR - ) -
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEBRRIEEHM:E »

Financial Statements (continueq)

(26). Undistributed profits (26). K7 ECHIHE

114

As at 30 June 2011, included in the undistributed
profits, RMB404,145,000 is subsidiaries’ surplus
reserve of subsidiaries attributable to the Company
(31 December 2010, RMB404,145,000), nil of which
is appropriated for the six months ended 30 June
2011 (six months ended 30 June 2010, nil).

In accordance with the resolution at the Annual
General Meeting dated on 29 March 2010, the
Company declared a cash dividend of RMBO0.11 per
share to the shareholders for the year 2009, which
amounted to RMB223,076,000 based on the
Company’s total issued number of shares which is
2,027,960,000.

In accordance with the resolution at the Annual
General Meeting dated on 9 May 2011, the Company
declared a cash dividend of RMBO0.18 per share to
the shareholders for the year 2010, which amounted
to RMB365,033,000 based on the Company’s total
issued number of shares which is 2,027,960,000.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. | Interim Report 2011

RZE——FA=+H ' X9k
FEREERBRIRRIMNT AR
BN TERREE AR A404,145,0007T
CZE—ZTFE+-A=1+—8: AR
#404,145,0007T) + HFEHE=-ZT
——®XNA=ZTHIENEASM
FRBGRNEBRE AR M AR
AEAT(HE_ZT—ZTF A=
BiE/~E AR : &) -

BE-_E-—ZFEE=A-+HAAKE
AERZE  ARRAEZEREIRE
ZEZNFEREKF - FR%0.11
JC B BT (92,027,960,0008%
AEORBERESBRFEFARE
223,076,0007T °

BE-_E——ERALABREAS
RiE o ARRIAEZEBRREE =T
—TFEERESKA - FR0.187T -
BB BTIRD2,027,960,000% 5t
g O RBERSBRFAAFTARE
365,033,0007T °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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A. SHMHBHERREBME @

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements (continveq)

(27). Revenue and cost of sales

(27). BERWMATIEERE

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

BZE HE

—E——F —E-FF

A~E=1+HIE NA=1THIE

ANE A HE 7~ {E A HA

Main operating revenue (a) EEEBBA@Q) 1,639,674 2,723,762

Other operating revenue (b) H A ZEHSUA () 18,113 473

Total i 1,657,787 2,724,235

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

BZE H=

—E——-F —E-EF

NA=+HIL ANA=Z+HLE

NE A HE 7~ fE A BAfE

Main operating cost (a) FEFEBKA () 670,652 1,730,159

Other operating cost (b) H fth ZE 5 AN (b) 97 1,843

Total &5t 670,749 1,732,002
(a) Revenue and cost of sales (a) FERBFPRAFE EEFEK

ZiN

Six months ended

Six months ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BE-ZE——-%F5XA HE-ZT-TFRA
=+ HIEABERHE =+ HIENEA B
Revenue Cost of sales Revenue Cost of sales
e - 2
EBWA ERB R A EZ7 1N EIP%
Sale of properties and ~ BHIEHE M
related consulting HEEARS
services 1,592,994 622,269 2,681,617 1,684,350
Hotel Services MR ON 46,680 48,383 42,145 45,809
Total = 1,639,674 670,652 2,723,762 1,730,159
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim & &H#HHBEBRRIEHM:E »
Financial Statements (continueq)

(27). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (27). BEBANFIZBEREX (&)
(b) Other operating revenue and cost (b) H fih Z 5 A FIE fih ZEFEAL
K
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010

BE-_ZT——F5KA HEZ_ZT—ZF<A

=THLEARERHME =+ H1ENEAHMHE
Other Other Other Other
operating operating operating operating
Hith Hit HAh EAh
EBRUWA E) 30%:N EBKA  EBKAR
Other income R ON 18,113 97 473 1,843

(28). Tax and surcharges (28). ZEEH 2 RMM

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE HE
—E——F —E—EF
A~AE=+HIE ANA=+HLE
ANE A HE 7~ fE A EffE
Business tax N 99,547 135,831
Land Appreciation Tax + b I E TR 245,627 111,505
Others Hh 7,199 9,206
Total A&F 352,373 256,542
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z——FNA=TAHLXNEAAMSE GREIERI  SRELSARE T

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #.
Financial Statements (continveq)

(29). Financial (income)/expenses

SHMBHRTRIEB M @

(29). BA®E (e N) B

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

B=E H=

—E——F —E—EF

NA=1+HIE NA=+THIE

N1E B H S 7~ {E A HAfE

Interest expenses B 378,529 194,872

Bank loans Hep : iRITER 183,400 150,298

Trust loans {ErEfE X 120,492 2,567

Corporate bonds NGIIEES 56,161 33,291

Other loans HEhEE 18,476 8,716

Less: Amount capitalised W BAMEF B H (378,529) (90,491)

Financial cost B 5 - 104,381

Financial income B U A (85,701) (48,233)

Exchange gains or losses fEHBxm  JF8 1,261 (169)

Others HAb 5,886 2,234

Net Pkl (28,554) 58,213
(30). Impairment losses (30). BEEREERX

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

B=E H=

—ZE——F —E—EF

NA=1+HIE NA=+THIE

N1E B H S 7~ {E A HAfE

Provisions of bad debts FTIRIEZEIREE - 1,221
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z——FNA=TAHLXNEAAMSE GREIERIN  SRELSARETT)

5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim H#.
Financial Statements (continueq)

SHMBHRFREBMEE @

(31). Investment income (31). H{EWR
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE HE
—E2——fF —T—TF
NA=+HIL ANA=Z+HLE
NE B 7~ A BAfE
Share of profit less loss of BRESEZEXADERN
investees under equity method W BB FEENMEE 23,931 (28,159)
Loss from disposal of subsidiaries A &&= 8k - (801)
Gains from disposal of HENHEECHEERS
available-for-sale financial assets - 32,979
Dividends from available-for-sale 7] f i & & B & & I 71 Uk 25
financial assets - 1,118
Fair value appreciation of DA BREBE IRFR
previously held interest in thliR A R BEFARESE
a business combination EoplE
achieved in stages - 19,891
Others HAh - 21
Total &&t 23,931 25,044
(32). Depreciation and Amortisation (32). IhEREHER
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BE HZE
—E——F ZT—TF
A~E=1+HIE NA=+tHIE
AN1E R HE 7~ & A HA
Depreciation of fixed assets BE&EERE 21,484 16,735
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 & & # $4 522 522
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(33). FIRHER
AEERBE_T——FNA=1

(33). Income tax expenses

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made

as the Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong
for the six months ended 30 June 2011 (30 June
2010: Nil).

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

17 18 A AR A8 £ BB iR
BT - S IR A E B 1S
PR (=¥ FFAASTA

TRESHAAHBERZAEHR

income statement represents: BHTE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE HE
—E——-F —E-FF
NA=+HIL NA=Z+HLE
ANEAHE 7~ & A HA
Current income tax B RS R 184,047 180,368
Deferred income tax EIEFTIS L (33,150) 4,149
Total A 150,897 184,517

The reconciliation from income tax calculated based
on the applicable tax rates and total profit presented

RERGHABRNFBEERXA
ERAREXAENREHBEHRAE

in the consolidated financial statements to the income HEMA :
tax expenses is listed below:
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BE HE
—E——F —E—FF
~AE=1+HIE ANA=+HLE
ANE A HE 7~ {E A HAfE
Total profit IpEF R 513,928 605,173

Income tax expenses calculated 1% i@ FA B R 25%5t E 1)
at applicable tax rates (25%) FriSHi 128,482 161,293
Share of profits less losses of REREZ A D EOH

joint ventures and associates KE AR FEZNDE (5,983) 7,040
Income not subject to tax EF AN - (12,841)

Provision in respect of prior years’ ### A Ail FF & FT{S i & B

under-accrual taxes 6,005 29,931
Expenses, costs and losses not ~ NEHIBRIKAE - BHA

deductible for tax purposes A K 979 3,620
Tax losses for which no deferred & Hi R MR EFT1S X

income tax asset was recognised & E K Al K HE5 18 21,414 5,474

Income tax expenses FriS i & FA 150,897 184,517
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim &. S#HBEBRRIEEHM:E »

Financial Statements (continueq)

(34). Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of shares in issue

(34). Bz

EXRGHREEAFBERE AR ER
B BCR Y & 0 7F FUE BR A B 2 R 3%
TTHEINE B INEFHHEE

during the period.

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE HE
—g——F —EF-EF
ANA=+HL ANA=THILE
ANE A HE 7~ A BAfE
Profit attributable to equity holders 7 8 7 & 2 7] I 38 A% A% 5 &9
of the Company & B AE 307,513 321,188
Weighted average number of AR BTN G BAR A
shares in issue (thousands) niEFHE (TR 2,027,960 2,027,960
Basic earnings per share ERGRR M=
(RMB cents per share) (ANREBSEFR) 15 16
Including: Hr
Basic earnings per share relating — HEKEHERFA S ¢
to continuing operation 15 16

Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic ARAR T HFERERBELBR
earnings per share since the Company has no dilutive 12 & A% U 2= B3 AN 5 A% Uk = A

potential shares during the period. Fo
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(35). Other Comprehensive Loss (35). Hih&RE k18

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE HE
—E——-F —E-EF
RNA=+HIL ANA=Z+HLE
ANEAEE 7~ fE A BAfE
Fair value losses on HEEEREEARER
available-for-sale financial BEEEMELX
assets, gross (33,535) (30,694)
Less: Income tax arised W EERFEREE 8,384 7,673
Reserve realised upon disposal  ATHAET A E b 4R 4 U zs
of available-for-sale E A BRNFRE
financial assets, net of tax - (24,733)
Subtotal NET (25,151) (47,754)
Fair value appreciation of DEBRENCESHRIES
previously held interest in oA BEEZERS
a business combination
achieved in stages - (26,474)
Exchange differences in foreign ~ SMNESRERITE =&
operations (7,076) —
Total a5t (32,227) (74,228)
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continueq)

(36). Notes to consolidated cash flow (36). L HERMEE

122 BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

statements
(a) Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows (@) R F T ARG BAS &) E B B
from operating activities BE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE HE
—E——fF —E-TF
ANAB=+HI NA=THLE
ANE A B E 7~ 1B A B
Net profit F A 363,031 420,656
Add: Provisions for asset il : & E R {E %M
impairment (MF7EF(30))
(note 5(30)) - 1,221
Depreciation of fixed BEEBEENE
assets (note 5(9)) (MEEF Q) 21,484 16,735
Amortization of BT A B
intangible assets (IR (10)
(note 5(10)) 522 522
Gain on disposal of REBTEEE
fixed assets, B EEMEAM
intangible assets REEEN R
and other long-term
assets (134) —
Financial expenses B &R 1,261 104,254
Investment profit & W as
(note 5(31)) (M 3£ (31)) (23,931) (25,044)
Excess of acquirer’s B HERARNRE B
interests in fair value WS EEBE S
of identifiable net RRFEEAABE
assets over DR ER
consideration - (5,264)
(Increase)/Decrease in FEEFMSHEER
deferred tax assets (g (54,300) 4,169
Increase/(Decrease) in EIEFSEHEEN
deferred tax liabilities g, Ofd) 21,102 (1,521)
Increase in inventories FE/IE (1,846,370) (2,189,331)
Increase in restricted PR il #9 2R 2 1 A0
cash (note 5(1)) (MEER)) (952,607) (10,183)
Decrease in operating L ERIAE
receivables AR > 244,765 1,280,523
Increase/(Decrease) in 4e i A IE B A
operating payables #hn Gk ) 1,296,099 (1,110,579
Net cash flows from KEEHEENE R
operating activities e (929,078) (1,513,842)
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5. Notes to the Consolidated Interim #H. &{#IBRKRIEBM:EE @
Financial Statements (continveq)

(36). Notes to consolidated cash flow (36). BERERMEE &
statements (Continued)
(b) Net increase/(decrease) in cash (b) B FEEEN
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE H=
=—E——-F —E-TF
A~AE=+HIE NA=t1THIE
NE A HE 7~ {E B HAfE
Cash at end of period IR W EIRERER 8,479,785 3,972,489
Less: cash at beginning & : R M HAWI %R
of period (8,429,444) (4,879,372)
Net increase/(decrease)  IR&3FE M~ Cfid) & 50,341 (906,883)
in cash
(c) Cash (c) B&
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
ANA=+H +=-A=+—H
Cash at bank and on hand ¥ &4 (HzER 1))
(note 5(1)) 9,463,016 8,460,068
Less: restricted cash B X EIBR Hl B TR
at bank (note 5(1)) (MFEEFR (1) (983,231) (30,624)
Cash at end of
the period/year R BARBREE 8,479,785 8,429,444
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE_Z——FNA=+TALNEAHBE CRERERIN

6.

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Segment information

The reportable segments of the Group are the business units
that provide different products or service, or operate in
different areas. Different businesses or areas require different
technologies and marketing strategies, the Group, therefore,
separately manages the production and operation of each
reportable segment and valuates their operating results
respectively, in order to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to these segments and to assess their
performance.

The Group identified 5 reportable segments as follows:

— Beijing region, which is mainly engaged in the property
development and sales in Beijing region.

— Tianjin region, which is mainly engaged in the property
development and sales in Tianjin region.

= Chengyu region, which is mainly engaged in the
property development and sales in Chengyu region.

= Other regions, which are mainly engaged in the
property development and sales in other regions.

= Hotel operations, which are mainly engaged in hotel
business and providing corresponding services.

Inter-segment transfers are measured by reference to sales
to third parties. Expenses indirectly attributable to each
segment are allocated to the segments based on the
proportion of each segment’s revenue.

Interim Report 2011
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

. . - = -
6. Segment information (continued) . SEBER =
(1). Segment information for six months (1. &=-F——FA=+HL
ended and as at 30 June 2011 is as ~EAESBER
follows:
Property development
EHERRHELE Hotel
Beijing Tianjin  Chengyu Others  Operations Unallocated ~ Elimination Total
1% x2 A Rt EEER ADENEE SUMEH fit
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Revenue from HIRHMA
external customers 1,440,318 87,620 11,913 71,256 46,680 - - 1,657,787
Inter-segment revenue APERHUA - - - 54,468 - - (54,468) -
Interest income FISHA 31,674 6,083 22,497 26,252 79 189,792 (240,676) 35,701
Interest expenses fSER (35,120) (763) (4,287) (63,844) (5,897)  (130,765) 240,676 -
Share of profit of associates  HELTIAL
and joint ventures EEORENE - - - 23,931 - - - 23,931
Depreciation and amortisation  frEEMEHE (2,444) (217) (378) (1,287 (14,544) (3,136) - (22,006)
Total profit/loss) fE/ (B a8 358,359 43,550 (6,056)  (43,616)  (10,217) 171,292 1516 513,928
Income tax expenses FERER (115,628 (11,709 (548) (1,406) - (37,361) 15,748 (150,897)
Net profit/oss) 8/ (58) 242,731 31,848 (1504 (45022)  (10,217) 133,031 17,064 363,031
Total assets BELE 19,627,241 8,654,204 6317472 16285822 588,615 16,248,787 (32,260,609) 35,461,572
Long-term equity HBELER
investments on BELER
associates and *ARERE
joint ventures - - - 1,553,073 - - - 1,553,073
Additions to non-current RARERE
assets other than DY i)
long-term equity BEENE
investments 91,999 97 131 118,215 86 1,987 - 212,465
For the six months ended 30 June 2011, no segment HE-_FT——FA=+HIEHE
generated revenue from a single significant customer AEIME - AEEERE  HME R
or foreign customers. RGBAN URREE-—FERF

X ZWA -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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6. Segment information (continueq) . DEEERE @
(2). Segment information for six months (2). &E—F—FTFFA=+HL
ended 30 June 2010 and as at 31 NEAYMERE-_FE—FF+Z
December 2010 is as follows: B=+—Ho%&iER
(a) Segment information for six months ended 30 () BE—_FT—ZFF~NA=1H
June 2010: LEN1ELH B 57 25 8
Property development
EHERRHEELE Hotel
Beijing Tianjn ~ Chengyu Others  Operations  Unallocated  Elimination Total

IR xR wiA A BEXE ANENEE AIRAH ait
ARBTL ARMTIL ARETR ARBTR ARMTL AR¥TR ARBTI ARKTR
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBIOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWB'0OD  RMBOOO

Revenue from HRARA

external customers 1,483,184 605,879 387,747 205,280 42,145 - - 272423
Inter-segment revenue A HBER KA - - - 65,000 - - (65,000) -
Interest income HEKA 28,179 4,200 17442 28,536 77 96,730 (126940) 48233
Interest expenses HSER (42,978) (5,900) (9,805) (28,479) (6571)  (187588) 126940  (104,381)
Share of loss of HBENAE

associates and LENRERR

joint ventures - - - (28,159) - - - (28,159)
Assetimpaiment loss  EERBEXHRE  (1215) - - - ) - - (1,221)
Depreciation and HEBNENE

amortsation (999) (2 (177 i (310l (2651 - (112
Total profit/loss) g/ (BR)EE 45324 19252 60,033 (2862 (12779) (7.061) 29998 605,173
Income tax expenses ~ FIE &R (01,213 (63313) (30,446) (168) - (2,640) 3,263 (184517)

)

Net profit/loss) FilE/ (B8) B4 129,207 29,588 (3,031)  (12779) 9,701 33261 420,65

For the six months ended 30 June 2010, the HE-_Z-—ZFA=1THIAHE
revenue from a single significant customer AEE  AEEBERZKRABLY
with the transaction value above 10% of the BPAIONNE—EETF 2¢
external sales is RMB830,132,000. % A AR #830,132,0007T °
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6. Segment information (continueq) . DEBEE®
(2). Segment information for six months (2). B&E-—F—FTFFA=+HL
ended 30 June 2010 and as at 31 ~ERABER-_F—FF+=
December 2010 is as follows: (Continued) A=+—B%#EERE @)
(b) Segment information as at 31 December (b) BE—FT—ZFTF+ A=+
2010: —HD 58

Property development
RHERREELE Hotl
Beijing Tianjn ~ Chengyu Others  Operations  Unallocated  Elimination Total
IR R A it EEXH APENSE HPREH ait
AEBTL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETn ARMTT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Total assets EEGE 15,380,356 7,198,108 6,229,051 8,085,863 599,118 15,460,600 (22,439,204) 30,513,787
Long-term equity GBELEN

investments in AELEN

associates and RORERE

joint ventures - - - 1,419,389 - - - 1,419,389

Addtions to non-current & ERRRIER B M5
assets other than MEMERD
long-term equity EERNE
investments 1,124 7 633 4892 101 - - 6,757

7. Related parties and related party +. BBt FREERERS

transactions
(1). The parent company and subsidiaries (1). BATFAT
The general information and other related information FRAMERER XA S R
of the subsidiaries is set out in note 4. e
(a) General information of the parent company: (a) ISNEIE-%N =5
Place of registration Nature of business
o /3t ERHE
Capital Group Beijing, The PRC Infrastructure,
ER-ES FEE R T financial securities,
industrial technology,
commercial trade,
tourist hotel, etc.
EfREi - ERES
ITHERE BFEES
N B 3828 i &
The Company’s ultimate controlling party is NA BB B L6 5 B E Bl
Capital Group. &5 -

—T GRS | SAEERHERAT 127



128

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5
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7. Related parties and related party +t. FEtHRHEARERERS @
transactions (continued)

(1). The parent company and subsidiaries (1). BATFAT &)
(Continued)
(b) Registered capital and changes in registered (b) R Al AR R AL

capital of the parent company:

31 December 30 June
2010 Current year Current year 2011
—E—TH  gdditions decreases —E——fF

+TZA=+—H AEEN  AHEA KNA=1A

Capital Group BHAIE 3,300,000 — — 3,300,000
() The proportions of equity interests and voting () S FNVTES NN 0F 3. o
rights in the Company held by the parent FORAIELL B
company:
As at 30 June 2011 As at 31 December 2010
ZE--fXB=TH ZE-TF+-R=1-H
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

interest held interest held Voting rights ~ interest held interest held  Voting rights
EREH BEEE RAELH EEER FigkEs  RAELD
% % % % % %

Capital Group EEEE 15.34 16.68 32.02 15.34 16.68 32.02
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BE-ZT——FRNA=+TALNEAHBE GRERIERI

7. Related parties and related party
transactions (continueq)

SHEMASARE T

+t. BHBFEERERS @

(2). Nature of related parties that do not (2). FTLEiEHIR (7B BAE 5 89
control or are not controlled by the =
company:
Name of Relationship with )R HALH
related entities the Company £18 MBS &R
GoldenNet Associate S PN W /N
SCJF Associate cE5E PN o /N
Shenyang Xinzi Associate BEE PN Wl /N
Xi’an Xinkai Associate ikt PN W /N
Beijing Shangyi (i) Former associate IERAEE() AR R REEE A A
Tianjin Xinging Associate REFE PN W /N
Tianjin Xinming Associate REFH PN W /N
Financial Street Associate S REEE PN o /N
Outlets Chuangxin Associate BIEEIF IN/N o =N
Outlets China Associate BEAp ZiN/N WZ El/NE]
Chongging Xinshi(i) Former joint venture EEHA) AARIREEAA
Shenyang Jitian Joint venture BEE AR ZAY/N 72/@-\%”&
Ruijing Qingyuan Joint venture In=IE R AARIZEERNT
Outlets Guangdong(i) Former joint venture AR () ZiN/N 57 [R&E&ERAT
Anshunyuan(i) Former joint venture % JE = (i) AARREEAA
Capital Jiaming Joint venture Bz AN WZE\%”A
Capital Development Promoter BEIE® KRR ERA
Reco Ziyang non-controlling interests N %5 RREIZEE
of subsidiaries FARIN D ERE
Reco Hibiscus non-controlling interests Reco Hibiscus RREZEE
of a subsidiary NGRS (T
Reco Camellia non-controlling interests Reco Camellia RREIZEE
of a subsidiary FR R R DB R
Yangguang Xinye Under significant ORIt EARRARXA—
influence by the same key BREEABS
management personnel BATE
Zirui Xinli Subsidiary of LInAE BATENT AR
Yangguang Xinye
Ruijing Yangguang Subsidiary of Insfst G EEHF A A
Yangguang Xinye
Beijing Xingtai Subsidiary of ERNA G EEHF A A
Yangguang Xinye
Capital Fengdu Subsidiary of ENEPNE] BRI ENT AR

Yangguang Xinye

EREE  EENA - BKE
B REER-T-TEERA
AATHFAT -

(i) Beijing Shangyi, Chongging Xinshi, Outlets (i)
Guangdong and Anshunyuan became the
subsidiaries of the Company in 2010.
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7. Related parties and related party +t. EEHREBERERS @

transactions (continueq)

BABESE 5

AABEFTERRHE LB T A
RPAREEFREGR - BB
2 TE {8 2 7 5= [ S B B 5 15 vl —

(3). Related party transactions (3).

The Board considers all transactions with related
parties are on normal commercial terms, prices of
related party transactions was agreed by the Group

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

and its related parties.

(@ Providing consulting service

BHETE °

@  tEHEHART

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

BZE HE

—E——fF —ET-TF

NA=+HL ANA=THILE

ANERHE 7~ fE A BAfE

Tianjin Xinming K HTRA 7,903 5,000

Tianjin Xinging RENE 3,614 —

Xi’an Xinkai [z 10,267 5,000

Shenyang Jitian EGE K 2,676 5,000

Shenyang Xinzi G E 4,657 =

Total i 29,117 15,000
(b) Provide funding (b) RHRER

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

BZE HE

—E——fF —ET-TF

ANA=+HL ANA=THILE

ANERHE 7~ fE A BffE

Outlets Guangdong BEER - 198,927

Anshunyuan %= E - 578,501

Beijing Shangyi tREE - 45,669

Chongging Xinshi EEMA - 397,942

Outlets China B HE AR 109,282 =

Financial Street B RLUEDR IR 27,000 -

Total i 136,282 1,216,039
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7. Related parties and related party +. FAEHRAERRERS @

transactions (continueq)

(3). Related party transactions (Continued)

(3). FEABER S (&)

(c) Commission fee (c) HERBLEH
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
S H=E
—E——F —E—FF
NA=ZTHLE NA=1THIE
ANE R HE 7~ & A HA
GoldenNet SHLE 17,591 14,132
The Group entrust GoldenNet as exclusive sales REBEZEeHEBAAE

agent of certain projects. The commission fee
payable was charged by certain percentage
based on property sales price.

—HIFAMBEREENRE
R E KRR —E L2
NHEERS -

(d) Interest income/(expense) (d) RE B EHEGH 7 EERE S

HHEBIRA ()

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

BZE HE

—E——F —E—FF

ARA=tTHL ANA=THILE

AEAHE 7~ 8 A AR

Shenyang Xinzi BRI E - 207

Shenyang Jitian A N - 5,431

Outlets Guangdong BEER - 9,321

Beijing Shangyi EREE - 22,569

Outlets China A 2,117 =

Reco Camellia Reco Camellia (653) (821)

Reco Ziyang N &5 (6,326) (6,595)

Total AEt (4,862) 30,612
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7. Related parties and related party +t. EEHREBERERS @
transactions (continued)
(3). Related party transactions (Continued) (3). FAEERS (&)
(e) Guarantees () ELR
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
Bz HZE
—g——% —F-%%
A~AE=1+HIE NA=t1THIE
ANE B EE 7~ {E A HAfE
Capital Group for HEEERARNR]
the Company 1,000,000 1,000,000

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

In 2009, the parent company Capital Group,
provided irrevocable guarantee for the corporate
bond amounted to RMB1,000,000,000 issued
by the Company. The guarantee maturity date
is March, 2015.

ARANERARHAERR -
NEEBARABITHARE
1,000,000,0007T 2 AIE IR 1]
BOBZBESETREER  ER
AP A—ZT—HRFE=A -

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE H=E
—E——F —E—FF
A~AE=1+HIE ANA=+HLE
ANERHE 7~ fE A BAfE
The Company for P NN SN
subsidiaries 2,056,013 700,000

In February 2011, the Company provided
irrevocable guarantee for the corporate bond
amounted to RMB1,150,000,000 issued by
its wholly owned subsidiary BECL. The
guarantee maturity date is February, 2014. In
May 2010, the Company provided irrevocable
guarantee for the long-term bank loan
amounted to RMB700,000,000 for its
subsidiaries, the guarantee maturity date is
March, 2013. In February 2011, the Company
provided irrevocable guarantee for the long-
term bank loan amounted to
RMB206,013,000 for its subsidiaries. The
guarantee maturity date is April, 2017.

Interim Report 2011
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7. Related parties and related party +. FAEHRAERRERS @

transactions (continueq)

(3). Related party transactions (Continued) (3). FAEERS (&)
(f Key management compensation )] B EEN 5
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
Bz HE
S —E-T%5
A~E=1+HIE ANA=THLE
NEAHE 7~ & A BffE
Key management AR EIE A B
compensation 10,406 8,237
(4). Related party balances (4). FABHEW - B RIEGEE
(a) Accounts receivable (note 5(2)(a)) (a) JEM RS (Hf et 7 (2)(a)
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
~NA=+B +=ZA=+—H
Zirui Xinli ESEiN- 15,000 15,000
Ruijing Yangguang I = 5 120,000 120,000
Total ERlr 135,000 135,000
(b) Advances to suppliers (b) AT 50
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
~NA=+B +=ZA=+—H
Commission fee prepaid &R IHERES
to GoldenNet 71,717 49,326
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE—ZT——FRXA=+HILERHE GRERZEBN  SREMRARET T

7. Related parties and related party +. FAEFRAERRERS @
transactions (continued)

(4). Related party balances (Continued) (4). FAEEFFEW « ERRIAGRE
(&)
(c) Long-term receivables (note 5 (11)) (c) REGEW L (HaE F(11))
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
~NA=TH +=-—A=+—H
Financial Street S RENE 422,453 395,453
(d) Dividends receivables (note 5(4)) (d) JEM AR FY (K et 7 (4)
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
AA=tA  +=A=+—8
Beijing Xingtai ERNF 162,565 162,565
Capital Fengdu BE A a] 32,237 32,237
Xi'an Xinkai Piikics 12,400 12,400
Total A 207,202 207,202
(e) Other receivables (note 5(2)(b)) (e) H i Mk (Mt i B (2) (b))
30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
AA=+AH +=—A=+—H
Shenyang Xinzi EGFE 323 205
GoldenNet & 5 464 464
Reco Ziyang e 10,240 10,240
Dalecheng NSIEIDNE 2 104,885 104,885
Zirui Xinli KInFE 19,873 18,892
Yangguang Xinye 55 it % 2% 100,000 =
Tianjin Xinming KIZE TR 1,500 1,500
Xi'an Xinkai LA 265 =
Outlets China B3 96,996 =
Total A 334,546 136,186
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

7. Related parties and related party
transactions (continueq)

(4). Related party balances (Continued)

(f) Other payables (note 5(19))

t. FBAEERRERS @

(4). FEABELFEW - BT RIFEREH

(&)

(f H b fE(T 5% (Mt i 7(19))

30 June 31 December

2011 2010

—E——fF —T-TF

AA=+H +ZA=+—H

Tianjin Xinming RNIEFHHA 110,000 38,500
Xi’an Xinkai A% 3 5 210,000 119,796
Outlets China B3 - 12,286
Reco Ziyang N &5 334,740 697,914
Reco Camellia Reco Camellia 28,078 27,425
Shenyang Xinzi B E 120,000 =
Tianjin Xinging KENE 60,000 —
Capital Jiaming E S 90,000 —
Shenyang Jitian A N 9,000 =
Total AEt 961,818 895,921

(9) Refer to note 5(18) for the dividends payables
of the Group.

(h) Employee benefits payable (note 5(16))

(@  AKBEREMKRANESRHE
a(18) e

(h) JET 8t T % BN (Hf 2t 72(16))

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
= —T-TF
ANA=+B +=ZA=+—H
Remuneration payable EEHe
to Directors 4,796 44,823
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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8. Commitments

(1). Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for at the balance
sheet date but not yet incurred are as follows:

SHEMSARETT)

.

HEEEIH
(1). BERFEE
T AREERERE - EEOM

7R A TE BT IS TR R L R A
#

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—g-—f i

RNA=+H +ZH=+—H

Property under development
projects

FHERZRA

3,926,235 3,010,911

The Group’s share of capital commitment of the joint

venture are as follows:

NTAAEBEERELLEBEHHNE
A HAGE P ATER DR

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E2——fF —T—TF
XA=+HB +=ZA=+—H
Property under development EHERIEE
projects 18,240 43,478
(2). Operating lease commitments (2). EEBREREEE

The future minimum lease payments due under the
signed irrevocable operating leases contracts are

summarised as follows:

REBEERITNTAIRENEEEEEER -
AEBRRFEENHESERLNT -

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
% —T-TF

AA=tA +-A=+—H

Within 1 year —F AR 9,749 10,492
Between 1 and 2 years —E_F 8,054 8,537
Between 2 and 3 years —E =4 4,339 5,793
Over 3 years =FENE 237 2,006
Total A 22,379 26,828
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
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8. Commitments continued) IN. ®REBIE »

(3). Investment commitments

(3). HIMRERBEIR

30 June 31 December

2011 2010

—E——F —E-EF

NA=+tHB +=A=+—8H

Guangdong Rongxin BRKE 39,430 95,366
Guangdong Guansheng EREA 51,770 124,505
Guangdong Jingsheng ERSEK 5,172 5,292
Changfeng Development EERRERAF 24,500 24,500
Zhejiang Shouxin e DAN=K 91,644 93,784
Zhejiang Hualong AT ZEfE 250,619 256,471
Total AT 463,135 599,918

Financial Guarantees

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain customers
and had provided guarantees to secure obligations of these
customers for repayments.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks relating to the mortgage
loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. These guarantees will be expired when relevant
property ownership certificates are lodged with the various
banks by the purchasers.

As at 30 June 2011, outstanding guarantees amounted to
RMB3,427,108,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB2,973,167,000).

As at 30 June 2011, other than guarantees provided for
borrowings of RMB906,013,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB700,000,000) and corporate bond amounted to
RMB1,150,000,000 (31 December 2010: nil) granted to
subsidiaries of the Company, the Group had no material
external guarantee.

The Group believes that the guarantees above will not have
a significant impact on its financial position.

ME R

AEBCDHETYEEMBE S ZRHHRITHR
B WHZEEENNEREERMER -

REBERE D B P EHREURTTIZE GERER)
FRABEAEERENRMER - RERRT
BEREABEERERNEL - AKE 5
RIRITAEE R P B EIR & IR AR R
HHRR - ZRERETEBETPHIETE
FEMEEELHZFEEEMECTERRE

R-Z——FXA=1H REEERLE
A ANR¥3,427,108,0007t (ZE—FF+ =
A=+—H : AR#¥20973,167,0007T) °

MNZZE——F X XA=+H ' AARKRHETA
AR BIRITERARKQ06,013,0007T (ZF
—EE+-_A=+—H: ARHK
700,000,0007T) LA R FRARIEITHES AR
#1,150,000,0007T (CE—F&F+ - A=+
— A ) REERN  AEBATFEEM
BAREIMNER ©

AEERR LABERTIGHAEE OB
MELBEATE -
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10.

138 BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Financial instrument and risk

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
market risk (primarily currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(1). Market risk

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is subject to foreign exchange risk
arising from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities such as
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, and borrowings. (The majority of the
Group’s foreign currency transactions and
balances are dominated in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”) and United States dollars (“USD”).)
The Group’s finance department of
headquarters is responsible for monitoring the
amount of assets and liabilities, and
transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The management of the Group
may consider entering into forward exchange
contracts or currency swap contracts to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk. During the
six months ended 30 June 2011 and 2010,
the Group did not enter into any forward
exchange contracts or currency swap
contracts.

As at 30 June 2011 and 31 December 2010,
the carrying amounts in RMB equivalent of the
Group’s assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are summarized below,
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HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

10 Financial instrument and risk
(Continued)

(1). Market risk (Continued)

(@ Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

+. € TARERR @

(1). mWisERE @

(a) SINE R % (4E)

30 June 2011
—E——FxXHA=1+H
usD HKD Total
xXnEH B¥IEE &5t
Cash at bank and ExsEe
on hand 2,073,607 176,556 2,250,163
Long-term borrowings & EifE& 7K 302,270 - 302,270
Other payables A FE A R 362,818 35,698 398,516
31 December 2010
—E-TFF+-_A=+—H
USD HKD Total
ELEE B IE %
Cash at bank and ExsEe
on hand 68,057 9,689 77,746
Other payables H b fE R 272,680 — 272,680

As at 30 June 2011, for all USD and HKD
dominated financial assets and liabilities, if
RMB had increased/decreased by 5% against
USD/HKD with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been decrease/increase by
approximately RMB58,102,000 (31 December
2010: increase/decrease RMB7,310,000)

RZE——FA=+H "
HRRNEESBINE SR E
EMNESHERE  mRA
RS INEFE kB2 E5% -
HMERRFELE - QRS
& #5238 S FE 4 A
R¥58,102,0007T (ZE—=
F+_A=+—8 : #mnsk
WA HANRET7,310,000
JT) °
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10 Financial instrument and risk

(Continued)

(1).

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Market risk (Continued)

(®)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposed to interest rate risk
due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on borrowings which carry at
prevailing market interest rates. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group determines
the contracts proportions of fixed rate and
floating rate depending on the market
conditions. As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s
long-term interest bearing borrowings were
mainly RMB-denominated with floating rates,
amounting to RMB7,174,950,000 (31
December 2010: RMB5,696,560,000).

Increases in interest rates will increase the
cost of new borrowing and the interest
expenses of to the Group’s outstanding
floating rate borrowings, and therefore could
have a material adverse impact on the Group’s
financial position. The Group’s finance
department of its headquarters continuously
monitors the interest rate position of the Group
and makes decisions with reference to the
latest market conditions. The management of
the Group may enter into interest rate swap
agreements to mitigate its exposure to interest
rate risk. During the six months ended 30 June
2011 and 2010, the Group did not enter into
any interest rate swap agreements.

For the six months ended 30 June, if interest
rates on the floating rate borrowings
increased/decreased 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the financial
expenses of the Group would increased/
decreased by approximately RMB12,325,000
(Six months ended 30 June 2010:
RMB10,248,000).
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(1).

misEME (&)

(b)

IET

REENFERKREZESE
REBRITERERAES
BT - REMENSHARE
FEAEEEGRERERN R

Ek - BEMENESREE
ﬁ$§lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ$

E: o AEBBEERAT
iﬁfa%)(/?%m.mﬂ—?—&f?
A ERE RAMEHE LG o B
—T——FXA=+H &
EERRPTEEBEEAA
REERZBFEER
SR ANRET 174,950,000
T(ZE—ZTF+A=+—
H: AR#5,696,560,000
JT) °
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VA B2 ZS £ [ 1) R A8 B LA
B F E 5T B R A& A A
B - I8 AN & E 7 B 7
FBEEEEANTAZE
EEEG KBS TSR
IR B SRR - B LR
Al RE R ETAER G ]2 5
XEHEET'JTHE“ cEEZT
—FXNA=+HIENEA
HEERBEE T —ZF /A
=+ HIENERERE - A&
B0 R E 2 HE o

HE-ZT——FA=1+H
1E75E B HARS - R UAE B
PR E & &R FE _EF sk
TFE0.5% M E b =RIF
N REB R IRTTE FF
BEXHE Rl OAR
#12,325,0007T (HE=-F—
TEXNAZTAHIEANEAS
M A ARB10,248,000
JT) °



m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

+. EMITAERHEER @

10 Financial instrument and risk
(Continued)

(1).

(2).

Market risk (Continued)
(c) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because investments held by the
Group are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet as available-for-sale financial
assets. The management of the Group
monitors market conditions and the price
fluctuations of securities investments. Since
the cost of available-for sale financial assets
is low, the price risk of the Group is low.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed by portfolio classification.
Credit risk mainly arises from cash at bank and on
hand, accounts receivable, and other receivables.

The Group expects that credit risk on cash at bank
since they are deposited at state-owned banks and
other medium or large size listing banks. Management
does not expect that there will be any significant
losses arise from non-performance by these
counterparties.

In addition, the Group has policies to control the credit
risk exposure on accounts receivable, and other
receivables. The Group assesses the credit
qualification of and sets credit limits on its customers
by taking into account their financial position, the
availability of guarantee from third parties, their credit
history and other factors such as current market
conditions. The credit record of the customers is
regularly monitored by the Group. For customers with
a poor credit history, the Group will apply written
payment reminders, shorten or cancel credit periods,
to ensure the overall credit risk of the Group is limited
under control.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. If a purchaser defaults on the payment
of its mortgage during the term of the guarantee, the
bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding amount under the loan and
any accrued interest thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to sell the property
to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the
bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

(1).

(2).

G E g (&)
() B 12 5%

AEBRBEHDESKRES
7R R B E & BV A WA
XEWRR o EIREEED
BRI K 78 5 % A MBS K
B ARAHEESREE
B ABRE - B EAR E R
BIE

5 R E

AEBHERARBIZAE D BET
ER - EREREEZEEENRTHE
o RN - B ERRE -

REBRTEREZFHNBEAR
TTMEM AP EHRTT » NEE
BREMFEERANERRR - T
SEARYNSTBUEOMERNE
RERERX -

BN - R WBR R - E R U
K ARERERBERRAESE
ARRHRO - NREBERHEFH
BRSAR ~ (eE =7 EEUERAA]
B ERRBERAECRREWE
AMERAEFEEFNEREE
YREVEERY AKEEEH
HEPFERTEETER  HRNE
RARBETIRNEP  AEEEKRA
EHER BRERUXEBUEER
HEHN - MERAKENERE
RERERZENEER

AEBECHBEREMXEM L
RITAME  UHBEENEEERD
RHUER BERBEEEEREME
HRIEX MR RBIERER - R1T
RIBERERFTE2AEEEEDR
BEENDER - UABERRTTERM
EEHNEEE/R - EMBBER
T AKEBREMNEZMELER
RITANBEARERN 2E®E -
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10 Financial instrument and risk +. £ ITAERHEE «

(Continued)

(3). Liquidity risk (3). FENE P
Cash flow forecasting is performed by each subsidiary AEERNSEFRARIBEEEZHNIR
of the Group and aggregated by the Group’s finance SMETER o BELE L PIEIE 42
department in its headquarters. The Group’s finance EFRaREeRERANER L -
department of its headquarters monitors rolling EEEEmMSEETEHEMEEN
forecasts of the Group’s short-term and long-term BeFX UBEREFTHRHNRE
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash REMAHERERNEERS
and securities that are readily convertible to cash to FRFEEIEE R HAERIBEDN
meet operational needs, while maintaining sufficient HE REZoRBBEEGRME
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing WEAE SRR - OB EEM
facilities from major financial institution so that the REMEST K -

Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants
on any of its borrowing facilities to meet the short-
term and long-term liquidity requirements.

The following table details the Group’s contractual REEBERE  AEESEHDH
maturity for its financial liabilities, base on BRENUAFTENERRESMERE
undiscounted contractual cash flows: BIR%IRUTE ¢
30 June 2011
—E-——-5XA=+H
Between Between
Less than 1and2 2and 5 Over 5
1 year years years years Total
—FHUR —F=% —“HEE EENE it
Financial liabilities — ERAR—
Short-term borrowings REER 1,174,594 - - - 1,174,594
Payables R 4,334,028 - - - 4,334,028
Debentures payable ERES 189,662 118,537 2,263,558 - 2,571,757
Long-term borrowings RAER 2,934,518 3,147,806 3,267,194 957,538 10,307,056
Total A&t 8,632,802 3,266,343 5,530,752 957,538 18,387,435
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10 Financial instrument and risk +. £ ITAERHER «

(Continued)
(3). Liquidity risk (continued) (3). mENEPE ()
30 June 2010
“E-TF+-R=1+-H
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over 5
1 year years years years Total
—EHRA —3=% “HaF AEE CEHS
Financial liabilities — tEBE-
Short-term borrowings AT 769,359 - - - 769,359
Payables IR 4,331,863 — — — 4,331,863
Debentures payables eI B % 84,139 65,000 1,105,308 - 1,254,447
Long-term borrowings REER 1,818,218 3,398,832 3,351,335 256,933 8,825,318
Total &t 7,008,579 3,463,832 4,456,643 256,933 15,180,987
(4). Fair value AREE
(a) Financial instruments not measured in fair (a) TUARBEFGTENZ/HT

value

Financial assets and liabilities not measured
in fair value mainly include receivables, short-
term borrowings, payables, Long-term
borrowings, and long-term payables.

The carrying amount of the above financial
assets and liabilities not measured in fair value
is a reasonable approximation of their fair
value.

The fair value of long-term borrowings and
long-term payables not quoted in an active
market is the present value of the contractually
determined future cash flows discounted at
comparable interest rate.

A

TUARABEFENERE
ENAEIZERE - UK
1B - EEER - EATROR
REBERMEEEAR

ERTUARAREEFENS
MEEMAGENREEESR
RABEBETK -

REER  REEMARAE
R E R R RIS R ERIR
iS5 EARAILLERERL
ARG TREEURS
MBI RETIHRENEI
EREERAEE -
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10 Financial instrument and risk
(Continued)

(4). Fair value

(®)

144

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

SHEMSARETT)

+. € TARERE @

(4). AREE B
Financial instruments measured in fair value (b) UAnEEGTEN T A
Based on the lowest level input that is BRIBEARBETER G
significant to the fair value measurement in EERAEEAEERNRE
its entirety, the fair value is divided into the BRNBAE AAEERE
following levels: RAI D7
Level 1, Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—E&: HREESXAE
markets for identical assets or liabilities. EERTS ECRERE) &
Level 2, Inputs other than quoted prices FER B (Ll EE
included within level 1 that are observable for %) sk (LR IR B3
the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as He) BRI RE—[E
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from RPN TISREAIINEE
prices). LEENBAME -
Level 3, Inputs for the asset or liability that F=ER - ARTERB AT
are not based on observable market data (that 35 A R LA SN B 2 BT T
is, unobservable inputs) EWEEXBENHAEBECH
AR AE) °
As at 30 June 2011, the financial assets RZZE—FA=+H -
measured at fair value by the above three RARBEFENSREE
levels are analysed below, BEM=EERINRMOT :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—EBR E-EBR E=BHK &t
Financial assets — CTREE —
Available-for-sale A E
financial assets SREE 107,075 - 5 107,080
As at 31 December 2010, the financial assets RZE—ZTFF+_A=+—
measured at fair value by the above three H: UARBEGFENSH
levels are analysed below, BEZ R =(ERB&YI RN
T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—EH E_ER E-ER BE
Financial assets — CTREE —
Available-for-sale A E
financial assets CREE 140,610 - 5 140,615
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11. Notes to the Company Interim +—ASMBEBRRETEEBMEE

Financial Statements

(1). Other receivables (1). HibrEk®

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
NA=+H +-_A=+—H

Amounts due from i GRNCIE 2 $ -
subsidiaries 11,378,291 5,777,224
Amounts due from associates JE U Bt 45 1 B 1 SRR 2,088 6,234
Project tender deposits HAREREZ S 10,000 10,000
Others HAh 37,671 24,452
Total &t 11,428,050 5,817,910
Less: provisions for bad debts B R (24,000) (24,000)
Receivables — net ikl 11,404,050 5,793,910

The analysis of other receivables and the related A U5 5 K A FE R AR 2EAE O AT
provisions are as follows: R
30 June 2011 31 December 2010
ZE--£xA=1H —Z-ZF+-f=1-H

% of total % of the % of total % of the
Amount  balance Provision provision Amount balance  Provision  provision
SE HAELA BEEE  HRIA S8 HBELH  ZHREE AR
% % % %
Within 1 year —EBR 11,393,210 100 - — 5,783,070 100 - -
110 2 years —H=F - - - - 10,240 — — —
210 3 years “H=%F 10,240 - - - - - = -
Over 3 years =ENE 24,600 - (24,000 98 24,600 - (24,000) 98
Total At 11,428,050 100 (24,000 - 5817910 100 (24,000 -
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE-Z——FNA=TAHLXNEAAMSE GREIERIN  SRELSARETT)

t— ABMBERREZEBME

11. Notes to the Company Interim
Financial Statements (continued)

(2). Long-term Equity Investments

(&)

(2). REIR#EREA

30 June 31 December
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF

AA=ZtHB TZHA=1+—H

Subsidiaries (a) — FRAl(a) —

non-listed companies JE A A 2,771,214 4,854,034
Joint Ventures — EEME —

non-listed companies JEETAHA - 125,897
Associates — B —

non-listed companies JEETAHA 45,631 1,261,138
Total A&t 2,816,845 6,241,069

The Company has no significant limitation on
realization of long-term investment or collection of
investment income.
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m Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

11. Notes to the Company Interim +—ASMBRERETEIEHME

Financial Statements (continueq) (&)
(2). Long-term Equity Investments (Continued) (2). REIR#RSE @
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) Fa] (48)

Dividends

declared before

acquiring the

Additional investments

Investment ABHE 31 December

Initial cost  REzAf 2010 30 June 2011
investment cost Eh/  BAWE  -Z-ZF  Addions  Disposals —E--%
IRRERE  (HY)RE  RERX T2F=1-A KBEN KBES  AAZHA
Capital Chaoyang EHER 500,095 - - 734,095 - - 734,095
Rongjn Company BeNd 213,938 - - 21,968 - - 21,968
Central Gompany HRAF 237,969 - - 19433 - - 79433
Central Plaza Yinrong PRER 90,437 - - 90,497 - - 90437
[FC [FC 74409 - - 20480 - - 20,480
Central Plaza Central Plaza 106,751 - = 39,466 = = 39,466
Jindu Company Fred 201,910 - - 369,970 - - 369,970
HYHL [EHEE() 164,912 - - 199,69 - (199,695 =
Beijng i JruE 315 - - s - - s
Anhua Shi E3u 16,125 - - 136,303 - - 136,30
Shangboya Wik 21,000 3,000 - 30,000 - - 30,000
Shangbol HiE 21,000 3,000 - 30,000 - = 30,000
Chengdlu Xinz() A 131,808 - - 131,808 - (131,808) -
Jiangsu Capital kL] 60,375 - - 60,375 - - 60,375
Capital Chengdu EEH 150,000 - - 160,000 - - 150,000
Sunshing City L] 82,766 - - 82,766 - - 82,766
Wuxi Xindong E5HR 100,000 - - 100,000 - - 100,000
Chengdu Investment RARE 5000 - - 5,000 - - 5,000
Tianjin Real Estate REE% 5000 - - 5000 - = 5,000
Ruiyuan Fengxiang ek 10,000 - - 10,000 - - 10,000
Ruiyuan Fengj FrEE 10,000 - - 10,000 - - 10,000
Chuangxin Jianye i 50,000 = = 50,000 = - 50,000
Xinyuan Chengye gz 10,000 - - 1,000 - - 1,000
Xinyuan Lida PSS 20,000 - - 20,000 - - 20,000
Nenjing Investment HRRE 5,000 - - 5,00 - - 5,000
Tianjin Banshan() REEL() 80,830 - - 303,464 - (303,464) -
Tianjin Xinyuan(] RENE() 10,000 - - 363,700 - (363,700) -
Tianjin Xingang() REME() 10,000 - - 365,146 - (35,146) -
Chengdlu Yidu() HAE) 393,074 - - 393,074 - (393,074) -
Chongging Xinshi) BERA() 325,013 - - 325,033 - (325,983) -
Hakkou Xinge BORE 10,000 - - 10,000 - - 10,000
BECL EERE 67,29 - - 67,29 - - 67,29
Total Aft 3,034,893 6,000 - 4,854,034 - (2082820 2771214
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
BE—ZT——FRXA=+HILERHE GRERZEBN  SREMRARET T

11. Notes to the Company Interim +—ASMBRRETEIEBME

Financial Statements (continueq) €9
(2). Long-term Equity Investments (Continued) (2). REIR#ERSE @
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) F 2 a] (#8)

(i) The information of the disposed 0] ARERFHREBHANE
subsidiaries of the Company, please EFRRNIER &
refer to note 4(1)(iii). 2 5 s (=) (iii) ©

(3). Revenue and cost of sales (3). BEWANMBERK
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE HE
—E——F —E-FF
ARA=+HL ANA=THLE
ANE A HE 7~ {E A HA
Main operating revenue(a) FEEBBA®Q) 113,225 86,262
Other operating revenue(b) H A ZEH5 WA (b) 10,232 —
Total i 123,457 86,262
Main operating cost(a) EEEBKA () - 2,710
Other operating costs(b) H th ZE 75 5 AN (b) - —
Total a5t - 2,710
(a) Revenue and cost of sales (a) FEXBWATFE EZEFKL
¥
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
HE-_Z——F HE-T-TF
AAE=t+AHL ANA=TAL
~E A HE 7~ fE A B

Main Main Main Main
operating operating operating operating
revenue cost revenue cost
TEEL TEEK FEEK FTEEB
A B WA (%N
Sale of properties B EHE WA 1,584 - 4,558 2,710
Consulting services WA 111,641 - 81,704 —
Total At 113,225 - 86,262 2,710
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For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEEASRE GRERNZHN  SHEECSARETIT)

11. Notes to the Company Interim +—ASMBRERETEIEHME
Financial Statements (continued) (%)

(3). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (3). BEWYWANTNZBERAEX B

b)  EEFWAMEMEFK

(b) Other operating revenue and costs

¥/
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BE-_Z——F HE-_ZT-ZF
AA=tHL ANA=TAHL
{8 A EE 7~ fE A EAfE
Other Other Other Other
operating  operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
Hih % Hith 5% H th 2 75 H fth 275
WA B WA (DN
Other income Hitb 10,232 - — —
(4). Investment income (4). HmBEWE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2011 30 June 2010
BZE HE
—E——fF —E-TF
RNA=+HL ANA=THILE
ANE A HE 7~ {E A HAfE
Share of profit/(loss) of investees & #E 255 Z A 3 D EHY
under equity method W EBAFIEENM T 7,686 (17,295)
loss from disposal of BRETAREALER
subsidiaries LEBEKR
(note 4(1) i) (B == 28 (=) (iii) (1,019) (27,010)
Gain from disposal of associates R EHE A a LKA L AR
and joint ventures (a) EERKRERZ () 60,679 =
Gain from disposal of HENHEESH
available-for-sale BEWE
financial assets - 32,979
Dividends from available-for-sale A K& & & &=
financial assets % ) e 2 - 1,113
Total Aa&F 67,346 (10,213)
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m Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 5 3R R P 5

For the six months ended 30 June 2011 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)
HEZZ——FXA=THIEERSRE GRERNZHAN  HEECSARETIT)

11. Notes to the Company Interim +—ASMBRERETEIEBME

Financial Statements (continued) (%)
(4). Investment income (Continued) (4). HBEWE &)

(a) The company transferred some of the equities (@) RARARRFENHOEE R
of associates and joint ventures to its wholly ARkeEERAINREEES
owned subsidiaries, and recognised the AEFBZERAEHNEMTA
difference between the considerations and the A WREREERERSERER
costs of the long-term investments as the BARR I 1S B P AN = RERE IR A
investment income. B A W o

12. Net current assets +Z.FRBEE

30 June 31 December

2011 2010

—E——fF —T—TF

AA=+E  +=A=+—8

Current assets RBEE 31,498,398 26,922,430
Less: Current liabilities B omEAaE (19,031,785) (15,270,411)

Net current assets ERBEE 12,466,613 11,652,019

13. Total assets less current liabilities +=.A&FERTHAR

30 June 31 December

2011 2010

—E——F —E—FF

~B=1+H +=-—A=+—H

Total assets BERE 35,461,572 30,513,787
Less: Current liabilities B omEAaE (19,031,785) (15,270,411)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEEE 16,429,787 15,243,376
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Company Information
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xiaoguang (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Jun (President)

Mr. Zhang Juxing
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Feng Chunqin

Ms. Cao Guijie

Ms. Zhu Min

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Ke Jianmin*

Mr. Li Zhaojie*

Mr. Ng Yuk Keung*

* Members of the Audit Committee

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Yu Changjian
Mr. Wang Qi
Mr. Wei Jianping

SECRETARY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Weimin

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Sing Yeung, Simon
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tang Jun
Mr. Lee Sing Yeung, Simon

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 501,
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Huairou District,
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®  Company Information
AT EH

BEIJING HEADQUARTERS LA

F15, Red Goldage, REE R T

No. 2, Guang Ning Bo Street, =

Beijing, PRC BERiE2ReEAE15E
HONG KONG OFFICE EEMERE

Suites 5806-5808, Two International Finance Centre, HFEFIR

8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong &R ET8R Bl IR & B0 — Hi5806-08F
WEBSITE 4auk

http://www.bjcapitalland.com http://www.bjcapitalland.com
AUDITORS 206D

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Co. Ltd. LHENEP RS ELATER QA
LEGAL ADVISERS EREER

As to Hong Kong law: lu, Lai & Li BEERBER - kBT EAT

As to PRC law: Jingtian & Gongcheng REVEEERM b RmB AR QB EANEBAT
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEERRIT

China Development Bank EdGE i

China Construction Bank AR ERTT

China Merchants Bank RERTT

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China R TrERT

Bank of China REIRTT

SHARE REGISTRAR R 45338 B B 5T RE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited BEPREHFELBRAT

Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, BB ERFRNER183E

Hopewell Centre, AP LTI

183 Queen’s Road East, 1712-1716 %

Hong Kong

Note:  This Report has been prepared in both Chinese and English. For any Mt © AN|EARXRESRE - INFEEFERK - AP
discrepancies, the Chinese version shall prevail. N A% o
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